E. BOIN
BMBITEREBERARA A
stock code & # & % : 00599

2022/23




2

Content B #

> A~ W

11
23
38
71
104
114
116
118
120
121
198

Financial Highlights | Bt3$# %

Corporate Information | 2 F&#

Group Structure | S£EZRE

Chairman’s Statement | XEREE

Management Discussion and Analysis | EEE &1 #mED

Directors’ Report | EE#&

Corporate Governance Report | EERERE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report | B - # @R EABRE
Independent Auditor’s Report | 3% S0 &

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income | &H&2EKER
AR R
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity | #&fE@#28%

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBRARME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Five-Year Financial Summary | AEMEHE

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022/23



seeing is believing

Financial Highlights ###Z%

Annual result for the year ended 31 March 2023
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Annual results for the year ended 31 March 2023
* Revenue

e Profit before income tax

e Shareholders’ fund as at 31 March 2023

e Basic earnings per share

Revenue (HK$’000)

Operating profit (HK$'000)

Profit before income tax (HK$'000)

Profit attributable to shareholders (HK$’000)
Basic earnings per share (HK cents)
Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents)
Net asset value (HK$’000)
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Net asset value (HK$’M)
EERE (EEET)

HK$454.8 million
HK$18.3 million
HK$496.7 million
HK2.22 cents
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Chairman’s Statement FEHEE

Dear Shareholders,

On the behalf of the board of the directors of the Company, | am
pleased to present to shareholders of the Company the review of
our annual results for the year ended 31 March 2023 and our
prospect.

It has been exceedingly difficult to avoid discussing the ever-
changing global political and financial landscape, which can
certainly impact our business in Hong Kong in our board meetings.
One of the main factors that contributed to the decline of Hong
Kong’s economic performance last year was China’s strict policy to
eliminate COVID-19, which disrupted trade and travel. Another
factor was the Russian-Ukraine conflict that has affected the global
economy through several channels, including financial sanctions,
commodities prices, and supply-chain disruptions.

It has contributed to a drop in projected global economic growth.
The conflict has also caused energy and food prices to soar, which
has led to inflationary pressure that, in turn, made leading
jurisdictions tighten their fiscal and monetary policies with rate
hikes to curb inflation. These external factors impact global
production, trade, investment, and employment growth. There is
no sign of any improvement in these parameters any time soon.

Hong Kong’s economy suffered a 3.5% contraction last year.
China’s economy expanded by just 3% in 2022, slightly below the
government’s forecasts of 3.2% because of the “Dynamic Zero
COVID-19” policy.

Hong Kong’s economy showed signs of recovery in the first quarter
of 2023, thanks to the strong rebound of inbound tourism and
domestic consumption. According to the Trade Development
Council’s June 2023 report, the real Gross Domestic Product grew
by 2.7% in real terms from a year earlier, ending four quarters of
contraction in 2022. The Government forecasts economic growth
of 3.5% to 5.5% in real terms for 2023. Meanwhile, China’s
economy also registered a robust growth of 4.5% in the first quarter
of 2023 year on year at a constant price, marking highest growth
since the first quarter of last year. Hong Kong and China have
benefited from the end of COVID restrictions and the resumption
of regular travel and business activities.

seeing is believing
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Chairman’s Statement FEHRES

It is too early to be optimistic, as both economies are still
recovering from the pandemic and will have to deal with external
economic challenges in the year ahead. China’s economic
problems include slowing growth in investment and exports, high
debt, trade tensions, stabilising the real estate sector, inflation,
international and regional geopolitical conflicts, and demographic
changes. These factors create uncertainty for Hong Kong’s annual
economic growth as it relies on China’s economic performance,
anything that happens in China would directly impact Hong Kong’s
economy, and the continuing high-interest rates would dampen the
investment and real estate market this year.

Regarding Hong Kong’s challenge, the HKSAR government is
committed to implementing the 2022 Policy Address unveiled by
the Chief Executive on 21 June 2023, some of the highlights of the
Policy Address include exhibiting effort in creating more land for
property development, enhancing the competitiveness of Hong
Kong as an international financial and innovation centre,
dovetailing with national strategies to develop a strong impetus for
growth, and earnestly addressing people’s concerns and difficulties
in daily life. The HKSAR government believes these policy
initiatives will help chart a brighter tomorrow for Hong Kong under
the “One Country, Two Systems” principle.

The “Northern Metropolis Development Strategy” is another
government’s crucial initiative to promote the synergy and
collaboration between Hong Kong, Shenzhen, and other cities in
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area. By
enhancing the connectivity and complementarity of these cities,
the strategy will create more opportunities for innovation, trade,
and social development.

To expand the innovative industry in Hong Kong, the HKSAR
government has launched Top Talent Pass Scheme (TTPS) that
introduced in October 2022 aims to entice talents from various
fields to pursue their careers in Hong Kong. The TTPS offers a two-
year visa to eligible applicants who can explore employment
opportunities or start their businesses in Hong Kong. Some of the
TTPS’s benefits include developing green and sustainable finance,
attracting mainland China and overseas information technology
enterprises to the Hong Kong-Shenzhen Innovation and
Technology Park, etc.

In addition, the HKSAR government introduced a sector-specific
Labour Importation Scheme for the constructions and transport
sectors and a Supplementary Labour Scheme to address acute
manpower shortages across various sectors.
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A high-interest rate environment will threaten the operation of
small businesses due to higher borrowing costs, weaken the
consumer confidence index, reducing investment and retail. Since
Hong Kong faces the abovementioned factors, this year will be
challenging for Hong Kong businesses.

The right issue in the year benefited our Group, enabling us to
strengthen our financial position in a high-interest rate
environment. This resulted in lower finance costs for the Group.
Despite the challenging market environment in 2022, our revenue
for the financial year ended on 31 March 2023 was marginally
more decreased by 8.1% compared with last financial year.

The Hong Kong housing market is still in a state of recovery from
the pre-pandemic level; it is expected that with the opening of the
China-Hong Kong border and the arrival of top talents from China
and overseas, it would generate more demand for residential units.
However, the current high-interest rate environment is expected to
dampen home buyers’ sentiment and slow down the market.

As there are still some uncertainties and risks for the above reasons,
Hong Kong’s real estate market outlook for 2023 and ours are
cautiously optimistic.

The ever-changing adverse market environment posed many
challenges we could not control, but we had successfully adapted
to them. Our flexibility has enabled us to operate optimally in
dynamic business conditions. Therefore, we will monitor market
trends, leverage our strengths, and revise our strategies accordingly.
The Group will remain alert to the changes in the business
environment and strive to enhance its operational efficiency to
ensure sustainability.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, I would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all our staff members for their contribution and
devotion. | would also like convey my heartfelt appreciation to our
consumers and all business associates for the continued trust and
support.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Chairman

23 June 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 E &I 270 #

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in importing, wholesale,
retailing and installing architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom,
kitchen collections and furniture and providing interior design
services, project and contract management in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

A business review of the Group and an analysis of the Group's
performance using financial key performance indicators during the
year are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis. In
addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
implementation and an account of the Group’s key relationships
with its employees, customers, suppliers and others that have a
significant impact on the Group and on which the Group’s success
depends are provided in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Annual Report 2022/23.

Details of the Company’s compliance with the code provisions in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) are
provided in the Corporate Governance Report of the Annual Report
2022/23. Except the code provision D.2.5 of Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, during the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company
has complied with the requirements under the Listing Rules, the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Cayman Islands Companies Act.

For many years in Hong Kong, businessmen have always been able
to focus on commercial priorities and not worry too much about
political developments. However, much more than before, it is
challenging to avoid geopolitical issues in our board meetings
when formulating any future business plans.

The Russian-Ukraine conflict has seriously affected the global
economies, especially commodities and agriculture sectors,
causing high food and energy prices and combining the United
States (the US), the United Kingdom (UK) and Europe (EU)
sanctions against Russia, creating inflationary pressure. It, in turn,
affects the US monetary policy by increasing rates steadily over a
year to curb inflation. The Federal Reserve (the US Fed), the
European Central Bank and central banks in other developed
countries have continued to raise interest rates in 2023, but at a
slower pace than last year, which saw the most aggressive
monetary tightening in a decade and the high-interest rate is
expected to remain at the similar level this year. Global liquidity
has contracted, and capital has flowed out of the emerging
markets. As a result, Hong Kong’s financial market has been
affected.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 &m0 4

BUSINESS REVIEW (coNT'D)

According to the World Economic Situation and Prospects issued
by the United Nations (UN) Department of Economic and Social
Affairs Economic Analysis on 16 May 2023, it suggested that “as of
mid-2023, Global trade remains under pressure due to geopolitical
tensions, weakening global demand and tighter monetary and
fiscal policies. Global trade volume in goods and services is
forecast to grow by 2.3 per cent in 2023, well below the pre-
pandemic trend.” The relatively weak Global trade performance
suggested that a global slowdown continued to pose challenges to
the Global economic growth outlook.

Hong Kong’s correlation with Russia in terms of direct trade is
relatively low. On 13 March 2022, Hong Kong Financial Secretary
Paul Chan assessed that the overall risks of the conflict between
Ukraine and Russia in Hong Kong are manageable. Still, Hong
Kong remains “highly vigilant” for any possible impact on financial
markets. “Ukraine accounted for 0.05% of Hong Kong’s goods
exports last year, while Russia made up 0.78%.” Therefore, the
impact of the Russian-UKraine conflict on Hong Kong’s energy and
agricultural product supply is limited.

Last year, the global economy softened due to the continued
impact of tightening monetary policy and the Russian-UKraine
conflict. Hong Kong has to raise its rates simultaneously, which
means higher borrowing costs for the Government, corporations
and households. Therefore, Hong Kong has also faced risks from
high inflation and the aggressive monetary tightening in advanced
economies with higher borrowing costs and a pessimistic economic
outlook hitting asset prices.

As a result of PRC’s “Dynamic Zero COVID-19” policy aimed to
keep cases as close to Zero as possible, the Chinese economy
shrank 4.2 per cent year on year in the fourth quarter of 2022,
marking a fourth consecutive quarter of contraction. The full-year
figure for 2022 was worse than government forecasts of a 3.2 per
cent decline. PRC’s economy expanded 4.5 per cent in the first
quarter of the 2023 year on year at a constant price, marking the
highest growth since the first quarter of last year mainly because of
the ending of COVID restrictions end of last year, indicating that
PRC’s economic recovery is appropriately on track.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022/23
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONT'D)

However, the Chinese economy, which has been the primary
engine of regional and global growth for decades, is expected to
slow considerably in the face of new challenges such as corporate
debt climbing to pre-pandemic, continuing tax cuts, highs
unfavourable demographics, slowing down of productivity, the
trade disputes between PRC and other jurisdictions will likely
dampen credit and investment growth in the future.

More importantly, the impact of the US restricting the export of
sensitive technology to PRC in the last quarter of last year,
specifically regarding advanced computing, supercomputing,
semiconductor capabilities, and artificial intelligence, on its
economic performance has yet to be assessed.

Hong Kong’s economic growth has been very dependent on the
Mainland, so the slowdown of PRC’s economy due to the
pandemic was a primary contributing factor to the poor financial
performance last year, much less the interest hike in response to
the US Fed’s monetary policy; US-China trade dispute and the
contraction of trade volume due to the Russian-UKraine conflict,
Hong Kong’s economy suffered a 3.5 per cent contraction last year.

According to the Trade Development Council’s June 2023 report,
Hong Kong’s Gross Domestic Product increased by 2.7% in real
terms from a year earlier. It is mainly due to the strong recovery of
inbound tourism and domestic demand as the value of retail sales,
in nominal terms, was provisionally estimated to have increased by
19.9% for the first four months of 2023 over the same period in
2022. The Government forecasts economic growth of 3.5% to
5.5% in real terms for 2023.

Economic growth turnaround indicated an end to a recession after
four consecutive quarters of contraction last year. However, Hong
Kong is also facing new challenges: the uncertainty of the
economic performance of PRC due to geopolitical conflict, high-
interest rates, shortage of workers across the trades, the relatively
poor performance of export trade due to lower demands of goods
from the leading economies as a result of high-interest rates and
inflation pressure.

seeing is believing
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 &m0 4

BUSINESS REVIEW (coNT'D)

Hong Kong's residential price dropped by about 15% due to high-
interest rates last year, but it rebounded by 5% in the first quarter
of this year; with the reopening of the city’s border and the end of
the “Dynamic Zero COVID-19” policy, and a relatively stable
interest rate, it was still 10% lower than those a year ago. The new
home buyers from Hong Kong and PRC are expected to create
more demand for residential housing, and the price will remain at
this level for this year.

There is slightly decline in our revenue for the financial year ended
on 31 March 2023, when compared with year 2021/22, which
impacted by the general economic and market conditions in Hong
Kong and mainland China. However, despite these challenges, our
group would continue to capitalise our experience, work hard to
maintain and strength our working relationship in Hong Kong &
PRC and co-operation with reputable property developers.

REVENUE REVIEW

Revenue by business segment

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group's total turnover was
HK$454.8 million, representing a decrease of 8.1% as compared
with the previous year.

Revenue from external customers
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As a percentage of sales
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31 March 31 March
=A=+-8 =A=+-8
2023 2022 Change 2023 2022
—E-= —EC- & gy —S-= —E-CF
HK$'000  HK$'000 (%) (%) (%)
FER FET
Architectural builders’ BERS  FARE
hardware, bathroom REAM
collections and others 314,574 362,269 (13.2) 69.2 73.2
Kitchen collection and furniture BjE %48 % 54 140,190 132,323 5.9 30.8 26.8
454,764 494,592 8.1) 100.0 100.0
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REVENUE REVIEW (cONT'D)

Profitability by business segment

Reportable segment gross profit

seeing is believing
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Gross profit margin

AERZ D HEF EFIE (%)
2023 2022 Change 2023 2022
—E-=F S 3 BE —BC-=F - St -3
HK$’000 HK$’000 (%) (%) (%)
TET AT
Architectural builders’ BERD - FARE
hardware, bathroom & EHA
collections and others 109,720 118,178 (7.2) 34.9 32.6
Kitchen collection and furniture BIE % & 545 70,886 65,318 8.5 50.6 494
180,606 183,496 (1.6) 39.7 37.1

Revenue from the architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom
collections and others segment decreased by 13.2% to HK$314.6
million (2022: HK$362.3 million) as compared to the previous
year. During the year, we supplied for projects such as KT Marina
1, High Park, Skycity, Cullinan Sky.

Revenue from the kitchen collection and furniture segment
increased by 5.9% to HK$140.2 million (2022: HK$132.3 million)
as compared to the previous year. During the year, we supplied for
projects such as The Southland.

The overall gross profit of the Group amounted to HK$180.6
million (2022: HK$183.5 million), representing an decrease of
1.6% from the previous year. The overall gross profit margin
slightly increased to 39.7% from 37.1%.

The Group’s operating profit was HK$18.3 million (2022: HK$19.2
million), representing an decrease of 4.6% from the prior year. The
amount of administrative expenses and distribution costs decreased
by 0.5% to HK$164.1 million (2022: HK$164.9 million) which
reflected our efforts in controlling selling expenses despite
resumption in selling activities and employment subsidies from the
Government and cost control in staffing and distribution.
Government subsidies received by the Group during the year
totalled HK$2.9 million (2022: the Group did not receive any
government subsidies).

EERS AARBERAMI BREREFRD
132%Z3146BBBT(ZTE-_F 136238848
o) c RAEE  KFIBREEE T ER - M -
AEZEBRMBESR -

BEREREMI DBRERHEFER5.9%F 140.2
BEBT(ZEZZF:1323@BEBBT) RAHF
B ZMAAZSRSEHREMHEER -

AEBZEEENE1806BEBT(ZE==
183.5BBBTT) REFRD1.6%  BEEFEMH
37.1% BB R F39.7% °

AEBzREZMNABISIEEBT(ZE-_F:
192BHEBT)  REFHD4.6%  THELIRDH
BRABDOS%EI4ITBEEBT(ZE ==
1649BHEET) KRMEMEHEESTHMENE
ATEBEHHEERX  BAREFBUREAS
ERfEM 2 B A AR AR c RAEE » REEWE
BRFEEH29\8BRAT(ZE-_F : KEEI
FUNEE BT ESD) ©
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group continues to expand its business in Hong Kong and the
PRC while adopting a prudent financial management policy. The
current ratio and quick ratio are 1.9 (2022: 2.0) and 1.2 (2022: 1.4),
respectively. Cash and cash equivalents and time deposits with
maturity over three months approximated HK$146.7 million as at
31 March 2023 (2022: HK$104.2 million).

Inventories increased to HK$144.9 million (2022: HK$115.4
million). The trade, retention and other receivables decreased to
HK$99.0 million (2022: HK$154.7 million), while the trade and
other payables increased to HK$43.3 million (2022: HK$34.4
million).

As at 31 March 2023, the gearing ratio (net debt divided by total
equity) of the Group is not applicable, the Group has a net cash
position (2022: same). The interest-bearing borrowings of the
Group increased to HK$64.0 million (2022: HK$42.1 million) as at
31 March 2023.

Treasury Policy

Borrowings, cash and cash equivalents are primarily denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) and Euro (“Euro”). During the year,
the Group entered into certain forward contracts to buy Euro for
settlement of purchases. The management will continue to monitor
the foreign exchange risk exposure of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

We seek to manage our cash flow and capital commitments
effectively to ensure that we have sufficient funds to meet our
existing and future cash requirements. We have not experienced
any difficulties in meeting our obligations as they become due.
Assets under charge include mortgaged property acquired. As at 31
March 2023, performance bonds of approximately HK$23.3
million (2022: HK$32.5 million) have been issued by the Group to
customers as security of contracts. Save for the performance bonds
for projects, the Group has no other material financial
commitments and contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2023.

seeing is believing
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM RIGHTS ISSUE

On 9 January 2023, the Company completed a rights issue and
issued 118,238,942 rights shares, on the basis of one (1) rights
share for every four (4) then existing shares, at a price of HK$0.192
per rights share (the “2023 Rights Issue”). Upon completion of the
2023 Rights Issue, the Company received net cash proceeds of
approximately HK$21.4 million (the “Net Proceeds”). The
Company intended to apply the Net Proceeds as to: (i)
approximately HK$11.7 million for financing the estimated
renovation costs and related expenses for setting up a new
showroom and warehouse in connection with the Group’s kitchen
collection and furniture business; (ii) approximately HK$7.7
million for repayment of bank loans; and (iii) approximately
HK$2.0 million as general working capital of the Group.

The following table sets forth the information in relation to the use
of the Net Proceeds raised from the 2023 Rights Issue:

Intended use of
Net Proceeds as
disclosed in the
prospectus dated
14 December 2022

HRFAEREAR

RIZEBEZ=F—-ANA » ARF=RERILIZETA)
RESEERVER —(ORERROZEEUESR
HRRBRD0.192 BT 2B E1T118,238,942 BRI
BHTZZZ=F#RK]) -ZTR-_ZS_=FHRKR%E
AAREWBIR @ FEFIETFEN21 4888t
BRERHE] - AR BB IEFEANUT A
B2 )N /7AEBTAREEAEERERER
BREBNTRINERERNGTTHHRAKRIEEHE
ERBXREMES ) ()W 7 7888 TANERERT
BFG RNK20EBETHERAEEN —REE
=]

TRBFIEHB AR = E R R EREFEY
Eh

Actual use of

Net Proceeds up to
31 March 2023 as
originally intended

Unutilised
Net Proceeds as at
31 March 2023

Intended use and
expected timeline

R RERE
—B-CF RRER - ES
+=AtHmA —Bo=R —B-=F
ZERFAHEE =ZA=t-H =ZA=+-H
2B RAE HIF SRR HABAZ HREARR
FREREAR FHE2ERRR FEREFE BREREXR
Financing the estimated HK$11.7 million HK$3.5 million HK$8.2 million  To be used as originally
renovation costs and related intended during the
expenses for setting up a new first half of 2023
showroom and warehouse in and through 2024
connection with the Group’s
kitchen collection and
furniture business
AEAKREEERBEREMEEN N7BEEER 3SHEEET B2EEBEL RIT=FL¥F

HRFERER NG RA K
MEZRAXREHES
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM RIGHTS ISSUE (coNT'D)

Intended use of
Net Proceeds as
disclosed in the

seeing is believing

HERFABRIEBRE @)

Actual use of
Net Proceeds up to

Unutilised

prospectus dated 31 March 2023 as  Net Proceeds as at  Intended use and
14 December 2022  originally intended 31 March 2023  expected timeline
BAR BEHE
. REER S ES
+t=ZA+mWmA —EZZH —B-=H
ZERFINE ZA=+-H ZRA=t-H
ZFrERR HIFERE HABAZz BERER
FHEEERR FHEzERAZ FEREFRE HEORER
Repayment of bank loans HK$7.7 million HK$1.7 million HK$6.0 million  To be used as originally
intended from
January 2023 to
June 2024
BERTER 77BEBERT 1.7EERT 60EBET R-ZT-=F-A
EZ-NERA
BEHEREER
General working capital HK$2.0 million HK$0.6 million HK$1.4 million  To be used as originally
of the Group intended from
January 2023 to
March 2024
AREN-REEES 2088 0.6 HEET 14EBBT R-BZ=%-7
E-F-MF=A
REREREER
FUTURE PROSPECTS AREE

As discussed in our business review, the contraction of the
economic performance of Hong Kong in 2022 was mainly due to
the uncertainty arising from PRC’s “Dynamic Zero COVID-19”
policy on the one hand and, on the other hand, the Russian-
Ukraine conflict that had seriously affected the global economies,
especially commodities and agriculture sectors, causing high food
and energy prices and combining the US, UK and EU sanctions
against Russia, creating inflationary pressure. It, in turn, affects the
US monetary policy by increasing rates steadily over a year to curb
inflation. Global trade remains under pressure due to geopolitical
tensions, weakening global demand and tighter monetary and
fiscal policies.

EMRMREROERFFER S _FEHBE
BRIENEBEEZHN - PE [COVID-19EREFE |
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EBUARER ERERFEEUREE R G HBEER
Wi EREZNAEBRES -
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (cONT'D)

Still, the Hong Kong economy improved in the first quarter of
2023. Its economy grew by 2.7% year-on-year in the first quarter
of 2023, recovering from a downward contraction in the previous
year led by the strong recovery of inbound tourism ((7.3 million
visitors (5.7 million from Mainland) over the period, representing
around 30% of pre-pandemic levels)) and domestic demand. The
Government forecasts economic growth of 3.5%. Likewise, PRC’s
economy grew by 4.5% in the first quarter of 2023 after it had
ended the “Dynamic Zero COVID-19” policy end in 2022, and it
is expected that the Gross Domestic Product (GDP) will achieve
6% growth at the end of this year.

PRC’s economy relies heavily on fixed asset investment, exports
and domestic consumption, while its property market accounts for
a large share of GDP. Despite the reopening, PRC’s real estate
sector has not fully recovered from the credit crunch on property
developers and several property firms, most notably Evergrande (its
offshore bond default in mid-2021), have since struggled to
maintain liquidity. New home construction still declines as
developers struggle to finish existing projects, pressuring future
income. The local governments will also feel the heat due to
weaker economic growth and fiscal revenue from plummeting land
sales.

The Chinese government has recently unveiled sweeping measures
to rescue the struggling real property sector. The banking regulator
and central bank issued a 16-point set of internal directives to
promote the “stable and healthy development” of the industry. The
measures include credit support for debt-laden housing developers,
financial support to ensure the completion and handover of
projects to homeowners, and assistance for deferred-payment loans
for homebuyers. The directive signals the end of the golden age of
real estate development with an adverse effect towards local
governments and financial institutions.

Thus, China still faces long-term persistent challenges to maintain
its growth momentum. As Hong Kong depends on China for its
economic growth, its economic performance would affect Hong
Kong.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (cONT'D)

Looking forward, there may be plenty of reasons to be confident
about the continued improvement in the Chinese Mainland and
Hong Kong economies. It is too early to be optimistic given that
both economies are still recovering from the pandemic, weakening
in consumer sentiment and business confidence Index, and will
face external economic challenges such as global economic
pressures, Russian-UKraine conflict, high inflation, high-interest
rate, geopolitical tensions and technological competition with the
US in the year ahead. For these reasons, we expect to see a slow
recovery of the Hong Kong economy.

According to the Housing Bureau of Hong Kong, the estimated
total public housing production by the Housing Authority and the
Hong Kong Housing Society in the five years from 2023/24 to
2027/28 is about 128,800 flats, comprising about 82,900 public
rental housing/Green Form Subsidised Home Ownership Scheme
apartments and about 45,900 other subsidised sale flats). The
actual completion of flats would inevitably be affected by factors
such as site constraints, inclement weather, contractors’ progress,
labour shortage, materials supply of the construction industry, etc.
The yearly housing production is, therefore, subject to adjustments
accordingly.

According to the Hong Kong Rating and Valuation Department, the
forecast completions for private and domestic in 2023 and 2024
are 19,950 and 26,970 units, respectively.

Although the private domestic price index rebounded in the first
quarter by nearly 5 per cent, the strength of the rebound would be
impacted by factors such as high-interest rates, consumer
sentiment, weakening demand, the uncertainty of external fiscal
environments and an oversupply of newly built private and
domestic flats.

The Hong Kong government’s new round of the Consumption
Voucher Scheme 2023, with a total value of HK$5,000 in
instalments for each eligible Hong Kong resident, was expected to
increase HK GDP by 0.6% in 2023. The vouchers will be disbursed
in two instalments: HK$3,000 in April 2023 and the remaining
HK$2,000 in mid-2023. Non-Hong Kong residents who are in the
city to study or through different admission programmes will
receive vouchers worth HK$2,500. Still, the prospect of higher
interest rates is expected to continue to depress Hong Kong's
secondary housing market until next year.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS (cONT'D)

Our revenue last year was marginally lower at HK$455 million as
compared to the previous year. The weakening demand for
housing units in Hong Kong will likely remain for 2023 due to
those mentioned external and local market environments.
Considering market trends impacted by external factors, this year
will be a difficult challenge for our business; as usual, we will
continue minimising our operation costs, lowering the debt-to-
equity/leverage ratio, capitalising on our strengths in product
ranges, and our relationships with well-established developers to
adjust our strategies accordingly.
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Directors’ Report EZ# %

The Board of Directors is pleased to submit their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out on
pages 179 to 181.

Details of the analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS, APPROPRIATIONS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 114 to 115.

Appropriations of profits and movements in the reserves of the
Group and of the Company during the year are set out in notes 27
and 31(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Board did not declare and pay an interim dividend for the six
months ended 30 September 2022 (six months ended 30
September 2021: HKO.5 cent per share totalling HK$3,003,000).

The Board has resolved to recommend, at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting (the “AGM”) to be held on 7 September 2023, a
final dividend of HKO.5 cent per share for the year ended 31 March
2023 (year ended 31 March 2022: HK1 cent per share) (the “Final
Dividend”), totalling HK$3,594,000 (year ended 31 March 2022:
HK$6,006,000).

If it is duly approved by the members at the AGM, the Final
Dividend will be distributed to members, whose names appear on
the principal or branch register of members of the Company in the
Cayman Islands or Hong Kong respectively (collectively the
“Register of Members”) as at the close of business on 15 September
2023. The payment will be made on 12 October 2023.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
The register of members of the Company will be closed as follows:

(@) For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 4 September 2023 to 7
September 2023, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
right to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on 1
September 2023.

(b)  For the purpose of determining shareholders who qualify for
the Final Dividend, the register of members of the Company
will be closed on 15 September 2023, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for
the Final Dividend, all transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with Tricor Abacus
Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on 14 September 2023.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company had not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2023,
calculated under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to HK$63,253,000 (2022: HK$58,840,000). Under
Section 34 of the Companies Act (2022 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium is available for distribution to
shareholders, provided that no distribution or dividend shall be
paid to shareholders out of the Company’s share premium unless
the Company shall be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 26
to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association of the Company and there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

The details of bank loans and borrowings as at 31 March 2023 are
set out in the note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations for charitable or other purposes made by the Group
during the year amounted to HK$80,000 (2022: HK$56,000).
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

Mr. WAN Sze Chung

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the financial year and/or
during the period from the end of the financial year to the date of
this report are kept at the Head Office in Hong Kong and available
for inspection during business hours.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, aged 66, is the Chairman of the Board. He
is a director of seven subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TSE
possesses over 30 years of experience in trading of building
materials. He is responsible for the planning of the Group’s overall
strategies and the overall management of the Group. Mr. TSE is a
brother of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the Managing Director of the
Company; a cousin of Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, the Vice Chairman
of the Company; and an uncle of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, the
Deputy Managing Director of the Company.

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, aged 72, a founding member of the
Group, was appointed as an Executive Director and Vice Chairman
of the Company on 21 June 2012. He established his reputation in
the industry and has a wealth of experience in brand building, new
product development and structuring the management of the
Group. Mr. TSE is a cousin of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the
Chairman of the Board and Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the Managing
Director of the Company; and the father of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin,
the Deputy Managing Director of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (cONT'D)

Executive Directors (cont'd)

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, aged 64, is the Managing Director of the
Company and joined the Group in 1979. He is a director of
twenty-seven subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TSE possesses over
30 years of experience in trading of building materials and is
responsible for the retail business of the Group. Mr. TSE also assists
in the strategic planning and management of the Group. Mr. TSE is
a brother of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the Chairman of the Board; a
cousin of Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, the Vice Chairman of the
Company; and an uncle of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, the Deputy
Managing Director of the Company.

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun, aged 55, joined the Group in 1994. Mr. LAU
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 10
December 2001. He is responsible for project sales. Mr. LAU
graduated from Hong Kong Baptist University (formerly Baptist
College) in 1992 with a Bachelor’s Degree of Science.

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, aged 43, is the Deputy Managing Director
of the Company and joined the Group in 2004. He was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company on 8 September 2008
and is a director of twenty subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. TSE
graduated from University of Toronto with a Bachelor’s Degree of
Commerce. He is responsible for internal information technology
development, the launching of the furniture business and the
marketing of products distributed by the Group. Mr. TSE is a
nephew of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the Chairman of the Board and
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the Managing Director of the Company; and
a son of Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, the Vice Chairman of the
Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic, aged 74, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 19 June 2001. He
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1972 with
Honours Bachelor’s Degree of Social Science in Economics. He
was appointed as a Director and general manager of Hongkong
Ferry (Holdings) Ltd., formerly The Hongkong & Yaumatei Ferry
Co., Ltd. until late 1989. He has been actively involved in garment
industry and IT business for the last few years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (cONT'D)

Independent Non-executive Directors (cont'd)

Mr. WAN Sze Chung, aged 48, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 27 September 2004. He obtained a
Master Degree in Business Administration with the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, a Master of Education (Counselling &
Guidance) with University of Newcastle upon Tyne, a Second
Bachelor’s Degree of Law with Tsinghua University and a Bachelor
Degree in Accountancy with the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. WAN is an independent non-
executive director of Plover Bay Technologies Limited, a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also a
director of Jacob Walery Limited specialising in corporate
consultancy and training since 1 March 2007 while he is also
teaching with various universities and professional institutes.

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong, aged 78, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 29 November 2019. He is a Chartered
engineer, Chartered arbitrator, and a Barrister-at-Law in Hong Kong
and in England and Wales. He received his Bachelor of Science in
Engineering, Master of Science in Engineering, and Doctor of
Philosophy degrees from the University of Hong Kong in 1966,
1968 and 1982 respectively; a Professional Engineer degree from
the Columbia University in the City of New York in 1976; a Master
of Business Administration degree from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong in 1980; a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University
of London in 1987; and a Master of Laws in Arbitration and
Dispute Resolution degree from the City University of Hong Kong
in 1994. Dr. LUK was a past President of the Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers (2000-2001) and a member of the Building Ordinance
Appeal Tribunal in Hong Kong (1995-2010). Dr. Luk is a fellow of
the Institution of Structural Engineers, the Institution of Civil
Engineers, the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, the Chartered
Institution of Arbitrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators.
Currently, he is an adjunct professor of the Technological and
Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong, and Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics in the People’s Republic of China, an
Honorary Fellow of HKU School of Professional and Continuing
Education and the chairman of Asian Construction Management
Association.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (cONT'D)

Senior management

Mr. AU Lai Chuen, Hercules, aged 66, joined the Group in 1982.
Mr. AU is a sales director of project sales division. He possesses
over 40 years of experience in the building materials industry and
is responsible for project related sales and marketing activities.

Mr. LEE Ka Ming, Clement, aged 48, joined the Group in 1994. Mr.
LEE is a deputy general manager of project sales division. He
possesses over 20 years of experience in building materials industry
and is responsible for project sales.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for the service contracts with Directors as disclosed herein,
no contracts for the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors, including Independent Non-executive
Directors, has entered into a letter of appointment, which
constitutes a service contract, with the Company for a term of 12
months. They are subject to re-election by shareholders at annual
general meetings and at least once every three years on a rotation
basis in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company. No Director has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, Mr. LAU Shiu Sun and Dr. LUK
Wang Kwong will retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Mr. WONG Wah,
Dominic, Mr. WAN Sze Chung and Dr. LUK Wang Kwong are
Independent Non-executive Directors and were appointed for a
fixed term of one year.

DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS

Details of Directors’ emoluments, on a named basis, during the
year are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors a confirmation of their independence pursuant
to the Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board considers that all of
its Independent Non-executive Directors are independent in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, no Director was interested in any business apart
from the Company’s business, which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s business
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of
them, their or any of their heirs, executors or administrators, shall
or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices or trusts. An insurance cover is in
place to protect Directors against potential costs and liabilities
arising from claims brought against the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share Option Scheme

The Company has not operated any share option schemes during
the year ended 31 March 2023. As at 31 March 2022 and 31
March 2023, there was no outstanding share option of the
Company.

In addition, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter
into agreement that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during or subsisted at the
end of the year.
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DIRECTORS” MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS
THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY’S BUSINESS

No other transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company’s
subsidiaries or holding companies was a party and in which a
Director of the Company and the Director’s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or
at the end of the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year and at the end of the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries or its other associated corporations a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors and chief
executives of the company (including their spouses and children
under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the company or its
specified undertakings or other associated corporations.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company and their associates
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which have been notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Directors’ interests

EERESTRAERE QRS E[HE
BEEcROREBRORES 2R
/KR

RZE-=F=A=+—H0 FEEERAQAES
THRAERBECHBATRAQATRERE LE
(EERBFREAEHRHEXVIB) 25 - HERH
REST  BEEREBEFSFRBEMRGIEXVIBE7RS
PEHMEMERLAREBHARZERQ A ([
R 2B RKRE  RIREF S RPEHRHIE 352
BREAQAREBEFEZERCMATHEZEZRAE &
RIBLEHRAMETE LT RTAZESTETES
Rz EEFR([ZEFR ) BTHERQE KB
Rz ERRABWNT

B

Number of ordinary
shares interested

FERENEEREA
Equity Percentage
Personal Corporate derivatives of share
Director 2 interests interests (share options) Total  capital issued
B EBBIT
fTETIA N
BARRE DEER (B st BAL
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Note 1) HETA L (HEE1) - 46,496,617 - 46,496,617 6.47%
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (Note 2) MR KL (FHEE2) - 135,378,110 - 135,378,110 18.83%
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Note 3) HETE kA (M) - 54,574,427 - 54,574,427 7.59%
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Note 2) HhEAL L (FHRE2) - 135,378,110 - 135,378,110 18.83%
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun Bl EE - - - - -
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic BEEE - - - - -
Mr. WAN Sze Chung BELE - - - - -
Dr. LUK Wang Kwong fEREEL - - - - -

Note 1: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Fast Way  [igF1: %242 & ]R3 #2 B Fast Way Management Limited
Management Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry and his spouse are the B B LAEREREAZSHA -
beneficiaries.

Note 2: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by Universal Star Group  Kf32 : %% A2 AR H Universal Star Group Limited 3
Limited. Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert, Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin and their family HoMEELE BEAAERBECRERELS
are the beneficiaries. HEA o

Note 3: The interests in the shares of the Company are held by New Happy Times K53 : %% 22 & IR 4 # # B New Happy Times Limited 3%

Limited. The spouse of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and his family are the
beneficiaries. He is deemed to have beneficial interest in the Company.

B-HHELECEBRRAIKEERZHA - W
BERARADREEERES -
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(CONT'D)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executives
or their associates had, as at 31 March 2023, any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

At no time during the year, the Directors and chief executives
(including their spouses and children under 18 years of age) had
any interests in, or had been granted, or exercised, any rights to
subscribe for shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company, its specified undertakings or its other associated
corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (the “Companies
Ordinance”).

seeing is believing
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

As at 31 March 2023, the following persons (not being Directors or RZ=ZZZ=F=A=+—H ' UTAL (LFESH
chief executives of the Company) had the following interests or ~ARXBHRSITHAS) RALD AR R EER G+ #
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company ~ BUTRIERE S RAEKRAGIZE 336 R AFE 2 Z LM
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of ~ FrREEZERERKE

the SFO:
Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company RAEDFARGRABRG 2FRE
Percentage of
Number of the issued shares
Capacity shares held of the Company
AT RITRE
Name of shareholder RERARE HR 54 FERGEE ZESHL
Happy Voice Limited Happy Voice Limited Beneficial owner 91,976,507 12.80%
BREBA
Ms. LIM Mee Hwa (Note) LIM Mee Hwa Z = (Fff5E) Beneficial owner 7,200,000
BEREEA
Spouse interest 4,320,000
[inglre
Interest in controlled corporation 33,632,000
REFEE 2R
45,152,000 6.28%
Mr. YEO Seng Chong (Note)  YEO Seng Chong %24 (FifzE)  Beneficial owner 4,320,000
BERERA
Spouse interest 7,200,000
[igtEr £
Interest in controlled corporation 33,632,000
REGEE 2 ER
45,152,000 6.28%

Note: Ms. Lim owns 7,200,000 Shares directly in her own name and her husband K& @ LimZtUHEBASBRREEEF7,200,000 8EH - K

Mr. Yeo owns 4,320,000 Shares in his own name. Ms. Lim and Mr. Yeo, in HY KYeo R ENE B HEHRHEHE 4,320,000 R A3 ©
aggregate, own the entire shareholding in Yeoman Capital Management Pte Lm#Z + KYeok &£ & # # A Yeoman Capital
Ltd (“YCMPL") and therefore control YCMPL. The total shareholding in the Management Pte Ltd ((YCMPL) #9 2 S0 A% 4 - [ Lt ¥
Company held by each of Ms. Lim and Mr. Yeo, comprised of direct YCMPLEZ#IHE - LimZ Tt RYeo EEEBIFEWN
shareholding, deemed shareholding through spouse and fully-controlled ARBRELE (HEEFR  SBERBRFERKRE
corporation, is 45,152,000 shares. Each of Ms. Lim and Mr. Yeo is deemed 2EATAK) B45,152,0000% - BIEFERHE
under the SFO to be interested in all the Shares held beneficially and deemed %RH - LimZ LR Yeo BERBRBERERFARE
to be beneficially held. EERSANMERO T HEAES -

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of BREXFIEEN  RZBZ=F=/=+—-H &2
any substantial shareholder (other than Directors of the Company) BXFRHBEEMEERR (RRXAESBRIN) RAE
who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying 2 EROIEER S PEEREF ZRMEHKRGE
shares of the Company that were recorded in the register required 336 1RBEFEZ B TMATCEZERILR ©

to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 March 2023.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There was no other material connected transaction during the year
to be disclosed.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group recognises that external events may affect the
environment in which the Group operates. The Group's business is
managed by an experienced management team who have a close
involvement in the day-to-day running of the business, which
ensures that the Group is prepared for, and can react quickly by
adapting its business to, changes in the operating environment.
Further discussions on the Group'’s principal risks and uncertainties
are provided throughout this annual report, particularly in
“Chairman’s Statement” (pages 7 to 9), “Management Discussion
and Analysis” (pages 11 to 22), “Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems” (pages 59 to 64), “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” (pages 71 to 103) and “Financial Risk
Management” (pages 146 to 154). The above discussions form part
of this Directors’ Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, save as disclosed on page 38 in Corporate
Governance Report, as far as the Board and management are
aware, the Group has complied with the requirements under the
Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance, the SFO and the Cayman
Islands Companies Act.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group is committed to maintaining a collaborative relationship
with its employees, customers and suppliers. Details of which are
set out on pages 86 to 94 and form part of this Directors’ Report.

seeing is believing
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REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2023, our workforce was recorded at 141
employees (2022: 147). Total staff costs (including Directors’
emoluments) amounted to HK$69,103,000 (2022:
HK$72,100,000). Competitive packages are offered to attract,
retain and motivate competent individuals.

Remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed regularly, making
reference to legal framework, market conditions and both the
Group’s and individual performances. The remuneration policy
and remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and
members of the senior management of the Group are considered
by the Remuneration Committee in accordance with its Terms of
Reference. Details of Directors’” emoluments during the year are set
out on page 166. The Group does not have any share option
scheme for employees.

Senior management remuneration
For the year ended 31 March 2023, remuneration paid to members
of the senior management is as follows:

FEABUR

RZBEZ=F=A=+—8 ' RANEIAZEE 14
B(ZEZZF 147R) BEIRK(BREESH
) 569,103,000 7T (ZF = =4 : 72,100,000 &
T0) c BMEMERE N ZHHSBURS - BER
BEEER AT o

REESEZEERE TR AEERBEAZRE
EHELHFHHR - FTHESSCREABES
EERLEENTESRSRERAEBZHFMBE
RFEMEE - FRNESHFMFFENE 166H - K&
B3 AR S TSRS &I o

BREEAEHMH
BEZZ-_=F=ZA=1T-HLEE XSFFE&
EERABZHMOT :

Number of
individuals
Remuneration bands FE4a B A
HK$0-HK$1,000,000 07T E 1,000,000 7T 2

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases REBEE

The largest supplier RABER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate A RMERAG
Revenue Wz

The largest customer BRAEP

Five largest customers in aggregate BEREFEG

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers disclosed above.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group endeavours to minimising pollution and protecting the
environment by conserving natural resources, reducing the use of
energy and waste. Details of which are set out on pages 80 to 86.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 198.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, as at
the date of this report, it is confirmed that the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review disclosure of the Group for the year as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance are set out in
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” on pages 11 to 22 and pages 71 to
103 respectively of the Annual Report. The business review forms
part of this Directors’ Report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company.

This report is signed for and on behalf of the Board.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2023
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E. Bon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) endeavours to
maintaining its high standard of corporate governance, and
continues to review and reinforce its corporate governance
measures. The Company believes that accountability and reporting
system with high transparency for the Company’s operation has
been in place. Disclosures could also be made timely and
accurately. At the same time, the rights of shareholders can be
treated and protected equitably.

The Company is led by an effective and responsible board of
directors (the “Board”), which is comprised of individuals with high
qualifications and relevant experience. This can ensure that the
Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) maintain good
corporate governance practices and have comprehensive internal
control and risk management systems, so as to cope with the
Group’s development strategies and increase the shareholders’
value.
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COMPLIANCE OF CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) published by
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited sets out the principles
of good corporate governance and provides two levels of
recommendations:

(@) code provisions, with which issuers are expected to comply,
but from which they may choose to deviate, provided that
they give considered reasons; and

(b) recommended best practices, with which issuers are
encouraged to comply, but which are provided for guidance
only.

Amendments to the CG Code (the “New CG Code”) came into
effect on 1 January 2022 and the requirements under the New CG
Code will apply to corporate governance reports for financial
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Corporate
Governance Report of the Company in the following financial year
and onward will be based on the New CG Code.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”),
the Company has complied with all code provisions in the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2023, except for the
following:

Under the code provision D.2.5, the Company should have an
internal audit function. Given the current scale of operations, the
Company does not have an internal audit department. However,
the Board has put in place adequate measures to perform the
internal audit function. The Board reviews the Group’s complex
risk management and internal control systems from time to time so
as to assurance its adequacy and effectiveness. The Board will
continue to review, at least annually, this arrangement going
forward in light of the evolving needs of the Group.
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COMPLIANCE OF MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules sets
a required standard against which Directors must measure their
conduct regarding transactions in securities of their listed
companies. The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own
code of conduct regarding Director’s securities transactions.
Employees of the Group, who are likely possess Inside Information
(as defined under the Securities and Futures Ordinance, the “SFQ”),
have been requested to comply with provisions no less exacting
than the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Directors confirmed compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

THE BOARD

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the date of
publication of this Annual Report, the Directors of the Company
are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert (Vice Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director)

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Deputy Managing Director)
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

Mr. WAN Sze Chung

Dr. LUK Wang Kwong

For the terms of appointment of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, please refer to page 29 in Directors’ Report. According
to the Articles of Association of the Company, at each annual
general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. Formal
letters of appointment have been issued to all Directors setting out
all key terms and conditions of their appointment. Each newly
appointed Director will also be issued with a letter of appointment.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Biographies of all Directors are listed in Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management set out on pages 26 to 28.

Except as disclosed in the Directors’ Report, there is no special
relationship, including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship among the members of the Board.

The Board and Management

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. Directors
take decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board is responsible for establishing the strategic direction of
the Company, setting the objectives of management, monitoring
the performance of management, overseeing the management of
the Company’s relationship with shareholders, ensuring that a
framework of prudent and effective controls is in place to enable
risks to be assessed and managed, setting the Company’s values
and standards, reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior
management.

When the Board delegates management and administration
functions to management, it has given clear directions on the
powers of management with respect to the circumstances where
management is to report back and obtain prior approval from the
Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments
on behalf of the Company. The Company has formalised functions
reserved to the Board and the management respectively; and the
Board reviews those arrangements periodically to ensure that they
remain appropriate to the Company’s needs.

The management and staff of the Company ensure the successful
implementation of the strategies, business directions and policies
as determined by the Board. In doing so, they must apply business
principles and ethics, which are consistent with those expected by
the Board and Shareholders and other stakeholders.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors help to ensure that the
Board can make independent judgement efficiently and effectively.
They also take the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise.
They scrutinise the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitor performance
reporting. They make a positive contribution to and independent
judgement on the development of the Company’s strategies,
policies, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standards of conduct through board meetings by bringing in
independent, constructive and informed comments. They form a
strong independent element on the Board.

The Independent Non-executive Directors possess appropriate
professional qualification. Among them, some possess expertise in
accounting or financial management. They give the Board and
Board committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills,
expertise and varied backgrounds and qualifications through
regular attendance and active participation. Independent Non-
executive Directors attend general meetings to gain and develop a
balanced understanding of the view of the shareholders of the
Company.

Each Independent Non-executive Director has also submitted an
annual written confirmation to the Company confirming his
independence as regards each of the factors referred to in Rule
3.13(1) to (8) of the Listing Rules. All Independent Non-executive
Directors are engaged by contract every year and are subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association and the Listing Rules. The Company considered that
all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Mechanisms to Ensure Independent Views

The Board has adopted effective mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board. Subject to
approval of the Chairman of the Board, Directors may seek, at the
Company’s expense, independent legal, financial or other
professional advices from advisors independent to those advising
the Company as and when necessary in appropriate circumstances
to enable them to discharge their responsibilities effectively. The
Board will review the implementation and effectiveness of such
mechanisms on an annual basis.

The Board considers that the above mechanisms are effective in

ensuring that independent views and input are provided to the
Board.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Directors’ responsibilities

All Directors devote sufficient time and attention to the Group’s
affairs and have actively participated in the Board meetings to
discuss the overall strategies, business directions and policies of
the Group. Throughout the year, the Company held seven regular
Board meetings, and one general meeting. To ensure that Directors
could obtain all related information to make an informed decision
and to perform their duties and responsibilities, documents for the
Board meeting were supplied to Directors for their consideration
before the meeting according to the regulations set out in the
Listing Rules and code provisions of the CG Code.

The attendance of board meetings and general meeting(s) during
the year is set out on page 65.

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements. As at 31 March 2023, none of the Directors
were aware of any material uncertainty relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. As such, the Directors have
prepared the Company’s financial statements on a going concern
basis. Reporting responsibilities of external auditors on the financial
statements are set out in “Independent Auditor’s Report” (pages
104 to 113).

Board proceedings

The Board makes arrangement to provide opportunities for all
Directors to include matters in the agenda of regular Board
meetings. At least 14 days’ notices are given in respect of regular
Board meetings. For regular Board meetings, an agenda and
accompanying board papers are sent, in full, to all Directors in a
timely manner and at least 3 days before the intended date of
board meeting. For all other Board meetings, Directors are given as
much notice as reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Board proceedings (cont'd)

Management provides the Board and Board committees with
adequate and timely information which is accurate, clear,
complete and reliable to enable Directors to make informed
decisions on matters placed before them, and perform their duties
and responsibilities as directors. Management provides adequate
explanations and information to the Board to enable Directors to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before them for approval. In addition, the Board
and each Director have separate and independent access to the
Company’s senior management. All Directors have free access to
board papers and related materials. Board papers and related
materials are in a form and quality sufficient to enable the Board to
make informed decisions on matters placed before it. Queries
raised by Directors are provided with a prompt and full response.
Minutes of each Board meeting and Board committee meeting are
kept by the company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) and are
available for inspection by any Director.

Minutes record in sufficient detail the matters considered by the
Board and Board committees and the decisions reached. Draft and
final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their comment
and records respectively within a reasonable time after the Board
meeting is held.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that good information
flow within the Board, Board policies, Board procedures,
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. Moreover,
upon request from any Director, the Company provides separate
independent professional advice to Directors to assist them to
perform their duties at the Company’s expense.

If a substantial shareholder or Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a
physical board meeting set up for that purpose and voted on by
Directors who, and whose close associates, have no material
interest in the transaction. Independent Non-executive Directors
who, and whose close associates, have no material interests in the
transaction should be present at that board meeting. Directors’
concerned must abstain from voting on any Board resolution and
will not be counted in the quorum.
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THE BOARD (coNT'D)

Board effectiveness

A formal, considered and transparent procedure is in place for the
appointment of new directors. Newly appointed directors are
provided with briefing materials to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and business, and are
fully aware of their responsibilities under statute and common law,
the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements and the
Company’s business and governance policies. In addition, an
orderly succession for appointments is maintained to ensure high
standard of corporate governance of the Company. Every Director
is subject to re-election by rotation at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years.

To ensure Directors’ contribution remains informed and relevant,
the Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training to Directors. In addition, the Company encourages
Directors and the senior management to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge,
skills and understanding of the business and markets in which the
Group operates. Directors are timely updated on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, as well as information related to the
Group’s business and operations, to ensure compliance, enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices and
enable them to discharge duties properly. This has involved various
forms of activities including attending seminars, reading materials
relevant to the Company’s business, director’s duties and
responsibilities.

The records of training of Directors received during the year is set
out on page 65.

Directors’ and Officers’ insurance

The Company has arranged an insurance cover in respect of legal
action against its Directors and officers (as defined in the Listing
Rules) arising from corporate activities.
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Chairman of the Board and Managing Director (in this report,
“Managing Director” is equivalent to “Chief Executive” set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules) are two clearly separated roles
and are performed by different individuals. Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry,
Chairman of the Board, is responsible for managing the Board. Mr.
TSE Sun Po, Tony, Managing Director, is responsible for the
Company’s operations. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director has been clearly
defined and the written terms of reference have been set.

Responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board are as follows:
(@) Providing leadership for the Board;

(b)  Ensuring all Directors are properly briefed on matters to be
discussed at Board meetings;

(c) Ensuring all Directors receive adequate, accurate, clear,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner;

(d) Ensuring that the Board works effectively, performs its
responsibilities and discusses all key and appropriate issues in
a timely manner;

(e) Ensuring that, the Company Secretary draws up and approves
the agenda for Board meetings on the Chairman’s behalf,
taking into account any matters proposed by other Directors
for inclusion in the agenda;

() Ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communication with Shareholders and that views of
Shareholders are communicated to the Board as a whole;

(g) Ensuring good corporate governance practices are in place
and procedures are established;

(h) Encouraging all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs, giving each Director an
opportunity to express his views at Board meetings, taking the
lead to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of the
Company, encouraging Directors with different views to voice
their concerns, allowing sufficient time for discussion of
issues and ensuring that Board decisions fairly reflect Board
consensus;
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seeing is believing

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR (coNT'D) FTERESHELE @)

(i)  Holding meetings with Independent Non-executive Directors () SFESBAMESIIFE2ERTEBIHY
annually without the presence of other Directors; and TEEEE R

()  Promoting a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the () REAMRBEBIWL  REZBEE 4
effective contribution of all Directors, in particular Non- BIRFHTES)HESSHFHAERER X
executive Directors, and building constructive relations BUPTESEIYTES2HAEZRME 2
between Executive and Non-executive Directors. %o

The Managing Director is appointed by the Board. His ZEZ@KEHREESEE BESE:
responsibilities are as follows:

(@) Providing leadership for the management; (a EEEEE,;

(b) Implementing and reporting to the Board on the Company’s (b)) #TEEEZEFERAD R 2K ;
strategies;

ik

(c) Overseeing the implementation by the Company of the (o) EBARQAREBEESEIYZER;

objectives set by the Board;

(d) Providing all such information to the Board as is necessary to  (d) HAEEEFRHEREEFREMZT—IER
enable the Board to monitor the performance of management;

(e) Leading the management of the Company’s relationships with ~ (e) EEARQREEBEFMHE ZBR ;
its stakeholders;

()  Putting in place programmes for management development () EBEEEEHES RETTE
and succession;

(8 Working with the Head of Finance, establishing and (g HEBHBEESHE  SIFTREFEE 2RIE
maintaining proper internal controls and systems as well as BERRGIE  AREBEEEREF R
disclosure controls and procedures; and

(h) Discharging such duties and authorities as may be delegated (h) ZREFSCEEAREETHERTERED -
in writing to him by the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Investment Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees
of the Company are established with defined written terms of
reference.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, established on 22 March 2000, is currently
comprised of three Independent Non-executive Directors. They
are:

Mr. WAN Sze Chung
(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman)
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic
(Independent Non-executive Director)
Dr. LUK Wang Kwong (Independent Non-executive Director)

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee is clearly defined
and posted on the Company’s website. The roles and function of
the Audit Committee are as follows:

(@) To be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of
the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

To review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The audit committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

To develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose,
“external auditor” includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm or any
entity that a reasonable and informed third party knowing all
relevant information would reasonably conclude to be part of
the audit firm nationally or internationally. The audit
committee should report to the Board, identifying and making
recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Audit Committee (cont’d)

(d)

(e)

To act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

To monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained in them;

To discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the auditor may wish to
discuss (in the absence of management where necessary);

To review the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems covering all controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls;

To discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed
its duty to have effective systems. This discussion should
include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
function;

To consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on
its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings, and review the statements concerning risk
management and internal control to be included in the annual
report;

Where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-
ordination between the internal and external auditors, to
review and approve the annual internal audit plan, and to
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Company, and to
review and monitor its effectiveness;

To review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Audit Committee (cont’d)

()

(q)

To review the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response;

To review the Company’s statement on internal control
systems (where one is included in the annual report) prior to
endorsement by the Board;

To ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter;

To report to the Board on the matters in the code provision of
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules;

To review arrangements that employees of the Company can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters. The committee should ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent
investigation of these matters and for appropriate follow-up
action; and

To consider other topics as defined by the Board.

In addition, the Audit Committee is responsible for corporate
governance functions as below:

(a)

To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

To review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Audit Committee (cont'd)

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the interim results
for the six months ended 30 September 2022, to discuss the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
with management, and to review the annual budget for audit fees.
In addition, the Audit Committee considered and reviewed the
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2023 on 23 June 2023,
and proposed to the Board for their approval.

In addition, during the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies (including the Inside
Information Policy) and practices, reviewed the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, reviewed and monitored the Company’s code of
conduct and compliance manual, reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

All members of the Audit Committee actively participated in the
committee’s meetings. During the year, the Audit Committee met
twice, full minutes of which are kept by the Company Secretary.
Draft and final versions of minutes of meetings are sent to all
committee members for their comment and records within a
reasonable time after the meeting. Discussion results and
recommendations have been proposed to the Board for its review,
and related recommendations were adopted by the Board. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform
its duties and is authorised by the Board to obtain independent
legal or other professional advice.

The attendance of committee members at Audit Committee
meetings during the year is set out on page 65.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Audit Committee (cont'd)

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the following external auditors’
remuneration has been incurred by the Company:

External auditors SNEEAZ ZhEm
— Audit services — ERRE
— Non-audit services — FEZRE
Total st

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the fees to external auditors,
amounting to HK$1,760,000 were primarily for audit services and
those for non-audit services amounted to HK$495,000,
approximately 22.0% of the total fees. The non-audit services
provided by the auditors were tax compliance (HK$0.19 million)
and other assurance (HK$0.30 million) services.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 27 March 2012. It
is currently comprised of two Independent Non-executive Directors
and one Executive Director. They are:

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic
(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman)
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Executive Director)
Mr. WAN Sze Chung (Independent Non-executive Director)

The Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee is clearly
defined and posted on the Company’s website.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Nomination Committee (cont’d)
The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are as
follows:

(@) Review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(b) Identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) Assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and

(d) Make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee reports to the Board on its discussion
results and recommendations after each meeting and is provided
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and is authorised by
the Board to obtain independent legal or other professional advice.

During the year, the Nomination Committee met once to review
the Board and senior management of the Company. The Committee
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
reviewed the board diversity policy, reviewed the time and
contribution from Directors, assessed the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors, made recommendations on
the appointment and reappointment of Directors at the 2022
annual general meeting having considered them having the
required character, integrity, independence (as appropriate to
Independent Non-executive Directors), professional knowledge
and experience to fulfil their role and to contribute to the Group,
and discussed the succession planning for the Company’s Board
and senior management.

In addition, the Committee continued to carry out the nomination
policy (including procedures, process and criteria to select and
recommend candidates for directorship). Discussion results and
recommendations have been proposed to the Board for its review.

The attendance of committee members at Nomination Committee
meetings during the year is set out on page 65.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Nomination Committee (cont’d)

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has an appropriate mix of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives. The members of Board possess diverse
competences, spanning business management, advisory and
monitoring, accounting and financial management, legal, brand
building, sales and marketing and I.T. development. The profile of
Directors is set out in Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management on pages 26 to 28.

The Board has adopted its own board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”). The Board Diversity Policy aims to achieve
diversity of the Board through consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience. Board appointments will
be based on objective criteria having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee of the
Company shall review the Board Diversity Policy as appropriate
and make recommendations on any proposed revisions to the
Board.

To comply with the Board Diversity Policy and improve gender
diversity on the Board, the Board has aggressively sought out
candidates who are competent and suitable to serve as board
members. The current Board comprises eight male members and
no female member. Since the Board was comprised with the single
gender Directors as at the date of this report, the Board aims to
nominate and appoint at least one female candidate to be our
Board member no later than 31 December 2024. In order to
increase gender diversity in the Board in the upcoming years, the
Company will also proactively provide training to our senior
management and will take into account the factor of gender
diversity when recruiting suitable candidates for our senior
management in the future.

As at the date of this report, the Company has 141 employees in
total comprising of 65 females and 76 males (a female-to-male
ratio of 0.86), reflecting a gender equality principle generally
adhered by the Company. The Company is mindful of the
objectives as set out in the diversity policy when assessing the
candidacy of the employees, and will ensure that the Company
shall continue to follow the policy.

At present, there are 3 Independent Non-executive Directors in the
Board, accounting for over 1/3 of the total numbers of the Board.
They bring them with diverse academic and professional
qualifications and experience to the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 29 September
2005. It is currently comprised of two Independent Non-executive
Directors and one Executive Director. They are:

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman)

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun (Executive Director)
Mr. WAN Sze Chung (Independent Non-executive Director)

The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee is clearly
defined and posted on the Company’s website. The roles and
function of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(a)

To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors” and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

To review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
for Non-executive Directors;

To consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

To review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

To review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

To ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Remuneration Committee (cont'd)

(i)  To consult the Chairman and/or the chief executive about
their remuneration proposals for Executive Directors (except
the Chairman and/or the chief executive as appropriate). The
committee should have access to professional advice if
necessary; and

() To consider other topics as defined by the Board.

The Remuneration Committee reports to the Board on its discussion
results and recommendations after each meeting and is provided
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and is authorised by
the Board to obtain independent legal or other professional advice.

The remuneration policy of the Group (including Directors) is set
out on page 36. Details of remuneration payable to the senior
management, by band, are set out on page 36.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee met once to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
Executive Directors and senior management of the Company. The
Committee also reviewed and determined the policy for the
remuneration of Executive Directors; assessed their performance
and approved the terms of service contracts of Directors. No
Director had participated in the determination of his or her own
remuneration.

The attendance of committee members at Remuneration
Committee meetings during the year is set out on page 65.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee was established on 12 June 2023. It is
currently comprised of two Executive Directors and one
Independent Non-executive Director. They are:

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic

(Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman)
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Executive Director and Managing Director)
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun (Executive Director)

The Terms of Reference of the Investment Committee is clearly
defined and posted on the Company’s website. The roles and
function of the Investment Committee are as follows:

(@) To review and evaluate the Group’s development plan and
strategies and to make recommendations to the Board
thereon;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (coNT'D)

Investment Committee (cont'd)

(b) To review and make recommendations to the Board on key
proposals of investment (including mergers and acquisitions,
joint venture and equity investments) and financing projects
of the Group for business development purpose;

(c) To review and make recommendations to the Board on other
significant investment matters;

(d) To review and evaluate the Group'’s risks exposure from its
investment projects as a whole;

(e) To review the relevant Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
evaluate whether any proposed investment project has or
would attract any disclosure or compliance obligation
thereunder;

()  To determine whether the proposed investment projects are
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole;

(g) To supervise the implementation of the abovementioned
investment projects duly approved by the Board; and

(h) To review, study, evaluate or make recommendations on
other matters as delegated by the Board.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The selection, appointment and dismissal of the Company
Secretary of the Company is approved by the Board.

Our Company Secretary is Mr. YU Chi Wah. He is also the Chief
Financial Officer and is employed on a full-time basis. During the
year, he had taken no less than 15 hours relevant professional
training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Our
Company Secretary reports to the Board Chairman, co-ordinates
the supply of information to the Directors and facilitates induction
and professional development of Directors.

During the year, Board and Board committee meeting agenda and
accompanying board papers and minutes were provided by the
Company Secretary on behalf of the Chairman of the Board and
board committee chairmen. Furthermore, all Directors have access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that
good information flow within the Board, Board policies, Board
procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed.
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BUSINESS MODEL, PURPOSE AND VALUES

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding. The Company’s subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the importing, wholesale, retail and installation of
architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections
and furniture and provision of interior design services, project and
contract management in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”).

The objective of the Group is to become one of the leading quality
suppliers of architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom, kitchen
collections and furniture. Our goal is to enhance the brand value
of the Group by managing customers’ expectation of getting
products that commensurate with their lifestyles. In addition, the
Group commits to operate in an economically, socially and
environmentally responsible manner whilst balancing the interests
of diverse stakeholders.

Founded over four decades ago, the Group has established
reputation and gained trust from major contractors, property
developers and dealers. The Group also runs retail outlets and
showrooms.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

The Group endeavours to generate sustainable return to
shareholders through:

(a)

Leveraging our core competencies in products and services to
generate profits;

(b) Maintaining collaborative relationships with staff members,

customers and suppliers; and

Adopting a prudent financial management policy at all times.

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022/23

EBEX - REREE

ARBREBHERZAERDBERLT - AD
ANEREBAREEZR - ALANMBARNEE
REBRHPEARANBE(HEDRESED - #13 -
ZERZEREELS - @8 BERBREM UK
RHZARRE HEREGHNER -

FEEBIRBEELE - B8 BERBREMN
AEBEHER RMEAREF2EESIAMEE
o YIaBRFPH%E  BREALREE 2 mEEE- 1t
Iy AEBHNELEELERSE  HERRREL
KGR E KRS o

AEBRYBMNTELR  £EREVEE RS

FERER PERBRARCHEB 2 EHE o XEET

KETEEMRRIE -

ER R

AEBAORBBTIREBRRERAIFEDIR :

@ ANEAZRMEERERBREIENZOBRS DA
BRI ;

HET  FFRHEEEASSFRE R

0 HABTEENUBEEBE -



RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Anti-corruption policy

The Company has adopted an anti-corruption policy to govern
acceptance of advantages by employees and a whistleblowing
mechanism to provide guidance to employees and external
stakeholders to report concerns about any suspected or actual
improprieties relating to the Group.

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
shareholders” investment and the Group’s assets. The Board is also
responsible for the risk management and internal control system
and reviewing their adequacy and effectiveness.

The systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Process of risk management and internal control systems

Risk ~
Assessment
BTG

The Process of

r Internal

Control
Monitorin 450
R B B 1=

il

.

AERRR

Internal controls encompass a set of rules, policies, and procedures
that the Group implements to provide reasonable assurance that:

(@ The Group financial reports are reliable;
(b)  The Group operations are effective and efficient; and
(c) The Group activities comply with applicable laws and

regulations. The Board, management, and other personnel are
responsible for the internal control system.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont’'d)

The key components of the Group'’s internal control structure are

as follows:

B EE R AEBEELE (@)

BEREERABEZRSNBRE (&)
REBABEZRBNETEZARBIWT ¢

Control Environment

Establishing a foundation for monitoring internal control begins
with an effective tone at the top of the organisation. The reason
of this is so important that management’s attitude regarding
monitoring will determine the selection of evaluators and the
approach to monitoring. The tone set by the management will
influence the way staff members conduct monitoring activities.
In turn, the Board will influence and guide how management
applies and conducts monitoring.
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Control Activities
The internal control of the Group includes the following areas:

* Integrity and ethics

e Commitment to competence

e Board of Directors and Audit Committee participation
e Management philosophy and operating style

e Organisational structure

e Assignment of authority and responsibility

e Human resource policies and practices

REER NI BIE LT SHES

o miERBEIRT

. MAEE

. EZERENEZEENSH
e EEISHRLEEER

. HBRE

. DIRFERMEE

. ANERBERER

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022/23




RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont’d)

seeing is believing
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Information and Communication

The Group’s risk management structure is shown as below:

Implementation / Execution

B/ 81T

Board of Directors

Ultimate responsible body
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Governance
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Management
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Decision-making body
R

)

Department /

Functional Heads
EBPY /B BEEE

Risk owners

mEEEA

The Board has the overall responsibility in ensuring that the
Company establishes and maintains robust and effective risk
management and internal control systems for the Group.

The Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, oversees the
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Company, including financial controls, operational controls
and compliance controls.

The management is the decision-making body of the risk
management control system. It comprises members from
various functions of the Group so as to provide holistic
coverage of the Group as a whole.

Department and functional heads are responsible for managing
risk during their day-to-day operations. They operate in
accordance with the clearly defined procedures,
responsibilities and limits of authority. They identify and assess
risk associated with their operations and report to the
management for review.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont’'d)

B EE R AEBEELE (@)

BEREERABEZRSNBRE (&)

Monitoring

Monitoring of internal control is performed through application
of both on-going evaluations and separate evaluations. These
evaluations ascertain whether other components of internal
control continue to function as designed and intended. In
addition, these evaluations facilitate identification of internal
control deficiencies and communicate them to appropriate
officials responsible for taking corrective actions. More serious
deficiencies are communicated to higher levels of management
and to the Board of Directors when appropriate.
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Risk Assessment

Business risks change over time. The internal control system
needs to be capable of determining that the controls in place
are relevant and effective in addressing new risks. A monitoring
process must be capable of addressing the need for revisions in
the design of controls based on changing risk.

Effective internal control systems must be capable of containing
risks at an acceptable level to ensure effective and efficient
operations on an on-going basis. Thus, continuous feeding of
information and communication help monitoring the changes
and reaction.

By the use of the modern L.T. system to record, maintain and
produce outputs of accurate, complete, and timely information,
the Board and management team can:

(@) Evaluate the risks associated with the updated mode of
collecting, storing, and reporting data (e.g. recording the
sale of merchandise, updating a customer’s address,
preparing a report on sales by product);

(b) Design specific control procedures that help control the
risks applicable to the new design; and

(c) Ensure accountants are familiar with I.T. capabilities and
risks, and recognise the opportunities that the I.T. system
provides to prevent, detect, and correct errors and
irregularities as the business events are executed.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Process of risk management and internal control systems (cont'd)
Risk assessment identifies and analyses the relevant risks associated
with the Group’s objectives. It forms the basis for determining what
risks need to be controlled and the controls required to manage
them. Our head of risk management has periodic meetings with
directors and the management team to oversee and discuss the
proper operating style with each other.

Directors and the management team will then make decision and
delegate to each department for execution. Through daily
communication and information gathered, Directors and
management team will be able to monitor the daily operation and
risks that might occur, thus be able to prevent or minimise them. It
also makes sure operations are in compliance with laws, rules, and
regulations. At the same time, each department’s missions and
goals are achieved.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company recognises its disclosure obligation under the SFO
and the Listing Rules. The Company conducts its affairs with close
regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission. The Company
has included in its staff handbook a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential information including Inside
Information (as defined under the SFO) in order to make sure
appropriate handling and dissemination of Inside Information is in
place.

The Group has set out the procedures and internal controls for
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to
comply with code provision D.2.4(e) of the CG Code. There are
guidelines to the directors, officers and all relevant employees of
the Group to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent the
Company from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements.
The handling and dissemination of inside information of the Group
is strictly controlled and remains confidential including but not
limited by the following ways:

— define the requirements of periodic financial and operational
reporting to the Board and Company Secretary to enable them
to assess inside information and make timely disclosures, if
necessary;

— restrict access control to inside information by employees on
a need-to-know basis, and safeguarding the confidentiality of
the inside information before it is properly disclosed to public;

— reminder to employees who are in possession of inside
information to ensure that they are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality; and

— The Board and the senior management review the safety
measures regularly to ensure inside information is properly
handled and disseminated.

seeing is believing
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONT'D)

Review of risk management and internal control systems for the
year ended 31 March 2023

The Group carried out control activities comprising a diverse range
of policies and procedures, including: conducting reviews of actual
performance, reviewing of performance reports, checking
information processing in transactions, performing physical
controls, analysing performance indicators and dividing and
segregating duties amongst different people. These can help the
Group ensure proper internal control is in place across
departments/divisions.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, oversees management in
the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company, including financial
controls, operational controls and compliance controls. During the
year, the Audit Committee conducted an annual review to consider
and discuss the risk management and internal control systems
(including but not limited to, the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function) and
reported the same to the Board. The Board conducted an annual
review to consider environmental, social and governance
performance and reporting.

During the year, the Company did not have an internal audit
department; details of which are set out on page 39. The Board
reviewed the scope and quality of management’s on-going
monitoring of systems of risks and the internal controls, examined
the extent and frequency of communication of monitoring results
to the Board and Board committees. Based on the review, save as
disclosed under the section “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” on
the Directors’ Report, the Board considers that there is no
significant change in the nature and extent of risks and the
Company’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment since the last annual review. The Board
considered that the systems of risk management and internal
control of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 were
effective and adequate.

Based on the internal financial controls, half-yearly financial
reporting and timely updates on Listing Rules requirements, the
Group’s processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance are considered by the Board as effective.
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seeing is believing

ATTENDANCE OF BOARD MEETING, BOARD EZeed EFTEBTZEEEER
COMMITTEE MEETING AND ANNUAL GENERAL BRERBF RS HERBR RIS 8%
MEETING AND TRAINING RECORDS

The attendance of Directors at Board and Board committee BE-ZE-_=Z=F=ZA=Z=+—-HLFEEENESFT
meetings, the annual general meeting and training records for the REZEETZEEEH RREFASHERBR

year ended 31 March 2023 is as follows: RIENFCEMT
Annual

Audit  Nomination Remuneration General Types of
Director Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting Training
g EZe ENZEE REZEE HFWZEE RRBEFAE  EIEN
Executive Directors YHES
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry AMAERE 717 n 17 AB
Mr. TSE Sun Wai, Albert ARELE 71 1l AB
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony MHERE 7 n AB
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin AR 71 il AB
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun HEmrE 6/7 1 1 AB
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BUKHTES
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic RERE 517 20 " L " AB
Mr. WAN Sze Chung RERLE 517 0 n n n AB
Dr. LUK Wang Kwong BLEEL 517 0 n AB
Notes: By &E -
A:  Attending seminars, conference, forums and/or trainings A ZIIWMEE - 8F - SWRERHE
B:  Reading newspapers, journals and/or updates B: BIEHE SR ABHER
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS EHERRES

It is the Company’s policy to have open communication and AAFFTEHBBBERAFREEN ZBEK - KE
disclose information in a fair manner. Information disclosure is a EBEXERALEEGREZETELE - RRATEM
key means to enhance corporate governance standard. HWENERFEARARTNRER > XAAQFRERE
Shareholders can assess the Company’s performance based on the ZE & o &N & kA2 B # s www.ebon.com.hk A #
information disclosed and provide feedback to the Company. BAEBAEEREZERZEHEHEFBEMRR
Information relating to the Group and its business, together with its

financial conditions, are disclosed in this report and the Company’s

website at www.ebon.com.hk.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (conT'D)

Shareholders’” Communication Policy

The Board has adopted a Shareholders” Communication Policy*
aiming to provide the Company’s shareholders, in appropriate
circumstances, the investment community at large, with ready,
equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company, so that Shareholders are able to
exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to allow them and
the investment community to engage actively with the Company.

To achieve this, the Company has established a number of
channels to maintain an on-going dialogue with its Shareholders
and the investment community. The Company is committed to
providing information to Shareholders and the investment
community mainly through the Company’s financial reports
(interim and annual reports), annual general meetings and other
general meetings that may be convened, as well as making
available all corporate communications on the Company’s website
at www.ebon.com.hk. The Shareholders” Communication Policy is
reviewed annually to ensure its effectiveness and compliance with
the prevailing regulatory and other requirements. Effective and
timely dissemination of information to Shareholders and the
investment community shall be ensured at all times.

* For the purpose of this Policy, reference to the investment community is
intended to include the Company’s potential investors as well as analysis
reporting and analysis the Company’s performance.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

(@) Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s registrar. Please refer to
pages 4 to 5 of this Annual Report for the address of the
Company’s principal and branch share registrars.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any
reasonable time make a request for the Company’s
information, send their written enquiries and concerns to the
Board to the extent such information is publicly available.
Such requests, enquiries and concerns shall be addressed to
the Company Secretary of the Company at its Head Office as
follows:

The Company Secretary
16th—18th Floors

First Commercial Building

33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022/23
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (coNT'D)

General Meetings

All registered shareholders shall receive either notice of the annual
general meeting and extraordinary general meeting (together the
“Meeting”) or equivalent notification letter by post or by electronic
means. The notice of the Meeting contains an agenda, resolutions
proposed and a proxy form. All shareholders, whose shares are
registered in the register of members, are entitled to attend the
Meeting. Shareholders who cannot attend the Meeting can appoint
their proxies or the chairman of the meeting as their proxies by
completing the proxy form enclosed with the notice of the meeting
and returning it to the Company’s share registrar. Pursuant to the
Company’s Articles of Association and the Listing Rules, all votes
of shareholders at the Meeting will be taken by poll.

Procedures for demanding a vote by poll, together with the notice
of the Meeting, have been enclosed with a circular despatched to
the shareholders. The procedures are read out at the Meeting by
the chairman of the meeting so as to make sure shareholders are
familiar with the detailed procedures for conducting a poll. The
Company arranges to address questions from shareholders in the
Meeting. In addition, separate resolutions for each substantially
separated issues will be proposed to the Meeting for the approval
of shareholders.

General meeting is the principal opportunity and ideal venue for
shareholders to meet and exchange views on the Company’s
business with the Directors and the management. An annual
general meeting is an annual significant event for shareholders and
the Board to exchange constructive opinions. All Directors
(including the Chairman of the Board) shall attend the annual
general meeting. Apart from attending the annual general meeting,
the Chairman of the Board shall arrange the chairmen of each
Board Committee to attend and answer questions at the annual
general meeting. The Company’s auditor shall also attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of
the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.

seeing is believing
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (conT'D)

Dividend Policy

The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which sets out when considering any payment of a dividend, the
Board shall take into account of (i) the profitability of the Group for
the financial year; (ii) the Group’s general financial condition
supporting its normal operations; (iii) the Group’s actual and
expected business performance; (iv) the Group’s overall results of
operation, financial performance and liquidity position; (v) the
Group’s expected capital commitments, future cash requirements
and future business development plans and prospects such as
market conditions; (vi) retained earnings and distributable reserves
of the Company and each of the members of the Group; (vii) the
general economic conditions, business cycles of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position of
the Group; and (viii) any other factors that the Board considers
relevant and appropriate. The Board will continually review the
Dividend Policy from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1. The Company has only one class of shares and the Articles of
Association of the Company set out the rights of our
shareholders.

2. Shareholders have right to receive corporate communications
issued by the Company.

3. Shareholders whose shares held in Tricor Abacus Limited
(“Tricor”) may notify the Company from time to time through
Tricor if they wish to receive our corporate communications.

4. Shareholders are furnished with comprehensive background
information in a timely manner concerning the matters to be
decided at general meetings and they are well informed of the
rules including the voting procedures that govern general
meetings.

5.  Subject to the Articles of Association and the rules prescribed
by the Stock Exchange from time to time, shareholders have
right to participate and vote in general meetings. Any
shareholder not attending a general meeting can give proxy to
vote on his/her behalf. Forms of Proxy are sent to shareholders
of the Company together with the notice of meeting.

6.  Shareholders have right to raise questions at general meetings.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (cONT'D)

7.

10.

11.

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company may request the Board, through the Company
Secretary, to convene an extraordinary general meeting.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all votes of
shareholders at the annual general meeting will be taken by
poll. The chairman of the meeting will explain at the
commencement of the meeting the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll. On a poll, every shareholder present in
person or by proxy will have one vote for every share held.
A shareholder who is a corporation will be present in person
if a duly authorised representative of such shareholder is
present at the meeting. A shareholder present in person or
by proxy who is entitled to more than one vote does not have
to use all his or her votes or to cast all his or her votes the
same way. The result of the poll shall be deemed to be a
resolution of the meeting. After the closure of a general
meeting, the poll results will be published on the Company’s
website at www.ebon.com.hk and the HKEXnews website at
www.hkexnews.hk.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in key corporate
governance decisions. Sufficient time is allowed for
shareholders to consider the candidates being nominated
before the general meetings.

The Company ensures that votes cast are properly counted
and recorded. Voting results are verified by independent
scrutineers and announced in a timely manner after the
closure of general meeting and posted on the Company’s and
HKEXnews websites.

Shareholder who has a material interest in the subject
transaction may be required to abstain from voting on the
relevant resolution at the relevant general meeting as required
by the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (conT'D)

Proposing a person for election as a Director

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
Director for election as a Director at any general meeting, the
shareholder should lodge a notice, signed by the shareholder (other
than the person to be proposed), and a notice signed by the person
to be proposed of his willingness to be elected (together the
“Notices”) at the Head Office or at the Registration Office provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such Notices
are given, shall be at least seven days and that (if the Notices are
submitted after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgement of such
Notices shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election and end no
later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Putting forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions in the Company’s Articles of Association or
the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands for shareholders to put
forward new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who
wish to put forward a new resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s memorandum of association (the “Memorandum
of Association”) and articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”), in both English and Chinese, are available on the
Company’s website at www.ebon.com.hk and the HKEXnews
website at www.hkexnews.hk. There was no significant change to
the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2023. In order to (i)
bring the Articles of Association in line with the relevant
requirements of the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands, the
Listing Rules and the Companies Ordinance; and (ii) make other
consequential and housekeeping amendments, the Company
adopted the second amended and restated Articles of Association
(the “New Articles of Association”) in substitution for, and to the
exclusion of, the existing Articles of Association at the annual
general meeting held on 7 September 2022 with effect from 7
September 2022. Save for mentioned above, there were no other
changes in the constitutional documents of the Company. The New
Articles of Association of the Company has been published on the
websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and the Company on 7 September 2022.
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OVERVIEW

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out
in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. It
provides an annual summary of the Group’s environmental and
social performance for the financial year ended 31 March 2023.
For corporate governance, please refer to pages 38 to 70.

SCOPE OF THIS REPORT

This Report aims to provide a balanced representation of the
Group’s performance in the environmental and social (employment
and labour practices, operating practices and community
involvement) aspects and covers the Group’s operations in Hong
Kong. The Group will expand the scope of disclosures when the
data collection system is better established.

The Group’s operations in Hong Kong:
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Note: Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers our operations in Hong Kong
only. Our Hong Kong operations represent the core of all of our operations,
contributing over 90% of our Group’s turnover in the financial year ended 31
March 2023.
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ASSURANCE

This Report has been independently verified by the Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency, with the scope and basis of the
verification set out in the Verification Statement of this Report.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board has delegated the environmental and social performance
to an ESG workgroup (“ESG Workgroup”) which comprises of a
director of the Company. The ESG workgroup, strengthens its
approach to sustainability and seeks to facilitate our business in
strategizing, planning, recording and reviewing various
departments more effectively using data analytics and reports back
to the Board. The Board is assisted by its ESG workgroup in
overseeing implementation of ensuring that effective risk
management and internal controls are in place. The Board has the
overall responsibility for the Group’s sustainability performance
and ESG reporting. Details of how the Board and ESG Workgroup
collaborate are set out on page 74. This Report was approved by
the Board on 23 June 2023.

VISION

Sustainability is a core part of values of E. Bon. The Group
envisions a community being knowledgeable and responsible in
their daily life and inspires others to do the same; and therefore
commits to operate in an economically, socially and
environmentally responsible manner whilst balancing the interests
of diverse stakeholders.

STRATEGY

When we execute business strategies, our sustainability vision
enables us to take account of our responsibility to the environment
and society in general. Areas such as occupational health and
safety, product responsibility and operating compliance are
identified and considered relevant to the Group by the Board. The
Group, through the ESG Workgroup, seeks to formulate policies
and approaches in order to address these areas.
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POLICY

At E. Bon, sustainability is embedded in our business operations
that create sustainable value with its stakeholders in economic,
environmental and social dimensions. The Group has developed a
dedicated sustainability policy which directs its operations towards
the best practice in areas such as business growth, environmental
protection, employment and labour practices, operating practices
and community investment. The sustainability policy commits the
Group to:

e Meeting all applicable legal and regulatory requirements on
sustainability issues;

e Pursuing good practices of sustainability in its operations;

e Implementing policies relating to business growth,
environmental protection, workplace quality, operating
practices and community investment;

e Encouraging our staff to be proactive in sustainability issues;

*  Promoting sustainability awareness along its value chain;

e Engaging our stakeholders in the sustainability process; and

e Monitoring and improving the sustainability performance.

seeing is believing
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APPROACH

Implementation and Governance Structure

The Group adopts both top-down and bottom-up approaches to
manage sustainability risks. The implementation and governance
structure allows the Group to communicate concerns and solutions
related to sustainability risks effectively.

Outcome

254

Input
BA

Board of Director

E=g

Ultimate responsible body
RREEME
Vision Result/Risk
ms l T - A

ESG Workgroup
B EREATHA

Governance body

———

ERIE
Strategy Result/Risk
PYI | ] s mR
Management
EEE
Decision-making body
REEHAE
Policy ‘[ Result (e.g. KPI)/Risk
BE 1 O (B0 - BRATRUER) AR

Department/
Function Heads

BP9, B EE
Risk owners

REBREEA

The Board has the overall responsibility for the Group’s
sustainability performance and ESG reporting. The Board sets out
the sustainability vision of the Group and has delegated its
execution and monitoring to an ESG workgroup which comprises
of a director of the Company. The Board reviews and provides final
approval for the sustainability approach, strategy and performance
at least once a year.

The ESG Workgroup is pivotal to the success of ESG management:
it lays down sustainability strategies based on the Board’s vision,
determines material aspects with reference to stakeholders’
responses, gathers information from departments and functional
heads and conducts analyses, directly reports back to the Board on
the Group’s performance and its recommendations.
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Implementation and Governance Structure (cont'd)

The management is the decision-making body of environmental
and social performance. It comprises members from various
functions of the Group to ensure that the Group’s policies are
working towards the best practice in areas such as business growth,
environmental protection, employment and labour practices,
operating practices and community investment.

Department and functional heads are responsible for managing
sustainability risks during their day-to-day operations. They identify
key performance indicators (KPIs) associated with their operations,
monitor and report to the management. In addition, as risk owners,
they identify and assess sustainability risks and report to the
management for review.

Stakeholder Engagement

The expectation of stakeholders is evolving and so as our
sustainability strategy. The Group regularly engages with
stakeholders in order to keep our sustainability strategy relevant to
stakeholders and our business.

The Group determines its sustainability strategy through a
systematic process including:

e Plan — Identify stakeholders and their interests
e Engage — Interact with stakeholders

*  Make decisions — Use stakeholder input to determine report
content

o Evaluate — Determine the effectiveness of stakeholder
engagement processes

Plan — Identify stakeholders and their interests

During the year, the ESG Workgroup took into consideration of
current course of business and refined the sampling of stakeholders.
Findings of the ESG Workgroup were submitted to the Board for
discussions and actions where necessary.
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)

Engage — Interact with stakeholders

We have maintained various communication channels to interact
with stakeholder groups. This allows us to promptly understand
and address their concerns more quickly. Set out below are major
daily communication channels:

Key internal stakeholders
TERABHDE

T &t @)

FHESR(E)

S — HEFHETE
EMEBEEBEEREETEANFNEHBREER
B WEGEHMRETHRIYNARCIEFEEEINE
He WTAFENAEEBRRE

Key external stakeholders
EFRHNBEHHE

2

* Social

X R

Other stakeholders

Hivis 0 &
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)

Engage — Interact with stakeholders (cont'd)

In addition, we regularly carry out materiality assessment to
determine important issues to both internal and external
stakeholders of the Group. It is an on-going process as material
issues may change over time. Based on the results obtained in the
last engagement cycle and the management’s insights, the ESG
Workgroup identified 13 material topics which would have a direct
or indirect impact on the Group’s ability to create, preserve or
erode economic, environmental and social value of itself, its
stakeholders and society at large. The Workgroup asked
stakeholders to indicate topics that they considered the Group
should give priority. This process enables us to categorise various
groups of stakeholders into an engagement matrix: (1) engage, (2)
communicate and (3) inform stakeholders. In this engagement
cycle, concerns on occupational safety and health, product
responsibility, operating compliance and financial performance are
highlighted.
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)

Engage — Interact with stakeholders (cont’d)

The assessment results were discussed and validated by the
management of the Group. The Group has decided to continue its
efforts on people issues where the Group has a relatively high
sustainability impact.

High concern
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APPROACH (coNT'D)

Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)

Make decisions — Use stakeholder input to determine report
content

During the year, the Group obtained stakeholders’ priorities to
work on over the coming year:

e Continue policy enhancement

> Review our current policies on major ESG subject areas
of staff safety and health, product quality and business
ethics

> Complete the collection of data in order to make
comparisons feasible

e Increase disclosure coverage

> Increase the disclosure in key performance indicators
(KPI) where material

Evaluate — Determine the effectiveness of stakeholder
engagement processes

The management is responsible to review the stakeholder
engagement process to ensure a sufficient coverage of stakeholders
and issues. Feedback of publication of ESG report is also included
in the evaluation process.

SUSTAINABILITY MEASUREMENT AND
MONITORING

The Group adopted Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules as the
sustainability measurement framework. It involves measuring
sustainability performance and setting targets in quantitative
manner. The ESG Workgroup regularly measure, record and
analyse key performance indicators (KPIs) for the Board’s
discussion and establishment of improvement plans.

The Group has set a reduction target of 5% in total greenhouse gas
(GHG) emission, non-hazardous waste disposal, total energy use
and water consumption from the performance recorded for the
year ended 31 March 2021 (the “Baseline”) by the year ending 31
March 2024.
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ENVIRONMENT

The Group endeavours to minimise pollution and protect the
environment by conserving natural resources, reducing the use of
energy and waste. We first implement business activities for which
we bear responsibility and address the environmental issues by
integrating environment considerations in our business. We create
environmental awareness amongst our staff members and
whenever possible and practical to do so. We aim to contribute to
the sustainable future and be in harmony with the global
environment.

A1 Emissions

Our electricity consumption accounts for a major part of its GHG
emissions, with local transport contributing less than 5% of the
total GHG emission. Measures aimed at improving energy
efficiency are outlined on page 82.

Deliveries to the same district are gathered in bundles to minimise
travel routes, hence reduce the use of petrol and emissions to air.
In addition, we encourage our staff to use public transport; for
those that are not accessible by public transport means, to carpool
when travelling on business. Discharges to water are made through
public sewages system. There was no discharge to water and/or
land. There was no prosecution to the Group in relation to air
emissions during the year. The Group has set to reduce total GHG
emissions per employee by 5% by 2024 from the Baseline.

The Group pays attention to hazardous waste such as e-waste. We
have implemented plans to reduce the quantity of e-waste as
outlined on page 84. Disposal of hazardous waste is conducted
safely in accordance to relevant regulations. There was no
prosecution to the Group in relation to hazardous waste handling
during the year.
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ENVIRONMENT (CONT'D) RiIE @)

A1 Emissions (cont'd) AT EER ()

Non-hazardous waste is sorted in accordance with the possibility SEEREZYUTER | WAIEEERAIRS E - RAF
of re-use. There was no prosecution to the Group in relation to E X AEELEZFNERAEZTERYEENRE o K
non-hazardous waste handling during the year. The Group has set &KBEFHEN _—_ZT_NFKEERENEETEEY
to reduce non-hazardous waste disposal per employee by 5% by EEEH{#EELHD 5% °

2024 from the Baseline.

Total air emissions (Scope 1) (tonnes) BERBEAR = (S8 1) (M) 0.005 0.005
NOx (tonnes) Ay (W) 0.005 0.004
SOx (tonnes) FRE 4 () 0.000 0.000
Particulate matter (tonnes) ROFR T (W) 0.000 0.000

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2) BEREBHENAE (HE1K2)

(CO,e tonnes) (ZEtmE=M) 434.219 510.268
Direct emissions (Scope 1) (CO,e tonnes) HiESK(EE 1) (ZERESEE) 14.171 14.817
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) (CO.e tonnes)  R#EHEmk (85E2) (Z S LBt EE0) 420.048 495.451
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) per floor area  E{@EEERI R EHEHK (8E2)

(CO,e tonnes/m?) (=& E 8N FHK) 0.055 0.054
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) per employee  S#{ES#IREEK (81E2)

(CO,e tonnes/employee) (ZEtmEEm 1ES) 3.231 3.697
Total emissions (Scope 1 and 2) BEUREEENHERAE (BE1R2)

per floor area (CO,e tonnes/m?) (ZEtmEENEFHK) 0.057 0.055
Total emissions (Scope 1 and 2) BEESNHHEE (BE1KR2)

per employee (CO,e tonnes/employee) (ZEtmEEW &) 3.340 3.808

Total hazardous waste produced (tonnes)' EEERYELRE (W)

Total non-hazardous waste produced (tonnes) EEREEYE+L LS (W) 8.820 8.554
Total non-hazardous waste produced BUEHEEMELESERY

per floor area (tonnes/m?) WE (W FH¥K) 0.001 0.001
Total non-hazardous waste produced BEREEMELEERERY
per employee (tonnes/employee) we (W ES) 0.068 0.064
! Disposal of hazardous waste is negligible. ! BEERYEEEMTEE -

BHFERERAT2022/235 58 S
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A2 Use of Resources

Electricity

We have been phasing out old air-conditioners by energy-saving
ones. Indoor temperature remains at 23°C-25°C.

Besides, old halogen lamps in shops have also been gradually
replaced by LED spotlights. It consumes less energy, helps lower
the indoor temperature (which requires less air-conditioning) but
maintains approximate brightness. We are planning to phase out
fluorescent lightings from T8 to T5 which consumes less energy.
The Group has set to reduce total energy use per employee by 5%
by 2024 from the Baseline.

Our promotional light boxes go automatically off from midnight to
morning to reduce energy consumption.
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ENVIRONMENT (CONT'D) BRE @

A2 Use of Resources (cont'd) A2ERER ()

Water 7

Water consumed is for hygienic purpose. Labels of “treasure every SBAKIAEEERR - KERZEERNVVE

drop” are posted at prominent place next to taps to encourage staff BB RESHEIRE HBEIRSHPAK -
members to minimise the use of water. We plan to replace old taps ~ Pt EHSE R KEEZRABENKEE kR
with sensor-type and/or add flow regulators to control water flow RATHERTHREREFHRIZEFKRE - R
when feasible. As a supplier of home fittings, we provide a range of HREREMHED  KMAHSHESERRER (R
products with green features (eco-sensor, flow regulator, smart {REESS - REAEHR - ERBRRE) - AKES
green design) to the market. The Group has set to reduce total FEE-_Z-_NFEERERENBEKEREER
water consumption per employee by 5% by 2024 from the E5%°

Baseline.

Total energy consumption (MWh) BER AR GRS 705.351 774117
Total direct energy consumption (MWh)? BHEERAEE KRE)? 49.593 51.875
Total direct energy consumption BNEAEBRNEENRRARE

per floor area (MWh/m?) (JFLBE " FHK) 0.007 0.006
Total direct energy consumption BEEENEEFEREES

per employee (MWh/employee) (KER 1ES) 0.381 0.387
Total indirect energy consumption (MWh)  RizaEREEE CKRE) 655.758 722.241
Total indirect energy consumption B ZEEENEEZERAEE

per floor area (MWh/m?) (KEEFFHK) 0.086 0.078
Total indirect energy consumption BEEENEEERAEE

per employee (MWh/employee) (kR 1EE) 5.044 5.390

Water consumption (m?) FekE (LK) 868.680 976.645

Water consumption per floor area (m*/m?) B @EEENEKE
(LT3R, F7K) 0.114 0.106
Water consumption per employee FEREENEKE (LFK EE)
(m*/employee) 6.682 7.288

Total packaging material (tonnes) BEMRIEE () 2.025 2.765

Total packaging material per floor area BUEHEENEREMHEE
(tonnes/m?) (W SEF53K) 0.000 0.000
Total packaging material per employee BEEENEEMPEE
(tonnes/employee) (W, BE) 0.016 0.021
2 Figure calculated with reference to EIA US. E HFRIBEIA USTHE ©

BB RERERAT2022/23EE88% 83
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
Electricity: Reduction
Details of electricity reduction is set out on page 82.

Paper: Reduction

All office paper and almost all paper for printing the Group’s
publications are Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)-certified or
recycled paper, except old publication (such as catalogues) which
is yet to disseminate. Not only adopting FSC certified paper, the
Group encourages the use of paperless communication. If printing
is necessary, we encourage environmentally friendly printing
manner (such as to print on both sides, reduce font size and
margin). For internal reference document, we upload to intranet or
circulate hardcopies instead of printing one copy for each staff
member. In addition, paper collection tray is placed next to printer
to gather single-side-printed paper for re-use.

Our box packaging fits the size of goods so as to minimise the use
of paper and provide the best protection to the goods contained.
The materials of our carton boxes fulfil relevant safety standards.
Besides, we encourage the use of carton boxes for multiple times.

o FSC is an independent, non-governmental, not-for-profit organisation
established to promote environmentally appropriate, socially beneficial, and
economically viable management of the world’s forests.

Electronic devices: Re-use

Technology advancement leads to shorter lifespan of electronic
devices. Certain equipment becomes obsolete or incompatible to
our operations after software upgrades. We are aware of potential
environmental and health hazards related to disposal of e-waste.
Hence, we have adopted the following initiative:

e Obsolete: Donate to non-governmental organisations such as
Hong Kong Caritas Computer Recycle Project

Total paper consumption (tonnes) ROEFERE (1)
Office paper (tonnes) N = R (H8)
Paper for printing publications (tonnes) FTENTI ¥ A% (W8 )
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A4 Climate Change

RiIE @)

A4 RiRB 1

Climate Change is undoubtedly one of the greatest challenges REZ{tBEERABEBNRARSE 22— HRAK

facing humanity. The World Economic Forum’s Global Risks

BEREB(CEZF2HERBRE)ERRITEHRK

Report 2022 ranks climate action failure as the top long-term JABANRHRE  AERRRTFEERBRE

threat, giving rise potentially to the most severe impacts over the
next decade. Therefore, we aim to build resilience to climate MR#E  UKHIE

IR o HIt iézf‘iaﬁﬁiﬂu%tﬂ& HRARE(CE
ERERIRECARIEREIE

change by identifying and managing climate change risks and #RESIHNEN  AEBREHHRMEE
opportunities and by developing strategies to adapt to and to  ERKIKE -

mitigate the impact the climate change on our operations.

The table below sets out our findings of significant climate-related TR&BEIIRMEE AR FEEBERE R BN TS

risks and opportunities:

Physical risks
BERER
Acute physical risks, such as super typhoon and

extreme weather events
BminBRER  flmBRRERERRREN

Chronic physical risks, such as rising temperature
feHERRE - fIaRR LT

Transition risks

ERE R
Technology risks, such as use of green technology
RAgERE - Flanfse BB
Market risks, such as shift towards green products
TSR flgeERBBRT

Market risks, such as higher insurance premiums

miEEE - BlanRERE RN

Green products
BEEM

==

More spending on repair and to improve adaptive
capacity of premises

EINAEE AR S YR B 68 0 R ARRIRA X

Business closure, leading to loss of revenue
(EERRCECE:3 P S

More spending on cooling

12 hnpE R BRI X

Increased cost of raw materials

JR AT LA

Substitution of existing products with eco-friendly
options

BEERPRAREMBN

Higher insurance costs

R B AN

Increased revenue because customers are willing
to pay more on green products using advanced
technologies
EFERXNBaNERBERALENRNGRER
LUz n

BB RRERAT2022/238% 35
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ENVIRONMENT (coNT'D)

A4 Climate Change (cont'd)

Our near term targets are to adapt to impacts of climate change.
With extreme weather occurring more frequently, we place
sandbags in low-lying areas and install floodgates when heavy
rainfall is approaching. Our premises are well-maintained with
resilient elements so as to lower potential damages resulting from
extreme weather and attain better insurance packages. We make
use of e-communications to keep close contact with staff members,
customers and suppliers to ensure business continuity in place. We
provide a range of products with green features to the market.

In long term, we endeavour to reduce carbon footprint in our
operations to help mitigate climate change. The Group has set a
reduction target of 5% in total energy use and total GHG emission
from the Baseline by the year 31 March 2024. We regularly
monitor our progress for review and continuous improvement, in
addition to reporting the performance on an annual basis.

SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group believes its success, long-term growth and development
depend upon the quality, performance and commitment of its staff
members. We are committed to providing equal opportunity to our
staff, matching the right people with the right job, and offering
them a suitable platform to develop and excel in their career.
Besides, we keep in mind to treat all staff members fairly and
equally. We are committed to the provision of a healthy and safe
workplace and encourage the work-life balance of staff members.
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B1 Employment

As at 31 March 2023, our workforce in operations in Hong Kong
was recorded at 130 employees.

Our employment policy adheres to statutory requirements
including but not limited to the Mandatory Provident Fund,
Statutory Minimum Wages, Employees’” Compensation Insurance
and Paid Annual Leave. Competitive packages are offered to
attract, retain and motivate competent individuals. We are
dedicated to promoting equal opportunities for all of our
employees in different areas, including recruitment, compensation
and benefits, training, staff promotion and transfer. All staff
members are assessed based on their ability, performance and
contribution, irrespective of their gender, age, disability, family
status, race, religious beliefs or sexual orientation. There was no
prosecution to the Group in relation to employment issues during
the year.

We provide employee benefits such as medical allowance and
transport allowance. The Group supports the staff’s family life by
providing children’s scholarship. The Group has joined the
Government’s gender mainstreaming network “Gender Focal
Point”.

Award Presentation Ceremony for Employees’ Children Scholarship

BIFLRESHREBRERN

2w

EBERLEIER(E)

B11E1E

R-ZBEZ=F=A=+—HB > AKEENEEBEIA
BHE1308 -

EMNERBREFEEERAE  BEETRREH
HAES  EEREIE  EERERBREFF
o RPURHEARF N 2 HFMTBURMR - BIERE
BEERAT © ZK%E&)JE%IE%%%%%%{E%E
BFEHE  ETRERE  HEREFR - &I
AR AEEIREET 288D %’%ﬁ%ﬂa)ﬁﬂ’ﬁ
HEPfL - MAREMR - Fik - RE - RERR - &
&> REEMHEMIE - RAFE - AEBELERE
BRI R RARIE o

FEERHBEEYRTBRMEEREEF UK
FTuREE REEIZHELE -AKECSHE
FBEATRY MR E R 448 [ MBI FRER A A
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Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)
B1 Employment (cont’d)

All of our staff members work on full time basis. Our workforce is

comprised of:

Gender ¥ 31

459

Turnover rate B
13.33%

Our Group's turnover rate for the year is 9.02% which is lower
than the overall turnover rate of workforce in Hong Kong is 10.3%.

T2

EERSIER(E)
B11E1E (&)
AEEEIHBERET HARNT :

Male
B

Female
peg i

Turnover rate B
15.07%

AEENERBEREE9.02%  BEREBE TRER
BZ10.3% °

According to the turnover rate and vacancy rate published by RE-F-—FEBAHNEFEESE/A AL

Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource Management 2021.

Age group F R4 5

Turnover rate B

4.76% \

Turnover rate BB
45.5%

. Below 30
=HRAT

30-50
. =t+ERTB

Over 50
BBA TR

Turnover rate BEH%Z=
15%
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Length of service BR#§ % 5

0-3 years
T==F

> 3-5 years

BB=ZRF

. > 5-10 years
BRRETF

. > 10-15 years
BBTETRF

> 15 years

e
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B2 Health and Safety

Our workplace is kept clean and tidy, with adequate work space
for staff members to work. Apart from that, a number of initiatives
have been carried out to increase the staff awareness in health and
safety at work:

e Occupational safety briefing

> Guide new staff members especially those work in
warehouse or go to construction sites

> Staff members are able to stop work if they feel unsafe or
is not properly trained

e Staff handbook (detailing health and safety guidelines)

During the reporting year, there were no reported cases of non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in our Group
regarding the environment, labour standards, occupational health
and safety, anti-corruption or data privacy. Warehouse and shop
frontline staff members are under supervision to ensure they work
safely. All staff members, before going to construction sites, have
attended safety training. When entering construction sites, they are
equipped with safety helmet and briefed by relevant safety officers.

In light of the outbreak of Coronavirus during the year, we have
implemented the following measures to safeguard the safety of our
staff members, such as:

e Raise the frequency of cleaning in workplace

e Place air purifiers in workplace

e Provide surgical masks, disinfection products and rapid test
kits to all staff members

e Take body temperature of staff members

Number and rate of work-related BE=ZF (BIEEREE)

fatalities occurred in each of the BFRITHHAZR
past three years including the Eb &
reporting year

Lost days due to work injury AIEELATERH
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Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)
B3 Development and Training

The Group maintains an open, interactive and motivating working AE£BAETEEMK - BB R EHESEH TFR
environment for our staff members. The management reviews its 3% - EEEHESHEARTHEIRBERRESR -
training and career development programmes with employees. A HMREBERZHZINFR  UWBE2TERBER
wide spectrum of training programmes is provided to cater the MBUMETER-

needs of staff members across different roles and positions.

T2

BEREIER(E)
B3 /& R 153

Set out below are some training and development programmes: LT HEoEIRBERTE

Professional development: Product

e EXBRE Em

Professional development: Hard skills and soft skills o  ERRREMREMEEE

Compliance and legal programme
On-board training

Health and safety training

The percentage of employees trained

by gender and employee category
Gender — male

Gender — female

Category — managerial

Category — general office

Category — frontline/operational

The average training hours completed per

employee by gender and
employee category

Gender — male

Gender — female
Category — managerial
Category — general office

Category — frontline/operational
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o BRREEE

. ABSEI

o RREHEZEIEI

BEHURIREESRBEDH

ZIEEBELE 100.0% 100.0%
M — 5% 100.0% 100.0%
PR — & 100.0% 100.0%
Rl —EEE 100.0% 100.0%
R — —RB 100.0% 100.0%
R — AR EE 100.0% 100.0%
BURRESERES -
BAHEETRZIIN
FIIRFR 1.214 1.078
TR — 5% 1.243 1.211
PR — 1.179 0.907
Hhl —EEE 2.688 2.500
Bh — —MRIB 0.737 0.768
R — AR EE 1.576 1.217
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Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B4 Labour Standards

We comply with local employment regulations in all locations of
our operations, and do not engage in any forced or child labour.
To ensure we are legally compliant, we check applicants’ identity
including their age and eligibility for employment. Regular reviews
on our employment practices (including recruitment procedures)
are conducted to ensure we operate in a fair manner. Any case of
illegal, forced and child labour will be investigated and escalated
to the management where necessary.

B5 Supply Chain Management

The number of major suppliers, based on invoice amount, by
geographical region is indicated below:

n

MAJOR SUPPLIERS
FTEMHERS
CHINA (6) DENMARK (1) [l GERMANY (5)
7 E (6) 8= ZE (5
[l JAPAN (1) B SINGAPORE (1) TAIWAN (1)
B2 (1) o (1) BE (1)

Note: The definition of “major suppliers” refers to suppliers of products and/or sub-
contractors of services to which the Group incurred purchases exceeding
HK$1 million.

seeing is believing
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EEREIERE)

B4 % TXE
BRFESTHELEHEEMNERER XESR
EAREIZETHETRE - BRERAFTEEER
E RMERERBENSHD  SEGMANERREMN
281 - RMEHEERER (BREBERF)ET
B URREERFT o EA3EE  BREIRHETN
BREFESHAE  TALERF FREEE -

B5 1RIEGEEE
MEEZSEMS  RUEZINTEHEFHE N
T

HONG KONG (2) Bl ITALY (5)
&8 () B2 RA(5)

[ UNITEDKINGDOM (1) [ USA (1)
HE (1) XE ()

MiE  [EEMER | NEREREEQEFENRBIEBG
BBENERMERR NRELEHE -
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Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B5 Supply Chain Management (cont'd)

As our operations connect us to a wide range of stakeholders along
the supply chain, we strive to make sure that sustainability
considerations have been embedded in our procurement practices.
Our Environmental and Social Policy is in place to facilitate
communication and align our sustainability expectations, including
legal compliance, anti-corruption policy, environmental protection,
workplace health and safety, employment practices, with our
suppliers and sub-contractors.

In selecting installation sub-contractors, we consider a range of
factors such as price, past performance, scale of the project,
technical competence, environmental records, workplace health
and safety standards.

We conduct appraisals to evaluate performance of suppliers and
sub-contractors. Factors assessed include production capacity,
technical capability, quality control systems, personnel quality and
sustainability performance. The results determine which suppliers
and sub-contractors deemed high risk and require further
consideration in future purchases. Appraisals are made at least
annually to ensure our supply chain stays aligned with our vision.
During the year, the Group was not aware that any key suppliers
had significant actual or potential negative impact on business
ethics, environmental protection, human rights or labour practices.

In view of the growing environmental awareness in Hong Kong,
we advocate the adoption of green features in product selection,
such as water flow control and FSC-certified materials. We give
preference to those who have made strong environmental
commitments and those produce in close proximity to reduce
carbon emissions from transportation. We will continue our efforts
in bringing environmentally friendly products to customers.

Number of active suppliers
By region: Hong Kong
Non-Hong Kong
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Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B6 Product Responsibility

Our customers include contractors, property developers and
dealers. We recognise the uniqueness of requirements of each
customer, and offer a full range of products to satisfy customers’
needs.

The Group’s objective is to become one of the leading quality
suppliers of architectural builder’s hardware, bathroom, kitchen
collections and furniture. Our goal is to enhance the brand value
of the Group by managing customers’ expectation of getting
products that commensurate with their lifestyles. We strive to
provide quality products and services to fulfil customers’ needs;
and to establish the brand and reputation of our Group for
customers’ recognition of our ability to serve them with two
fundamental qualities, “sincerity” and “quality”, which would
enable us to build customer loyalty, allowing us to establish strong
customer relationships for future businesses.

Product safety is our primary concern. The majority of our
products, in terms of purchase value, originate from Europe where
rigorous product testing regulations and requirements are in place.
Nevertheless, we carry out a number of measures to ensure product
safety, such as warranties and certificates from manufacturers, tests
according to customers’ requirements.

During the year, there was no product recall for safety and health
issues in relation to products sold by us; there was no substantiated
complaints received. And we did not receive any complaints
lodged with the Consumer Council.

Apart from safety, we also value performance ratings and feedback
from customers, of which feedback identifies areas of
improvement. We have established various communication
channels including corporate website and social media platforms
to facilitate and strengthen communication with our customers.
Feedback from customers is discussed and improvement will be
made where appropriate. Our labelling and advertising materials
are reviewed to ascertain their compliance with relevant marketing
communication practices.
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B6 Product Responsibility (cont’d)

We protect our proprietary position by registering trademarks in
markets of presence and in development. We respect others’
intellectual property rights and conduct trademark searches to
avoid infringement.

We comply with the latest Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance,
ensuring that the customer information we receive is only used for
its intended purposes. We regularly brief our staff, especially front-
line staff, to take great care in dealing with privacy matters. We did
not receive any substantiated complaints regarding breaches of
customer privacy or loss of customer data during the year.

B7 Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
integrity when doing business. We adopt the code of conduct (the
“Code of Conduct”) that complies with HKEX expectations on
corporate governance and the Independent Commission Against
Corruption’s anti-corruption policies. Our staff handbook has
outlined such code of conduct to all staff members including
prevention of bribery.

Sub-contract works are made in accordance with the standard
procedure of the Group. Once having received the quotations from
potential contractors, we evaluate each based on a range of factors
such as: price, past performance, scale of the project, technical
competence, environmental records, workplace health and safety
standards. Decisions on sub-contract appointments are reviewed
and endorsed by the management of the Group.

The Group has a whistle-blowing mechanism for staff members
and business partners to report any potential bribery or other
misconduct behaviours. All cases are treated with strict confidence.
The Managing Director is responsible to implement such
mechanism while the Audit Committee is responsible to review.

The Code of Conduct and anti-bribery training is included in the
induction programme of all staff members. Our conditions of
employment require compliance with the Code of Conduct.
Additionally, anti-corruption training materials were circulated to
the Board of Directors during the year.

There was no legal case of corruption brought against our Group
or its staff members during the year.
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SOCIAL (coNT'D)

Employment and Labour Practices (cont'd)

B8 Community Investment

The Group is committed to be an active participant in the local
community wherever it operates. Charitable and other donations
made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$80,000. We
believe that support to communities does not limit to donations but
also voluntary works.

Our approach is to primarily focus on the elderly, children and the
underprivileged, and to give support to environmental protection.
Our volunteering programmes continued to be limited due to the
outbreak of coronavirus recurs in Hong Kong during the year 2022,
yet we managed to donate the film production for “Collaborative
Efforts to Intervene and Prevent Elder Abuse” and fund a
scholarship during the year.

We also encourage its employees to do the same to contribute to
their neighbourhood. A care to the society will eventually benefit
our future generations.

2w
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Vespa Scholarship in Interior Design at HKUSPACE
ERRBEREBZ Vespa EARTRES

Zn | b FE B

HappyEdward.asia

Film sponsorship of Happy Edward.asia
EE e

Actor: Mr. KOT Man Fai, Eric
BEA: BRBESE

Heronie: Ms. AU Ga Man, Patra (L)
ZEM: BEEMA (L)
Director: Ms. Yan Yan MAK (R)
R EmTVIME (R)

The project aims:

* to raise the public's awareness of elder abuse,
investigate known or hidden cases through
community activities

e assist victims through counseling, family mediation,
health management,

« establishing social support; health care professionals
to practice elder abuse prevention

* Support for abused elders.

The film will start shooting in early August 2023 and will
be widely released on social media platforms, and we
will proactively arrange for the film to be released in
different channels, such as primary, secondary and
elementary school, and community centers under
different collaborative units in the community.
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FEEDBACK TO THIS REPORT

We welcome comments and suggestions regarding our
environmental and social performance for continuous
improvement. Stakeholders may at any time send their written
enquiries and concerns to the ESG Representative of the Company
at its Head Office as follows:

ESG Representative

16th—18th Floors

First Commercial Building

33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

esg@ebon.com.hk
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Aspects, General Disclosures Compliance Reference
and KPIs Description level (page)
EBE - —REER
RRERER P BRKFE 2% (HR)
Subject Area A — Environment
FTEHRA— BRE
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT : S
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 80
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
—RIKE FHERNBREREHN  kRLBNES BERBTEEYNELSN FEAS
@ BR IR
b)  EFERTABERZENEBEEERSRS
&R -
KPI'AT.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Comply 81
R EWIER AL BRI BERAAREREE - EF
KPI'A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in Comply 81
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity.
BREMERA12 B E ) Mag iR (EE 2) (R EREHME (UG E) R ER) BE - By
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity. Comply 81
BRARIERA13 FEEAEEEYHEE CIEE) R (BRA) BE - EF
KPI'A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Comply 81
intensity.
BREMERAL4 FREEEERRYAE (UME) R (NER) ZE - B
KPI'A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Comply 80
BREMERALS RORPTET LR B R R HE RS L B R AT REN YD 5R - EF
KPI'A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a Comply 81
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
BREMERALL HLEEAERBERRYMNG L  REAMITYNEEEERAEIELER feiy
FREREREO S ER
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BEA2 : BRER
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw Comply 82-83
materials.
—RIKE BRERER (BIFER - KR EAMEME) BBEE - By
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in Comply 83
total (kWh in “000s) and intensity.
BREMERA2.1 REAESNEER REEER (DS - foUH) @FE (UTETREFHE) R B
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Comply 83
BREMIERA2.2 BIKBREE - ey
KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Comply 82
BREMIERA23 R FTRT M B BEIR AL RN ES B AR R R R E L B AR FTERELA P 5% o B
KPI'A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, Comply 83
water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
BRANIERA2.4 RS EGE KR LR EEARRE - AR INAANGEEBRAERELR B
RFRERENHY L BY
KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, Comply 83
with reference to per unit produced.
BREMERA2S K mAABEMHNAE (UHHE) R (NER) BEESMEE - By
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Aspects, General Disclosures Compliance Reference
and KPIs Description level (page)
Bl —REER

BRERER Eipus AHKF 2% (’R)

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and Comply 84
natural resources.

— RN E AR BT AHRIER A REFREREAENRE o B

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural Comply 84
resources and the actions taken to manage them.

BSERIER A HAEBEDHHRERRAREFNEAZERCRNEEGHELENTE - B3

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues Comply 85
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

—RIRE AR EHEERAIREHBTAEEFENEARREBESENRE - B

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and Comply 85-86
those which may impact the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

BRSEBUIER A4 HRERRTREHRTAEESBNEARRERSE - REHTH - B

General Disclosure Information on: Comply 86-87
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.
— i E ERFNREE BEREA  THESE - BRE - PEHE - St KRR e
REMSBRER
@ BER
b) BFHBTAREARENEBEEERSRN
HE R o
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part-time), age Comply 87-88
group and geographical region.
BASEENIEE B ZR - EREEE (MERERE)  FRARNRBER D NIESRY - B3
KPI'B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. Comply 88
BASEAEIERB1.2 2R FRANREBEISHNESRAE - B3
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INDEX (CONT'D) #5| |

Aspects, General Disclosures Compliance Reference
and KPIs Description level (page)
Em - —REER
BARERER i BRKF 2% (ER)
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
fEEB2 : RERZE
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 89
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
—RIKE FEREREZTHERERAERESHARMELREN e
@ BER
b) EFEBRTABEARZENEBEEERSRS
R -
KPI' B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years Comply 89
including the reporting year.
B ENIEEB2.1 BE=F (BEEHFE)SFRITHNWABRILE - EF
KPI'B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Comply 89
BsENIEEB2.2 HIEERTHEEH - EF
KPI'B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they Comply 89
are implemented and monitored.
BREMIERBR23 WA REE R 2 - URABITRESRSE - By
Aspect B3: Development and Training
fEmB3 : BERE
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at Comply 90
work. Description of training activities.
—RIE FRRAESET THERENMNEREENEE - #HREINES - g
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. Comply 90
senior management, middle management).
B AENIEE B3 ZURREESER (MSHERE - PREEE) BoNZIEET AL EF
KPI' B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee Comply 90
category.
B ENIEEB3.2 ZURRESERNES  SHREERMZIN TG - e
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EmB4 : & TR
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 91
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
—RIRE BRABLETRHETH FEAS
@ BE R
by  BIFHBTABEAFENHEBEERRRAN
B -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and Comply 91
forced labour.
BREMIER B4 WA RREANEEABRETIRABHET o By
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. Comply 91
BREMIERB42 W B RER TR EERE BRI DB o By
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Aspects, General Disclosures Compliance Reference
and KPIs Description level (page)
EBmE - —REER
BREARER Ei:ipud BRKF 2E((ER)
Operating Practices
EEED
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEB5 : fLEEERE
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. Comply 91-92
—RIRE ERMEENRE RS RBREE - BF
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Comply 91
BREANIEEBS. ZitBE S NHEEHE - FeAS Y
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where Comply 92
the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
RS A RIS B5.2 R AR AMEENES  aESTEREMNNMEREE - URBEBATR B
BERGE -
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the Comply 92
supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
BREMIERB5.3 Mt ERERAMERSERESNREREERABNEN  URABITRERS e
& e
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and Comply 92
services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.
BRANIEEBS4 MR BREHERHEES ARRERRBRBENES » UREEATRERTE - FeAS
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6 : EREE
General Disclosure Information on: Comply 93
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.
—RIKE BERHERNBENERRRZE  BES  SERLBSEURBRGEN BsF
@ BER R
(b) BIHPBTABEASENREEERRS
BE R -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and Comply 93
health reasons.
BREMIERB6.1 CERCEXERAYTRZ2ERREAMERNKRNE L o e
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are Comply 93
dealt with.
BREMIERB6.2 EEENERRRBNRFHE UAREHGE - B
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property Comply 94
rights.
BERENIEEB63 il BR A R ARBE AR E R BBV IED - FEAS Y
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Comply 93
BEREANIERB6.4 HREEREBEREREWER - FEASY
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are Comply 94
implemented and monitored.
BREANIERBO.S HWHEBEEERMRERABBE - URBEEATRERSE - eAS
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General Disclosure Information on: Comply 94
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
—RIKE EEARTILBARE - B1R - FFROABEN ¢ B
(a) BE R
b) BIFUBTABERZENERERREAN
HEH -
KPIB7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Comply 94
issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
B AENIEEB7 1 RERMAHBTAREBEERHUCEENETHARMFNEE RFHRER B
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they Comply 94
are implemented and monitored.
B ENIEEB7 .2 OB SR R R - ARAABBITREES & - By
KPI'B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. Comply 94
BSEENIEEB7 .3 HlmESK 8 TRENRETE - B

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities Comply 95
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
—RIKE ERUHESHERTHEEMEHETENRRAXKEDHEEEHERBENK EF
%o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Comply 95
RS E IR BS.1 xS - EF
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. Comply 95
BRENIEREBS.2 EETHBEFBEER B
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VERIFICATION STATEMENT

Scope and Objective of Verification

Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency (“HKQAA”) has been
engaged by the E.Bon Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 599) “E.Bon”
to undertake an independent verification of its Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (“the Report”). The Report stated
the economic, environmental and social performance of E.Bon in
the period of Tst April 2022 to 31st March 2023 for its major
operation in Hong Kong.

The aim of this verification is to provide a reasonable assurance on
the reliability of the report content. The Report has been prepared
in accordance with the Appendix 27 “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG Guide”) of the Main Board
Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK").

Level of Assurance and Methodology

The process applied in this verification was based on the
International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised),
Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information issued by the International Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board. Our evidence gathering process was
designed to obtain a reasonable level of assurance as set out in the
standard for the purpose of devising the verification conclusion.
The extent of this verification process covered the criteria set in the
ESG Guide of the SEHK.

The verification process included verifying information relevant to
reporting and management procedures, including stakeholder
engagement methods and result, and materiality assessment
processes. In addition, system and process for collecting, collating
and reporting sustainability performance data were verified. Raw
data and supporting evidence of the selected representative
samples were also thoroughly examined during the verification
process.
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VERIFICATION STATEMENT (conT'D)

Independence

E.Bon is responsible for the collection and presentation of the
information presented. HKQAA does not involve in calculating,
compiling, or in the development of the Report. Our verification
activities are independent from E.Bon. There was no relationship
between HKQAA and E.Bon that would affect the independence of
HKQAA for providing the verification service.

Conclusion
Based on the verification results, HKQAA has obtained reasonable
assurance and is in the opinion that:

e The Report has been prepared in accordance with the ESG
Guide of the SEHK;

e The Report illustrates the sustainability performance of E.Bon
in a clear, comparable and timely manner; and

e The data and information disclosed in the Report are reliable
and complete.

Nothing has come to HKQAA attention that the selected
sustainability performance information and data contained in the
Report has not been prepared and presented fairly and honestly, in
material aspects, in accordance with the verification criteria. In
conclusion, the Report reflects truthfully the sustainability
commitments, policies and performance of E.Bon, and discloses
transparently their sustainability performance that is commensurate
with their sustainability context and materiality.

Signed on behalf of Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency

KT Ting
Chief Operational Officer
July 2023
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To the Members of E. Bon Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of E. Bon Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set
out on pages 114 to 197, comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2023;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

: PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888  Fax: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
e Provision for inventory obsolescence

e Provision for impairment of trade and retention receivables
and contract assets
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conT'D)

Provision for inventory obsolescence

Refer to notes 2.10, 4.1 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements for the disclosures of the related accounting policies,
judgements and estimates

As at 31 March 2023, the Group held net inventories of
approximately HK$144,909,000 after provision of obsolescence.

Management assessed the provision at each period ended for
obsolete or slow-moving inventories. In determining the amount of
allowance required for obsolete and slow-moving inventories,
management evaluates the ageing of inventories, their historical
and estimated future sales pattern and other factors and compares
the carrying value of inventories to their estimated net realisable
value.

The identification of inventory obsolescence and determination of
estimated net realisable value require the use of significant
judgement and estimates, including their nature, ageing, latest
selling price, and expectation of future sales orders. The estimates
are subject to uncertainty of market trends, customer demands and
fashion trends.

We focused on this area because of the significance of the gross
inventory balance to the consolidated financial statements and the
estimation and judgement involved in determining the provision
for inventory obsolescence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conT'D)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Our audit procedures in relation to the provision for inventory
obsolescence included:

— We understood and evaluated the key controls by which
management reviews on inventory provision including
procedures on periodic and annual review of obsolete and
aged inventory, provision for inventory and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors. We validated the key controls that the Group has
implemented to estimate the provision for inventory
obsolescence;

— We understood and assessed the appropriateness and
reasonableness of the assumptions adopted in the provision
policy and basis of identification of the obsolete and slow-
moving inventories by referencing to their ageing, historical
and subsequent sales patterns and estimated future sales;

—  We tested, on a sample basis, of the accuracy of the ageing
report of inventory against goods receipt notes;

—  We tested, on a sample basis, the sales records of inventories
against sales invoices of the past 2 years and the inventories
utilisation rate to ensure the accuracy and completeness of
provision for inventory obsolescence;

— We tested, on a sample basis, of estimated future sales against
secured sales orders received from customers;

— We also assessed the estimated net realisable value by
comparing the estimated selling price and sales quantity of
inventories with the corresponding post year-end sales data;
and

—  We tested the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of
inventory provision.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered the judgments
and assumptions made by management in relation to their
assessment for provision of inventory obsolescence were
supportable by the available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conT'D)

Provision for impairment of trade and retention receivables and
contract assets

Refer to notes 2.7 and 4.2 to the consolidated financial statements
for the disclosures of the related accounting policies, judgements
and estimates.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had trade and retention
receivables of approximately HK$71,658,000 and contract assets
of approximately HK$3,259,000.

Management assesses the provision for impairment of trade and
retention receivables and contract assets based on the lifetime
expected credit losses. These receivables are grouped by shared
credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for likelihood of
recovery, whenever appropriate. The expected credit loss rates are
determined based on historical credit losses experience and credit
profile of the customers and are adjusted to reflect the effects of
current conditions as well as forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to
settle the receivables. Receivables relating to customers with
known financial difficulties or significant doubt on collection are
assessed individually for provision for impairment.

We focused on this area due to the significance of the trade and
retention receivables and contract assets to the consolidated
financial statements and the estimation and judgement involved in
determining the expected credit losses allowance of these
receivables.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conT'D)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Our audit procedures in relation to the provision for impairment of
trade and retention receivables and contract assets included:

— We understood, evaluated the key control procedures
performed by which management assessed the expected
credit losses, including its procedures on periodic review of
aged receivables and assessment on expected credit losses
allowance of these receivables and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk factors.
We validated the key controls that the Group has
implemented to estimate the loss allowance for impairment of
trade and retention receivables and contract assets
periodically;

— We evaluated the significant judgements and assumptions
involved in the expected credit losses measurement model,
including management’s assessment of credit risks of the
debtors, considering their credit profiles, historical repayment
patterns, publicly available information of these debtors, and
forward-looking factors such as market conditions and
economic growth, and assessed the reasonableness of the
judgements and assumptions adopted;

— We tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing
report of trade and retention receivables by tracing to
invoices; and

—  We performed recalculation of the ECL model to assess the
mathematical accuracy.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered the estimation
and judgement made by management in determining the expected
credit losses allowance of trade and retention receivables and
contract assets were supportable by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT'D)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT'D)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Ka Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 June 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #&ZmE @&

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE-Z=-=F=A=+-HLFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains/(losses), net

Net impairment losses on financial
and contract assets

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Operating profit
Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs, net

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company

Other comprehensive (loss)/income

Items that have been/may be
subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss

Exchange (loss)/gain on translation
of financial statements of
foreign operations

Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

(Loss)/gain on revaluation of properties
held for own use

Tax effect relating to revaluation of
properties held for own use
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(B518), W

EHREGFERMEZ

BIASE

2023 2022
—EC-=HE —E-—

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
MIEE FHET FET
5 454,764 494,592
9 (274,158) (311,096)
180,606 183,496

6 782 2,005
7 1,003 (1,361)
20 (2,431) (94)
9 (90,141) (94,699)
9 (71,544) (70,189)
18,275 19,158

1,886 161
(3,492) (3,737)
10 (1,606) (3,576)
16,669 15,582
13 (2,596) (3,688)
14,073 11,894

410) 294

16 3,422) 3,721
25 552 (614)




Other comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Earnings per share
(expressed in HK$ cents per share)
— Basic and diluted

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Notes
Fff &

FEHM2E (BE) W -
BRBE &

EARFEEREFE
BHE KSR

BRER
(ABRABWBEMN)
—ERREE 15

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

2023 2022
—EC=HF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
(3,280) 3,401
10,793 15,295
(Restated)

(&)

2.22 cents#EAL

1.95 centsi&1l
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #&#& ##&AR5% &

As at 31 March 2023 R=Z==f%=HB=+-H

Assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Deferred income tax assets
Retention and other receivables

Current assets
Inventories
Trade, retention and other receivables

Contract assets

Current income tax recoverable

Derivative financial assets

Time deposits with maturity over
three months

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity
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Notes
MY EE
BE
kREBEE
ME - BMERZE 16
FREEE 17
EEFREHRERE 25
FE AR B8 X I LA FEUR X 20
REBEE
=78 19
FEWERFR - EWRB K
Hi R 20
BHNEE 20
AT UK = A HA Fr S
TTESRERE 24
A RBB=1EANEBFR
21
BeRBESEEY 21
HWEE
s
AARIFBEELER
% 26
X 27
R

2023 2022
—EC-=HF —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
302,032 269,162
35,902 45,444
5,352 5,873
4,744 6,003
348,030 326,482
144,909 115,420
94,298 148,649
3,269 4,338
3,183 3,136
223 -
23,365 -
123,296 104,199
392,543 375,742
740,573 702,224
71,884 60,060
424,831 410,461
496,715 470,521



2023 2022

—E-=F B
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B EE FET T
Liabilities =L
Non-current liabilities FERBAE
Other provision HAp 22 6,021 5,000
Lease liabilities HEBE 17 8,460 22,094
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFFEREE 25 17,201 18,900
31,682 45,994
Current liabilities =R
Trade and other payables P £F B 3 R L At P A 7K 22 43,254 34,386
Contract liabilities BHER 22 70,643 75,337
Derivative financial liabilities fTEemas 24 - 935
Lease liabilities HEERE 17 29,143 27,902
Borrowings A 23 63,969 42,083
Current income tax liabilities REFTEREE 5,167 5,066
212,176 185,709
Total liabilities e 243,858 231,703
Total equity and liabilities BEaREE 740,573 702,224

The consolidated financial statements on pages 114 to 197 were ZE£114E197ENSE SN BRRCLEETEN =S
approved by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2023 and were Z—=&xA=-+=A#tfE FIHTHEZRKESE -
signed on its behalf.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry TSE Sun Po, Tony
Director Director
EE EZF

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be LA 4R& B 76tk 7 7= FE B2 BB M iEE — HFRI3E o
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #x

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE-Z=-=F=A=+-HLFE

Balance at 1 April 2021

Comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Exchange gain on translation of financial

statements of foreign operations
Gain on revaluation of properties
held for own use
Tax effect relating to revaluation of
properties held for own use

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners

Dividends (Note 14(a))

Appropriation to statutory reserve
(Note 27)

Total transactions with owners

Balance at 31 March 2022

R=B=-§DA-BE&R
FERENE

FEREA

Rt 2ENE
BEENERURERZER NS
RERRMEERNE

REERRRNS ETE

PEUNEEE

VPR

RE (Wit 14)
EERBIE (ME27)
BHEE 28R

R-BZZEZA=+-B&#

Z

A

mon

AREED

=

Share Share Revaluation ~ Merger ~ Capital  Exchange  Statutory  Retained
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  feserve  eamings Total
Rx ROEE EftRE  A0EE EXEE EXRE ITRE  REEN At
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TEx TEx TER  TEx  TEx  TEx TEx  TEr  TiEn
60,060 1201 141,400 6,979 2,896 (112) 2125 246,685 461,232
. . - - . . S11,894 11,894
- - - - - 294 - - 294
- - 371 - - - - - 3,71
- G - - - - - o
- - 3,107 - - 294 - 11,894 15,295
- - - - - - - (6,000) (6,006)
- - - - - - 55 (55) -
- - - - - - 55 (6,061) (6,006)
60,060 1201 144,507 6,979 2,896 182 2,180 252,516 470,521

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Share Share Revaluation ~ Merger ~ Capital Exchange Statutory  Retained
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings Total

B BBEE EfERE GHEE EAGE EXRE ZERGR  RERA it
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Téx TEr TEr TEx Tz TER TEx TER  TEx

Balance at 1 April 2022 R-B--EmB-RLH 60060 1201 144507 6979 2,89 182 2180 252516 470,521

Comprehensive income for the year EE2EKE

Profit for the year EERF - - - - - - - 14073 14073
Other comprehensive income b2 ENE
Exchange loss on translation of financial ~ AEENERNRERERER

statements of foreign operations - - - - - (410) - - (410)
Loss on revaluation of properties BEERNEEREE

held for own use - - (3422) - - - - - (3422
Tax effect relating to revaluation of REERBRNE HERE

properties held for own use - - 552 - - - - - 552
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2E(F8)/ hEeE - - (2870) - - (410) - 14073 10,793
Transactions with ownets BfEERS
Dividends (Note 14(a)) RE (i 14() - - - - - - - (60060 (6,006)
Appropriation to statutory reserve EEREIR (FE27)

(Note 27) - - - - - - 61 (61) -
Issue of ordinary shares under right issues g HRETEER (HfE26)

(Note 26) 184 9583 - - - - - - AT
Total transactions with owners BREEZRABE 11,824 9,583 - - - - 61 (6,067) 15,401
Balance at 31 March 2023 W-B-SEZASI-BES 71884 10784 141637 6979 289  (228) 2241 260522 496715

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be LA 44 fE2s 5 B 3 8 B2 BE M B 5T — GFRIE o
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

op
N
4
St
i

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZE-Z=-=F=A=+-HLFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash generated
from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for settlement of disposal of
forward contracts

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Sales proceeds of property,
plant and equipment

Placement of deposits with maturity
over three months

Proceed from deposits with maturity
over three months

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayments of borrowings

Interest paid on bank borrowings

Principal elements of lease payments

Interest paid on leases

Proceeds from trust receipt loans

Repayment of trust receipt loans

Proceeds from issues of shares under
rights issue

Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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EEER 28(c
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ERRE
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RERRSESEYFEM
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RERREEEVER
(&#8), W

FRASRREEEY
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2023 2022
—EB-=F =B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
98,402 72,932
(2,953) (394)
95,449 72,538
4,427) (2,070)
(38,415) (6,321)
- 37
(73,266) -
49,901 -
1,886 161
(64,321) (8,193)
3,790) (3,872)
(1,919) (1,385)
(27,128) (28,907)
(1,573) (2,351)
56,115 40,127
(48,759) (60,746)
21,407 -
(6,006) (6,006)
(11,653) (63,140)
19,475 1,205
104,199 102,964
(378) 30
123,296 104,199
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GENERAL INFORMATION

E. Bon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The address of
its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its
principal place of business is 16th—18th Floors, First
Commercial Building, 33 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong. Its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the importing,
wholesale, retail and installation of architectural builders’
hardware, bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture and
provision of interior design services, project and contract
management in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC").

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (HK$), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
and disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of leasehold land and buildings held for own
use and derivative financial instruments, which are
carried at fair values.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R& 8 ## & MizE

-z
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##& 8%k Mzt
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHBEBSE@
POLICIES (coNT'D)
2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d) 21 REEEE)

REFBUBRELENFERRSPBER
RAEAETEES A TRER
BRERAAEES T BRRTEEHE -
BREEABRERN > REBRRM
FHESMBRRMSEBEANZ&EE
M4 iR -

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

2.1.1 Bit BRR BB RE
REBRN 5T RAEIEET

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (a)

Group

The Group has applied the following
standards, and amendments for the first time
for the annual reporting period commencing

1 April 2022:

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

Annual Improvements Annual Improvements

Project

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendment to
HKFRS 16
(March 2021)

Amendments to
Accounting
Guideline 5

to HKFRS Standards
2018-2020

Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

COVID-19 Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Merger Accounting
for Common Control
Combinations

Except for HKFRS 16, the adoption of above
new standards and amendments to standards
did not have any impact on these
consolidated financial statements.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont'd)
2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(cont’d)

(b) New and amended standards and
interpretations not yet adopted
Certain new and amended accounting
standards amendments to accounting
standards and interpretations have been
published that are not mandatory for 31
March 2023 reporting period and have been
not early adopted by the Group:

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 (Amendments)

ERSTEUNE 1 REEBUH
WMEEABHRRMESE 258 (BT )

HKAS 8 (Amendments)

EBGTEAE IR (BRTA)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

BHBR RS

BEHETES

2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Definition of Accounting Estimates

Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities

FESHBRUE @

2.1 RBEE(E)
2.1.1 Bt BRRRBEZEE (H)

(b) [ RERGY Z FET R ASAE 5T 2
BIR2:E
EFTHIIREBITEHER
RRENSTENBITARE
M MR =ZE_=F=A
=+ — B HRE HRE R
HlEN BAEEMEKRIER
BRa

Effective for
accounting year
beginning on

or after
RTFIBMRz&
Rz a8t FEEX

1 January 2023
—E-_=%—A—H
1 January 2023

—E-_=%—A—H
1 January 2023

Arising from a Single Transaction

EBSTTEAE 1255 (BRT )
HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 17
(Amendments)
BEBMERELERNF1I7HRESR
B EREERISE 17 9% (18R] A)
HKAS 1 (Amendments)

REBEK

Non-current
EBGTTERSE 19 (BRTA)
HKAS 1 (Amendments)
EBGTTERSE 19 (BRTA)
HKFRS 16 (Amendments)
BEBMEHMELERE 1698 (IBFT )
Hong Kong Interpretation

5(2020)

E-RZELENREERBBEABNELLIR
Insurance Contracts

Classification of Liabilities as Current or

BEESBRRBHFERE

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

MR ENIEREEE

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

EMARNWEERE

Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a

—E-_=%—A—H
1 January 2023

—E-=%—HA—H
1 January 2024

—E-_mFE—A—H
1 January 2024
—E-_mFE—A—H
1 January 2024
—E-_mFE—A—H
1 January 2024

EERBESR(ZERIRE)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

EBMEHRELERNF 105K
EBGTTERSE 2858 (BRT )

Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause
MERENZY — ERAEHEBEUMERER
BEERNEHERNDE
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
REERHEBENARGELECHNERE HIFEE
HESEE

—E-_mFE—HA—H

To be determined
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHBEBSE@
POLICIES (coNT'D)
2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d) 21 REEEE)
2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 2.1.1 Bt BRRBBEZEE (F)
(cont’d)

(b) New and amended standards and
interpretations not yet adopted (cont'd)
Management is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact of the above new
and amended standards and interpretation to
standards but is not yet in a position to state
whether they will result in substantial changes
to the Group’s significant accounting policies
and the presentation of its financial
statements.

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entity (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the group.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.2 Subsidiaries (cont'd)
2.2.2Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors that make
strategic decisions.

24

Foreign currency translation

(@

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

2
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (cont’d)

(b)

(©

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are generally recognised in the
profit or loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
within “Other gains/(losses), net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

1 2 6 E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022/23
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTBERBEw@
POLICIES (conT'D)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment 25 ¥ BERRE

Leasehold land and buildings are stated at revalued
amount. Property, plant and equipment, other than
leasehold land and buildings, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Leasehold land and buildings are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at their
revalued amount, being the revaluation value at the date
of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does
not differ significantly from that which would be
determined using revaluation values at the reporting
date.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of
leasehold land and buildings is credited to the
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease of the same assets previously
recognised as an expense, in which case the increase is
credited to the profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of an asset is dealt with as an
expense to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any,
on the revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent
costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHBEBSE@
POLICIES (coNT'D)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment (cont'd) 25 ¥I¥ - BERREGE

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land
and buildings
Leasehold improvements

Over the shorter of unexpired
term of lease or 50 years
Over the shorter of lease

terms or 5 years

Furniture, fixtures 20%
and equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets” useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.6).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amounts and
are recognised in the profit or loss. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is transferred to retained earnings as a
movement in reserve.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.6

2.7

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Other assets that are subject to amortisation are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
group of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets

2.7.1Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e those to be measured at amortised cost; and

e those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss).

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at
fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FvOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (coNT'D)

FESHBERME @)

2.7 S@EEGE)
2.7.2 A RKIFTER

2.7 Financial assets (cont'd)
2.7.2Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

2.7.3Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL
are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.7 Financial assets (cont’d)
2.7.3Measurement (cont’d)
Debt instruments (cont’d)

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss. Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. The
Group’s financial assets carried at amortised
cost comprise “trade and retention
receivables”, “deposits and other receivables”
and “cash and cash equivalents” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

FVOCI

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through
other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 TESTTHEHE@)
POLICIES (coNT'D)
2.7 Financial assets (cont’d) 27 SRMEEE)
2.7.3Measurement (cont’d) 2.7.3 & (&)
Debt instruments (cont’d) EXETA (&)
— FVPL —  BRAAREFTAEZ

Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that
is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net
within “Other gains/(losses), net” in the period
in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in “Other gains/(losses), net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured
at FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

2.7.4Ilmpairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade and retention receivables and contract
assets, the Group applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables. Details on how the
Group determines the expected credit losses are set
out in Note 3.1(c).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.8

2.9

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The gain or
loss relating to the fair value re-measurement is
recognised immediately in the profit or loss within
“Other gains/(losses), net”.

2.10 Inventories

2.11

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade, retention and other receivables

Trade and retention receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services performed in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade,
retention and other receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.

Trade, retention and other receivables are recognised
initially at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEETBERBE®@

POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents 212 RERRESEEY

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

2.14 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

2.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in the profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.16 Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense for the period is the tax payable
on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(@ Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the company and its subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation and considers whether it is
probable that a taxation authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures its
tax balances either based on the most likely
amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of the
resolution of the uncertainty.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (cont’d)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax
is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

The deferred income tax liability in relation to
investment property that is measured at fair value is
determined assuming the property will be
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (cont’d)

b)

Deferred income tax (cont’d)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and where the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

2.18 Employee benefits

(@

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods. A defined benefit
plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.
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POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.18 Employee benefits (cont’d) 2,18 BTREA (&)

(b) Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long
service payments to its employees upon the
termination of their employment or retirement
when the employee fulfils certain circumstances
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is
the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as finance
cost.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTBERBEw@

POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.20 Revenue recognition 2.20 W

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts and returns. The Group recognises revenue
when goods are transferred or services are rendered to
the customer.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for the services that the Group has transferred
to a customer. In addition, incremental costs incurred to
obtain a new contract, if recoverable, are capitalised as
contract assets and subsequently amortised when the
related revenue is recognised. A contract liability is the
Group’s obligation to render the services to a customer
for which the Group has received consideration from
the customer. A contract liability is recognised by the
Group when the customer pays consideration in
advance before the Group satisfy the performance
obligation to the customer.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for the services that the Group has transferred
to a customer. In addition, incremental costs incurred to
obtain a new contract, if recoverable, are capitalised as
contract assets and subsequently amortised when the
related revenue is recognised. A contract liability is the
Group’s obligation to render the services to a customer
for which the Group has received consideration from
the customer. A contract liability is recognised by the
Group when the customer pays consideration in
advance before the Group satisfy the performance
obligation to the customer.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNT'D)

2.20 Revenue recognition (cont'd)

(@

(b)

(©

(d)

Sales of goods

The Group sells architectural builders” hardware,
bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture in the
wholesale and retail market. Revenue from sales of
goods is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods are delivered to
the customer.

Contract revenue

The Group engages in importing, selling and
installation of kitchen collections, and other
construction and decoration works to contractors
and property developers. Revenue from the
services rendered by the Group is recognised over
time as the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset or work in progress that the
customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. The Group has applied the output
method in recognising the revenue from
construction contracts over time. The progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation of construction contracts is measured
with reference to either surveys of work performed
or actual stage of completion of the contract work.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is
recognised in the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Finance income

Finance income is recognised using the effective
interest method to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate
is applied to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTBERBEw@
POLICIES (cONT'D)
2.21 Leases 221 HE
Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a HERHEEEAHAKREEAERRE
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased AREAEEEREREE -

asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for
leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it
has elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

— fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

— variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date

— amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees

— the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

— payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.
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POLICIES (coNT'D)
2.21 Leases (cont’d) 2.21 HE (&)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

— where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

— makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

— the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability

— any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

— any initial direct costs, and

— restoration costs.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTBERBEw@

POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.21 Leases (cont’d) 221 HE(E)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. While
the Group revalues its land and buildings that are
presented within property, plant and equipment, it has
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings held by
the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is
a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term (Note 17). Initial direct costs incurred
in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease
income. The respective leased assets are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position based on
their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as
a result of adopting the new leasing standard.

The Group has adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16 —
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June
2021. The amendment provides an optional practical
expedient allowing lessees to elect not to assess whether
a rent concession related to COVID-19 is a lease
modification. Lessees adopting this election may
account for qualifying rent concessions in the same way
as they would if they were not lease modifications.

EREEE-—REREENEAFRRA
HABEERE) RERENE - fif
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BREEZREBEENERFRIFE - X
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o
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MEERAEMARBEENREE
YARBERREEERAERNEER
RRAX - HEHEEERAMEA
REVBRREK - AEBEFZERRAN
HEEAMEERLEABENEES
STREAEE AR -

AEEBEE-ZE-—E~A=1THEE
RN E BT HREERE 1638155T
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHEHME@)
POLICIES (coNT'D)
2.21 Leases (cont’d) 2.21 HE (&)

The practical expedient only applies to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and only if all of the following conditions are
met:

(@) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;

(b) any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments due on or before 30 June 2021; and
(c) there is no substantive change to other terms and

conditions of the lease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all
qualifying COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions.

2.22 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

2.23 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the group will comply with
all attached conditions.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (coNnT'D)

2.24 Earnings per share

(@

(b)

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding
treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used
in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding
treasury shares.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including interest rate risk and foreign
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@ Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises
from borrowings and interest-bearing bank
deposits. Interest-bearing financial assets/liabilities
at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. Interest-bearing financial assets/
liabilities at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2023, if the interest rate had
increased/decreased by 50 basis points with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s profit for
the year and retained earnings would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$344,000 (2022:
HK$259,000). The 50 basis point increase/decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date.

(b) Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with
most of the sales transactions settled in Hong Kong
dollars. However, foreign currencies are required
to settle the Group’s purchases from overseas
suppliers. It is exposed to foreign exchange risk
primarily with respect to United States dollar
(“US$”), EURO (“EUR”) and Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB”) denominated transactions.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D) 3 HEEREE @
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d) 3.1 BXEBEEE)
(b) Foreign currency risk (cont’d) b) IMNEREEE (1E)

To manage their foreign exchange risk arising from
certain future commercial transactions and
recognised liabilities, entities in the Group use
forward contracts, transacted with external
financial institutions. Foreign exchange risk arises
when future commercial transactions or recognised
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not
the entity’s functional currency.

As at 31 March 2023, some group entities with
functional currency of HKD had considerable
amount of trade payables and bank balances and
cash denominated in US$. Under the Linked
Exchange Rate System in Hong Kong, HKD is
pegged to US$, management therefore considers
that there is no significant foreign exchange risk
with respect to US$ (2022: same).

At 31 March 2023, if the EUR had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2022: 5%) against the HKD with
all other variables held constant, there will be no
significant impact on the post-tax profit of the
Group (2022: same).

At 31 March 2023, if the RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2022: 5%) against the HKD with
all other variables held constant, profit for the year
would have changed as follows. The changes are
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange gains/
losses on translation of RMB denominated trade
payables.
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HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FiBx
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)
(c) Credit risk

(i)

Risk management

The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to cash and cash equivalents,
trade, retention and other receivables and
contract assets.

To manage the risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents, the Group only transacts with
reputable banks which are all high-credit-
quality financial institutions. There has no
recent history of default in relation to these
financial institutions. The expected credit loss
is insignificant.

For other receivables, management makes
periodic collective assessments as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability of
deposits and other receivables based on
historical settlement records, past experience,
current conditions and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors. The
management believes that the expected credit
loss is insignificant.

For trade and retention receivables and
contract assets, management makes periodic
individual assessment on their recoverability.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade and retention receivables and
contract assets.

To measure expected credit losses, the Group
categorises its trade and retention receivables
and contract assets based on the nature of
customer accounts and shared credit risk
characteristics.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D) 3 UBEREE®

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont'd) 31 MgEEEE(E)
(c) Credit risk (cont’d) © 1=ERE(E)
(i) Risk management (cont'd) (i) BEREE(E)
The expected loss rates are based on the RHEBEZRDEREF NN
payment profiles of customers and the TR R R EEBEE £
corresponding historical credit losses FEEEME BLBEX
experienced. The historical loss rates are ETURABRURREERF
adjusted to reflect current and forward- ERRWRENNEBE
looking information on macroeconomic EMRERAEEER -

factors affecting the ability of the customers to
settle the receivables.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 EZEEL RZTEZ=F

March 2023 and 2022 was determined as —_ZFE-_—_#=HF=+—H

follows for trade and retention receivables Y JE WSt AR 3% R B WAL AR B8 FR A

and contract assets: RENEENEBEREBEETE
mE

Trade and retention receivables
and contract assets

ERERRERRERARSNEE

Weighted
average Gross Net
expected carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount  allowance amount
ik S

AHERE fREAE BRRE SREFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEr TEr TET

As at 31 March 2023 R-E-=£=A=+-H
Provision on an individual basis  1Z{A R & &EE 100% 1,031 (1,031) -
Provision on a collective basis R LREERE 0.48% 75,293 (366) 74,927
76,324 (1,397) 74,927

As at 31 March 2022 WZE-—#=8=+-H
Provision on an individual basis  #Z{ERIE &R 100% 1,059 (1,059) -
Provision on a collective basis %t REERE 0.07% 130,514 (94) 130,420

131,573 (1,153) 130,420
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D) 3 BEKEREREE@
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d) 3.1 HEEBEEE)
(d) Liquidity risk (d) FBELEE

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the shorter and longer
term.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group held cash and
cash equivalents of approximately
HK$123,296,000 (2022: approximately
HK$104,199,000) that could be readily realised to
generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the remaining
contractual maturities of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities, based on
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date our
Group can be required to pay. Balance date within
12 months equal their carrying balance circulating
both interest and principal as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

AEEEBETRERBEZAD
FEBR  URBAEEESEH
REREUHRENREBADE
SER -

R-ZBE-_=F=A=+—8 ' %X&
EREEReRESEEDY
123,296,000 BT (ZE=--F 1
104,199,000 7T) - AIRERFEIRE
’_-'Efﬁ,f/mkumfiuwiﬁﬁfﬂ fay o

R-BZ=ZER-ZB-_F=5
=t+—B  XEBRAQXERER
EEEEIE,$MLE&$§E<./A§ZH'E’JH_
FHHZERMEEZHRTENEH
B ARBAFLERK 12848
ANESEERERBREREE
HBREI 45 8R o

Total
Less than contractual
Tyearor  Between1  Between2 undiscounted Carrying
ondemand ~ and2years  and5years Over5years  cash flows amount
PR-FH BENARR
REX -E@ERN  WEIER SENE RERE REE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THER THER TERT THERT THERT
As at 31 March 2023 R-B-=%=fF=+-H
Non-derivates financial FTEEREE
liabilities
Trade and other payables B ERT R E RN 38,118 - - - 38,118 38,118
Borrowings (Note) RN E)
— unsecured — B 8,477 - - - 8,477 8,477
— secured — BEA 6,329 6,329 18,990 34,870 66,518 55,492
Lease liabilities REEE 29,946 6,512 2,640 2,640 41,738 37,603
Total non-derivates FFT4ETHBE 82,870 12,841 21,630 37,510 154,851 139,690
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d)

(d) Liquidity risk (cont’d)

As at 31 March 2022
Non-derivates financial
liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings (Note)
— unsecured
— secured
Lease liabilities

Total non-derivates

Derivates financial
liabilities
Foreign exchange
forward contract
— Inflow
— Outflow

3 UBEREE®
3.1 BBEBREZE(E)
(d) REELEE (E)
Total
Less than contractual
1 year or Between 1 Between 2 undiscounted Carrying
ondemand  and2years  and5years Over5years  cash flows amount
PR-FF BENRER
RER -ZWEA  WELER SERE Behe REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FER FER FER FER Tax
RZZ-=#=A=+-H
FTELREE
EARAREMEN T 34,386 - - - 34,386 34,386
B (HzE)
— BER 1,121 - - - 1,121 1,121
—BHHA 4,559 4,559 9,118 27,522 45,758 40,962
HEER 29,238 21,713 819 - 51,770 49,996
FTETEBE 69,304 26,272 9,937 27,522 133,035 126,465
fiEtRaE
HEEBEH
—RA (27,501) - - - (27,501) (27,501)
— R 28,436 - - - 28,436 (28,436)
935 - - - 935 935
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D) 3 BEKEREREE@
3.1 Financial risk factors (cont’d) 3.1 HEEBEEE)

(d) Liquidity risk (cont’d)

Note: According to Hong Kong Interpretation 5, “Presentation
of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause”, if a term loan agreement includes an overriding
repayment on demand clause (“callable feature”), which
gives the lender a clear and unambiguous unconditional
right to demand repayment at any time at its sole
discretion, a borrower shall classify the term loan as a
current liability in its statement of financial position, as
the borrower does not have an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period. Accordingly the long-term
portion of the Group’s bank borrowings of approximately
HK$50,843,000 (2022: approximately HK$37,250,000)
were classified as current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023.

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives on capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
cash is calculated as total borrowings plus lease
liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as “equity” as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position plus net debt.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D) 3

3.2

3.3

Capital management (cont'd) 3.2

Total bank borrowings (Note 23) BIRATER (HRE23)
Lease liabilities (Note 17) HEEE (ME17)
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) & : R&RBEESEEY

(FffaE21)
Net cash REFHE
Total equity BER
Gearing ratio EEBGBLXR

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group had a net
cash position. Gearing ratio is not applicable.

Fair value estimation 3.3
The fair values of the Group’s financial assets (current
portion), including trade, retention and other
receivables, contract assets and cash and cash
equivalents; and the Group’s financial liabilities,

including trade and other payables, contract liabilities,
derivative financial liabilities and borrowings,
approximate their carrying amounts due to their short-

term maturities.

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings classified
under property, plant and equipment are carried at fair
value. Details of the fair value measurement of these
leasehold land and buildings are disclosed in Note 16.

Bt 7 [ B B B ()

EAREE ()
2023 2022
—E-=F B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
63,969 42,083
37,603 49,996
(123,296) (104,199)
(21,724) (12,120)
496,715 470,521
N/A T E R N/A & A

NoB-—=ZER-—_E-——F=ZA=+-—
B AEEZFHESMRR WEEEE
bR R o

DA

HRAEEEREE (D) (BEE
WER - EBREBRREMERR &
WEEUARRERREEEN)  REE
BtmeE(BREENRAREEN
R AHEE TEEREERERR
BHREE - HAREEAREERS

AEBDEAVE BERSRB2ZEE
THEREFTFRAREBIER - ZEHEL
WREFARBEFTEZFBERHTEE 163

Ego

BrERERAT20222358% 153



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##& 8%k Mzt

Z

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (coNT'D) 3 HIBERBER@
3.3 Fair value estimation (cont'd) 3.3 AREMHE(E)

The Group measures its fair value of the financial AEBIRARE R NEZ ERW A

instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March 2023 by RaABBNER AER-Z2-=F

level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to ZA=t+-BRAREIRZEMIA
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into ZAE - BREAW A BB IR T XAt
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows: MAEFADAERBAN=ZEER

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for . HREESEBERKRERMEN
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). RECREHE) (E1/8) -

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within e BRTIFI1EBFEENBREN ZE
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, EFEBENITEENGARE 7
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that AEZE(BFIMER) REE (VR
is, derived from prices) (level 2). AERK) (E28) -

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on o EBEFEBEAFRBUBETSH
observable market data (that is, unobservable 15 By A B35 (BD ] 2 5 a8 A B
inputs) (level 3). BIE3RE) -

The following table presents the Group’s financial TREJIAKER-Z-_=FR_-F

instruments carried at fair value as at 31 March 2023 “THEZA=+-BRARENRZS

and 2022: RmIA:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
- F-FE %=F at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TR FEx FEx

As at 31 March 2023 R-E-=f=A=+-H

Financial assets THEE

Foreign exchange forward contracts HEEHEN

— not qualified for hedge accounting ~ — FEABERERL L - 223 - 223

As at 31 March 2022 R-B-—&=A=+-H

Financial liabilities EA N

Foreign exchange forward contracts HPERBEH

— not qualified for hedge accounting ~ — FHFABRERLITE - (935) - (935)

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 for FRU|EEMAARBHERE-BR

recurring fair value measurements during the year. Bz EEE -
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

4.1 Provision for inventory obsolescence

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group
evaluates the ageing of inventories, their historical sales
pattern, their subsequent utilisation and other factors
and compare the carrying value of inventories to their
estimated net realisable values. The identification of
inventory obsolescence and estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of inventory and impairment
provision in the year in which such estimate has been
changed.

4.2 Provision for impairment of trade and retention

receivables and contract assets

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade and
retention receivables and contract assets based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s historical default
rates, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
The estimation of expected credit losses requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences
will impact the carrying value of receivables and loss for
the impairment of receivables recognised in the periods
in which such estimates have been changed.

BEREFHEE R

REBREBELRREMERTETMEEE
Ry BEEREBREZRRTHARRSE
2B o

FEBHARELGERRBRR - IEHSEHE
FRAEREBOREBRERMER - HEER
BERT—EMRFEZRAEEKEARARE
Rz s REBRAT ©

41 BREERE
MAEBERFHETFEMERESTEN
FEESTEEFERE BLHEERK
BREEABEIREMEZ  THBEE
ZIREEEE (A58 FE - ABIBE
FEREREEBEBREPHBITEES
TEHAE RS o MEAEEAR G
BEE HEBERFEMATHELRSE
BFAZEFE 2 REERBRERE

42 BUERIREURBERRENEERE
B
AEBERENERRARBEZRNR
RUMEVIRRRERRBERRENEE
EHRERE ARERBEASENE
LENR -BATSRAREREDR
HYRTRE MRS EAHAEFHZERR
REERESENRAHE - BHEE
BRI R EEMAHE RS - 78
HBEFRMET AR FRZESTERE
W R TR B9 BRI (B 2 i T 2 B R AR Y
FEW R IEREEE -
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (cONT'D)

4.3

4.4

Recognition for contract revenue over time

The Group uses the output method in accounting for its
construction contracts for sales and installation of
kitchen collections, and other construction and
decoration works. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation is determined
by reference to independent surveys of work performed
or actual stage of completion of the contract work. The
Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract
revenue, contract costs, variation orders and contract
claims prepared for each construction contract as the
contract progresses. Budgeted construction income is
determined in accordance with the terms set out in the
relevant contracts. Budgeted construction costs which
mainly comprise sub-contracting charges and costs of
materials are prepared by the management on the basis
of quotations from time to time provided by major
contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management. In order to keep the
budget accurate and up-to-date, the Group’s
management conducts periodic review on the
management budgets by comparing the budgeted
amounts to the actual amounts incurred.

A considerable amount of judgement is required in
estimating the total contract revenue, contract costs,
variation orders and contract claims which may have an
impact in terms of progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation.

Valuation of leasehold land and buildings

The best evidence of fair value is the current prices in an
active market for similar properties. In making its
estimates, the Group considers the information from the
valuations of leasehold land and buildings performed by
external professional valuers by using the open market
value approach. If the Group used different valuation
techniques, the fair value of the leasehold land and
buildings may be different and thus may have an impact
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (cONT'D)

4.5

Income tax

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred income tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.
Management’s assessment is regularly reviewed and
additional deferred income tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred income tax assets to be recovered.

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income tax. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate determination is uncertain. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such difference will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

5 REVENUE

Sale of goods EmiHE
Contract revenue BRI
Timing of revenue recognition: Wy 2= T SRR
— At a point in time — BB
— Over time — BB

4

BEAREFHEFT R HE @

4.5

Wy 2

Fris®t

fieh 1R T BE A8 7R 2R B BR 0 35 I DAIE 85 7 B
RBIAEE  AEERSREERRS
ABAREBEER BEUJTERIAZ
EEFEHEEHETEEERFHE
THE TERBERBEMYE - RRERB
HEARARRBRBEZHFRBEEE - ~KH
EHHEMEEE 2T ME - BERATEE
BARRBERBURR] - BUE T U @ 3 SE i
BHEE BISBEIB|MELFRESHE
o

FEBMEAEEBRPEMBRAEHR - R
EERSHEBERAFHERHE - X
EXGRAEGEERERKEH -
HZEEHZBRRABBERERIN &K
R AAMERSTYEELE
BRE 2 Bz Fr IS8 IR IE P 1S B 3%
&

2023 2022
—E-=E —E-_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
381,020 430,955
73,744 63,637
454,764 494,592
381,020 430,955
73,744 63,637
454,764 494,592
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OTHER INCOME

Rental income
Government subsidy
Others

OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET

Net foreign exchange loss
— Forward contracts
— Other exchange gain
Impairment loss on leasehold
land and buildings
Fair value loss on investment properties
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
COVID-19-related rent concessions
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Z

Hblr A
2023 2022
—E-= S

HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET

- 715

34 -

748 1,290

782 2,005

Hitzs, (BE)  FE
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-=

HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
(3,269) (2,154)
1,906 634
(1,304) -
- (2,000)
- (292)

3,670 2,451
1,003 (1,361)




SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”) are the Group’s chief operating decision-makers.
Management has determined the operating segments based
on the information reviewed by the Executive Directors for
the purposes of allocating resources and assessing
performance.

The Group’s reportable operating segments are as follows:

— Architectural builders’ hardware, bathroom collections
and others segment — importing, wholesale and retail of
architectural builders’ hardware and bathroom
collections and others

—  Kitchen collection and furniture segment — designing,
importing, wholesale, retail and installation of kitchen
collections and furniture

The measurement policies the Group used for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in
its consolidated financial statements prepared under HKFRSs.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on the measure of gross profit.
Other operating income and expenses are not allocated to the
operating segments as the information is not regularly
reviewed by the Executive Directors.

Segment assets include all assets but exclude current income
tax recoverable, deferred income tax assets, derivative
financial assets, time deposits with maturity over three
months, cash and cash equivalents, property, plant and
equipment related to the office premises and warehouse of
the Group and other corporate assets which are managed on
central basis and are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment.

Segment liabilities include all liabilities but exclude current
and deferred income tax liabilities, borrowings, derivative
financial liabilities and other corporate liabilities which are
managed on central basis and are not directly attributable to
the business activities of any operating segment.

7 EEF

ARBDMTEE(HTES ) AFEEZEE
EERRE  EEECRBUTESHIEE
BERFERRAMEN 2 ERBELSE DR -

AEEZUERELDHOT ¢

— BEEIT FARBRHEMIB —E
A HBERTERERS  FEAREBR
Ht

- %E%‘Q{%&{%mﬁ% — %’Q%*t‘ N ED N ?tt
% TERREEERBREML

REBAREEBMBRELRESRBED
MEEAZEBR  ERBEBUBEREER
RRAGEVBEREGAEAZBER B -

HITESREBEANNTEFHEE I BOR
B ARYTESYUFRERFHRHEMEE WS
KRAXER  HEMEERERAXTEIE

TR LK N2
BREDE o

DHEERERAEE  ETEETRE AR
%M - BIEFIEHEE - TETSREE - 5
HEBEB=EANEREN RENRREZEE
W BAKENEZENERRERRNY
¥ BERRBURHMLGEEE  ZZEE
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ZHEEER -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNT'D)

Reportable segment revenue
from external customers
Reportable segment cost of sales

Reportable segment gross profit

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(Provision for)/reversal of provision
for inventory obsolescence
Finance income
Finance costs
Net impairment losses on financial
and contract assets

Reportable segment assets

Additions to non-current
segment assets during the year

Reportable segment liabilities
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8 oHER @

2023
—EB-=F
Architectural
builders’
hardware, Kitchen
bathroom collection
collections and
and others furniture Total
BERE - BERE
EARERHA AR #et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FHExT FHET
314,574 140,190 454,764
(204,854) (69,304) (274,158)
109,720 70,886 180,606
(6,140) 4,514) (10,654)
(17,904) (12,176) (30,080)
4,101) 836 (3,265)
1,854 32 1,886
(1,900) (1,592) (3,492)
(2,401) (30) (2,431)
321,838 71,923 393,761
554 7,152 7,706
110,322 73,122 183,444




SEGMENT INFORMATION (conT'D)

Reportable segment revenue
from external customers
Reportable segment cost of sales

Reportable segment gross profit

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Reversal of provision for/(provision
for) inventory obsolescence
Finance income
Finance costs
Net impairment losses on
financial and contract assets

Reportable segment assets

Additions to non-current segment
assets during the year

Reportable segment liabilities

AEH 2 EIIEF D H S

A E 2 7 &P E R A

AEHRz D HER

¥ BERREITE

EREEERE
BRFERERRE(BHE)

EILON

BB

ERRENEEZ
BEE R

AEH 2T HEE

FERAFRBOBEE
ZRE

AJEH o HEE

8 IHER®@E

2022
Architectural
builders’

hardware, Kitchen

bathroom collection

collections and
and others furniture Total

BERE - BEE®E
EARER HAib AR #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHBT T
362,269 132,323 494,592
(244,091) (67,005) (311,096)
118,178 65,318 183,496
(6,356) (4,201) (10,557)
(17,624) (13,027) (30,651)
1,140 (94) 1,046
159 2 161
(1,766) (1,940) (3,706)
47) 47) (94)
273,603 118,849 392,452
4,292 1,780 6,072
84,126 81,165 165,291
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNT'D)

The table presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in

the consolidated financial statements as follows:

Reportable segment gross profit
Group gross profit

Reportable segment assets

Property, plant and equipment
Deferred income tax assets
Current income tax recoverable

Time deposits with maturity over

three months
Cash and cash equivalents
Derivative financial assets
Other corporate assets

Group assets

Reportable segment liabilities

Borrowings

Current income tax liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities
Other corporate liabilities

Group liabilities
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DEBE R (@)

FEEREDMEALAEBRESUBBR2ETE

M BEHRMNT R

2023 2022
—EB=-= —Eg-
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FET
180,606 183,496
180,606 183,496
393,761 392,452
190,909 196,116
5,352 5,873
3,183 3,136
23,365 -
123,296 104,199
223 -
484 448
740,573 702,224
2023 2022
—E-= —E-_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FET
183,444 165,291
37,501 40,962
5,167 5,066
- 935
17,201 18,900
545 549
243,858 231,703




8

SEGMENT INFORMATION (conT'D) 8

Geographical information

Hong Kong (domicile)
PRC

Total

Revenue from external

DEBER @)

REZINER

Non-current assets
(excluding financial assets
and deferred income tax

customers assets)

IRBEE(TEETMEE

HINEF W= RELFMEREE)
2023 2022 2023 2022
—EC-=F =B —E-=F -~ -
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FiERT
BB (TEZSEMT) 436,198 480,283 337,310 312,548
A 18,566 14,309 624 2,058
st 454,764 494,592 337,934 314,606

The geographical location of customers is determined based
on the location at which the goods were delivered. The
geographical location of the non-current assets is determined
based on the physical location of the assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, there is no single
customer contributed over 10% of the Group’s revenue (2022:
approximately HK$53,605,000 or approximately 11% of the
Group’s revenue was derived from a single external

customer).

s -
BE=2=

—EFEAREERZBB10%
AEBEUWZF 4 53,605,0008THA11%HKE
B-HIEF) -

EFHBUERBERNEMMAEMEME - 3F
RBEECHBUBEARBEZEECERLE

=ZFZA=1+—-HLEFEE HEE

— = — —

—_
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

Employee benefit expenses (Note 11)

Auditor’s remuneration

— Audit services

— Non-audit services

Cost of inventories (Note 19)

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment (Note 16)

Depreciation of right-of-use asset
(Note 17)

Expenses relating to short-term lease
(Note 17)

Direct operating expenses arising
from investment properties that
generated rental income

Provision for/(reversal of provision for)
inventory obsolescence (Note 19)
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2023
—=—=
HK$’000
FT
69,103
1,760
195
253,061
19,103
30,080

154

3,265

2022
—E-
HK$'000
FET
72,100
1,770
195
294,322
16,763
30,651

4,983

118

(1,046)




10 FINANCE COSTS, NET

11

Finance costs M%EA

Interest expenses on bank borrowings  $R{FEHRF BB

Interest expenses on lease liabilities HESBFSMX (ME17)
(Note 17)

Finance income B A

Bank interest income RATF S WA

Finance costs, net MBER FHE

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 11

Salaries and allowances, including e RO BEEEMS
directors’ emoluments

Pension costs — defined RAESHA — RERKEE
contribution plans

Other long-term employee benefits HttRBESER

Government grant (Note) BT HEEL (ML)

Note:

The government grant recognised in employee benefit expenses of
HK$2,951,000 (2022: HK$Nil) mainly represents the employment support
scheme paid by Hong Kong Government during the year ended 31 March
2023.

During the year, forfeited contributions totalling HK$Nil
(2022: HK$2,000) were used to reduce the current year’s
level of contributions and there was no forfeited contribution
available at 31 March 2023 (2022: HK$Nil) to reduce future
years’ contributions.

10 BIHER F5

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-=

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

1,919 1,386

1,573 2,351

3,492 3,737
(1,886) (161)

1,606 3,576

EIRFZH
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHERT FET

68,652 68,432

2,381 2,468

1,021 1,200

(2,951) -

69,103 72,100

F5E

BUNEEE 2,951,000 8T (=2 ==F : T8 T)MEER
MEAXHE TEABBHARBE-S-_==8
=+ —-BXMHRRESE -

RAFE  BRRERAFTEL(ZE==
F 12,0005 7T) EARBOARFEEHRRKFE
MR-ZBZ=F=ZA=+—AHEDTRURER
TECCF  EER) TARBORREEM
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##& 8%k Mzt

12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND

THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(€))

Directors’ remuneration

The aggregate amount of emoluments paid or payable to

the directors of the Company are as follows:

2023

Executive directors

TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman)

TSE Sun Wai, Albert

TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director)
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

LAU Shiu Sun

Independent non-executive directors
WONG Wah, Dominic

WAN Sze Chung

Luk Wang Kwong
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Z

EECEINRERRLERBESTM
Ax
(@ EEZHH
ENRERRATNESZMESBAZEMT -
—E-=F
Employer’s
contribution
to retirement
Directors’ Salaries benefit
fees  and bonus scheme Total
BHKEF
T8z
EEHE FeRr#t4 BEHER Fo
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FER FET FER
100 2,473 - 2,573
100 4,048 - 4,148
100 3,582 18 3,700
100 2,987 18 3,105
100 1,633 18 1,751
108 - - 108
108 - - 108
108 - - 108
824 14,723 54 15,601



12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND 12 ESCEAREEREERSHMN

THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (cONT'D) AT @)
(@) Directors’ remuneration (cont’'d) (@) EEBZHME)
2022 —E-CH®
Employer’s
contribution
to retirement
Directors’ Salaries benefit
fees  and bonus scheme Total
BIKEF
FtEz
BEERE FERE4L EEHR Mz

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TER TER TER

Executive directors HiTEE
TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman) WL (EE) 100 2,157 12 2,269
TSE Sun Wai, Albert HEE 100 3,732 - 3,832
TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director) S (EBAKE) 100 3,214 18 3,332
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin HhEs 100 2,504 18 2,622
LAU Shiu Sun EdEEn 100 1,616 18 1,734
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
WONG Wah, Dominic =HE 108 - - 108
WAN Sze Chung BER 108 - - 108
Luk Wang Kwong fERE 108 - - 108
824 13,223 66 14,113
No directors have waived or agreed to waive their BE-ZE-_=F=A=+—-HALEE"
emoluments in respect of the year ended 31 March 2023 VEESHRIBEURERE2ME (=
(2022: Nil). TF )
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12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (coNT'D)

(b)

(c)

(d

(e)

0]

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2022: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group does
not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2022: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and controlled entities with such directors

As at 31 March 2023, there are no loans, quasi-loans or
other dealings in favour of the directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities with such
directors (2022: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Saved as disclosed in Note 30, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Key management personnel

The Group regards the executive directors as the key
management personnel. Details of the remuneration
paid to them are set out in (a).

1 68 E. Bon Holdings Limited Annual Report 2022/23

Z

EECvRAREZERDZRS FM
AT @

(b)

(o)

(d

(e)

®

EE 2RISR EBER
FA - BEEEC WM& REEMR
AFEHBBERN (ZB-2F 1 #8) -

BRERUESRBMAETE=FRE

RBE-R-=F=A=1+—-HILLFE"
AEBSEREME=ZFTRUESRY
MEAEXARE(ZEZZF 1 &) -

FHOES  SZREEERHNEAR
BEZSESHBREIRERNER
HUEREEMZZWER
R-ZZBE-Z=F=ZA=+—H0 LEGHE
E BREESEHNEABBRZE
FENHEETRREMRANER BLE
NBEEHMRZ(ZEZ—F : |&)

BEEEXRS  REASHNERER

BRRME30RBEEN  AFEERARFEH
B ARBWEBITEMEAEEER
HEMALDESHENBREEELPE
FEARRCEERS - ZHNEQ -

BREEAS
FEERBDTESIEREEAE -
XN TFRENHESFHBEENE ()8 -



12 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (coNT'D)

(®

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include four (2022: four)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments paid or payable to

12 EECEMNEREERAIARSHMN

AT\

(@ TDEESFMAL

the five highest paid individual during the year are as LU

follows:

Salaries and allowances
Pension costs — defined
contribution plans

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Emolument bands (in HK$)

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

BAREEA — RERRETE

FRAKEzLERSFHATEEN
(ZBZF O ES KE#E
EAHRN EXFIRZDHA - FAEX
NHEZNTHERSFHNA L 25

2023 2022

—E=HF —E-_—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET

16,056 13,358

54 66

16,110 13,424

e FUTEE :

Number of individuals

A

2023
—E-=F

2022

—E-=

M4 R (B oc)

1,500,001 7 T & 2,000,000 /& 7T
2,000,001 #& T & 2,500,000 /& 7T
2,500,001 #& 7Tt & 3,000,000 /& 7T
3,000,001 & 7T £ 3,500,000 % 7T
3,500,001 /& Jt £ 4,000,000 /& 7T
3,500,001 /& Jt & 4,000,000 /& T

- e o= N
_m e
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13

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2022: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
The applicable tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries of the Group
is 25% (2022: 25%) for the year.

Current tax BN HABE T8

Hong Kong profits tax BBNEH

PRC enterprise income tax Bl FTEH
Total current tax BNEABLIE 4280
Deferred taxation (Note 25) BRI (M 25)
Income tax expense FRBHAX

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic tax
rates in the region in which the Group operates as follows:

Profit before income tax BRFT B8R ADEF

AR EERERN
uS R el OF

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates
applicable to profits in the
respective region

Effect of tax reduction in current year REERERINTE

Income not subject to tax BERBIUA

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes RAf1%ipI %

Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses

Unrecognised tax losses RERBIAR R
Income tax expense FrsBiMx
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13

Z

FRr8HRX

EBAERDURFEMFERBERNER X

16.5% (=& ==

116.5%) FHREME - RA

FE AKETEWEARDNEARER25%

(ZFZZF 1 25%) °

2023 2022
—E-= —E-=

HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FH&T
3,116 2,877
153 622
3,269 3,499
(673) 189
2,596 3,688

REBABBRBIRAGRN 2 HEEBRERAER
SEEERENBE 2N R EMTE 2ER

BEBEEZR2MT ¢
Group
REE
2023 2022
—BC-= —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR
16,669 15,582
909 2,397
(70) (110)
(984) (34)
335 477
(14) (431)
2,420 1,389
2,596 3,688




14 DIVIDENDS 14 RE

(@ Dividends declared and paid during the year @ REFESRERREZRE
2023 2022
—E-=F B
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FiBx

Final dividend in respect of 2022 of Z—ZZZHZKHREER 1B

HK$1 cent (2022: in respect of (ZB=Z=F . 8= —F2
2021 of HK$0.5 cent) per share REIREEIRO0.57840) 6,006 3,003
Interim dividend in respect of 2023 of —Z== > hHIREZHE/
HK$Nil (2022: in respect of —EooE B —FY
2022 of HK$0.5 cent) per share PR E SR 0.584l) - 3,003
6,006 6,006
(b) Dividends for the year b FERE
2023 2022
—EZ=5F g
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FBT
Interim dividend of HK$Nil FREA AR B F B
(2022: HK$0.5 cent) per share (ZB=ZF 1 0.584l) - 3,003
Proposed final dividend of BRARBRESRO.5E4
HK$0.5 cent (2022: HK$1 cent) (ZZZZF 1840 (M)
per share (Note) 3,594 6,006
3,594 9,009
Note: BEE
Final dividends have been proposed by the directors after the reporting ESNREBCEIRERBRE - ZFWRKRE
date. The proposed dividends, subject to the shareholders” approval at (BHRRNEERIES RS LHE) W ER R
the forthcoming annual general meeting, are not reflected as dividend ARZE-=F=A=1+—-HZERRE -

payable as at 31 March 2023.

BHFERERAT202223558 1/ 1
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15 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)

(b)

(c)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the years.

Basic earnings per share attributable
to the owners of the Company

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March
2023 is the same as the basic earnings per share as there
were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares issued
(2022: Nil).

Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earning
per share

Basic earnings per share BREFGEF

Profit attributable to the owners of

15

AR ESRERNEFH

the Company used in calculating KRB A E BAG T
basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share (518 3yl

Profit attributable to the owners of AR ESREHENN
the Company used in calculating RATIFE B RIEER

diluted earnings per share
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Z

BREN

(@

RARMBEERIESREREF

(b)

(o)

BREFEF
BREFNZFNIRERNDAABEERME
BENRAMBRFERARITENZ2EBR
EFHEEHE RFRERTEBRRN
ALFIEHFAEE) -

2023 2022

—EB-=F B
HK cents HK cents
B4 AL
(Restated)
(&Z&E75)
2.22 1.95

SR8 EEF

HRUBERTEETRBZBER  8E
ECE=ZF=ZA=t-HLEEEZE
BE#EEAESRERGFER(=ZZ2
T )

ARG E S BIEF B 5 R ¥R

2023 2022
—EB-=F —E-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FET
14,073 11,894
2023 2022
—EC-=HE —E-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
14,073 11,894




15 EARNINGS PER SHARE (conT'D) 15 SR&EF

(d) Weighted average number of shares used as the d) FREIBHRMINEFTH
denominator
2023 2022
—E=HF —E-_—F
Number of Number of
shares shares
iidvipg=| BRHEE
(Restated)
(&2&5)
Weighted average number of ordinary F{EstEERER K #E5F S
shares and potential ordinary Mo BNEBRETEBRR
shares used as the denominator in INEEE 9 (MEsE)
calculating basic and diluted
earnings per share (note) 632,838,238 608,849,268
Note: BT
Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March BE-E-__S=-A=1t-HLEFENERER
2022 have been restated to take into account the effects of the bonus REEEFCEIUFRARNTR =B =5 —
element in ordinary shares issued as a result of the rights issue of the BRERHERECRTEBERWARFTERNS
Company completed in January 2023. Zo

BrERERAT20222358% 173



Z

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ##& 8%k Mzt

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 Y% - BERRE

Leasehold
land and Furniture,
buildings ~ Leasehold fixtures and Motor
(Note) improvements  equipment vehicles Total
HELH
RET B #EB
()  HEnERE & Jak:d FoHY
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Fin TEx TEn TER TEn
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2021 R-E--£=f=+-H 228,400 15,684 1,616 191 245,891
Transfer from investment property EBRERENE 30,300 - - - 30,300
Additions NE - 6,140 181 - 6,321
Disposal e - (313) - (329)
Depreciation (Note 9) & (M 9) (8,721) (7,483) (436) (16,763)
Revaluation Bff 3,721 - - 3,721
Exchange difference ERzE - 12 7 21
At 31 March 2022 R-E-—#=p=+-H 253,700 14,040 1,368 269,162
Additions RE 48,147 8,416 172 56,735
Depreciation (Note 9) E (KzE9) (10,321) (8,289) (439) (19,103)
Revaluation Bff (4,726) - - (4,726)
Exchange difference EHZRE - (1) (15) (36)
At 31 March 2023 W-Z-ZE=B=+-g 286,800 14,146 1,086 302,032
At 31 March 2022 W-B--HE=ZA=+-H
Valuation {3ED 253,700 - - 253,700
Cost A - 84,495 20,730 106,318
Accumulated depreciation SHE - (70,455) (19,362) (90,856)
Net book amount RHEE 253,700 14,040 1,368 269,162
At 31 March 2023 R-E-=£=f=+-H
Valuation 1 286,800 - - 286,800
Cost A - 92,512 20,854 114,457
Accumulated depreciation SHE - (78,366) (19,768) (99,225)
Net book amount RHFE 286,800 14,146 1,086 302,032
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (coNT'D) 16 Y% - BERRE @

Note: P =E -
If leasehold land and buildings were stated on the historical cost basis, the HEETHREFNRESHAREERZS  BELEN
amounts would be as follows: T
2023 2022
—EBC-=F —E=-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHExT
Cost 2% 191,412 143,265
Accumulated depreciation SEHine (15,366) (12,906)
Net book amount BREEE 176,046 130,359
Bank borrowings are secured by the leasehold land and buildings in Hong SRAT 18 A A LB BRTE B49 200,200,000 8 T (=T == :
Kong with a total carrying amount of approximately HK$200,200,000 (2022: #1160,600,00078 7T ) 2 & B HE £ it & 18 F R IK 17 (Y
approximately HK$160,600,000) (Note 23). 7£23) °
The following table analyses the leasehold land and buildings TEUGEEDSFBRAABIEHET R
carried at fair value, by valuation method. B o

Fair value measurements using
RATHERZAAENE

Quoted
prices in
active Significant Significant
markets for other unobservable
identical observable inputs
assets inputs (Level 3)
Description 1 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Note)
HREER BEARHAM BERFH
SEEB™ IS AHE EERWARE
ZHRE BWAEE (B=R)
(%5—18) (5=f8) (Mt=E)
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
As at 31 March 2023 N-E-=%=H=+—H
Recurring fair value measurements &4 DAEHE
— Leasehold land and buildings — HE+HREF - - 286,800
As at 31 March 2022 A—_E_—_H=A=+-—H
Recurring fair value measurements  &EMAREFE
— Leasehold land and buildings —HE+HRETF - — 253,700
Note: 5T
For fair value measurement under Level 3, inputs for the asset or liability are BE=ZEETZAAEFEMNS EEREBZHAR
not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs). BAWHFUTEENSEE (T UBREAZE) AER -
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conT'D)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers

out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or

change in circumstances that caused the transfer. There were

no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable

inputs (Level 3)

Opening balance FHEEER

Addition B

Transfer from investment property ERAREYE

Depreciation e

Impairment loss on leasehold HE it RARTFHRERR
land and buildings

(Loss)/gain on revaluation recognised RAEMZ2EKEERZ
in other comprehensive income B (F18R), s

Closing balance FRAFER

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were valued at 31
March 2023 and 2022 by an independent and qualified
valuer, Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited, who holds a
recognised relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the locations and segments of the leasehold
land and buildings valued.

The Group's finance department includes a team that reviews
the valuations performed by the independent valuer for
financial reporting purposes. This team reports directly to the
board of directors. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the review team and the valuer
annually.
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Z

M - BERRE @

AEBzEEARERERANEBR 2 BE
BeEHREREBER  BREEANEE
RMeBAREH -FR - F-—F F-BRSE
ZEEAEES -

MAERTIBEGAYE (F=B) 22 RE

e

Leasehold land and buildings

HETHRETF

2023 2022
—E-= S - =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
253,700 228,400
48,147 -
- 30,300
(10,321) (8,721)
(1,304) —
3,422) 3,721
286,800 253,700

FEEZAERE
FAEBECHEL B RETHE S ERMER
ERENGMTARARAR-Z=ZFR=-ZF
CoFZA=T-HETHE WEERSE
HERATEXER  AEARIENESE L
REFREBER D BETEENER

AEEMBIEE -—BMBRE B NERS
MALEMATETAEZEE - ZEBREERE
EEER - HEERSFEABMIREER
BRER -



16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (coNT'D) 16 Y% - BERRE @

Valuation processes of the Group (cont'd) REBE 2z HERE (&)

Level 3 fair values of leasehold land and buildings have been HELTHREFZE=ZBANENEAREL
derived using the direct comparison approach, which BURSH - EELBUEZ—RFAAEEDS L7
basically uses the comparable sales transactions as available ERCTELBHEERGERYEQIAAE - B
in the relevant market to derive the fair value of the METELENECEBOHARSERE U
properties. Sale prices of comparable properties in close FEHERMEHETERH CZRFEHFEE It
proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as HMEEZRERBABBATSEER -

time of transactions, property size and location. The most
significant input into this valuation approach is the market

unit rate.
Information about fair value measurements using significant FRAFNAEATUERGARE (F=E) 22
unobservable inputs (Level 3) REFTEZER
Relationship of unobservable

Unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs inputs of fair value
TABRRBARE TAERBGAREHE DABERIRFTEREABE 2BF
Market unit rate Office: HK$17,500 to HK$17,600 (2022:  The higher the market unit rate, the
mIHEER HK$18,300 to HK$18,400) per square feet  higher the fair value

of saleable area THEEXES  ANEES

R7RE BAEBRSFHR17,500/87TE 17,600

BT (ZZZZF 1 18,300/8TE 18,4008 7T)

Shop: HK$73,600 (2022: HK$80,300) per

square feet of saleable area

5 BREESFHR73,6008BT(ZF-2F:

80,3008 7T)

Warehouse: HK$3,400 (2022: HK$3,600)

per square feet of saleable area

ER BAEESTAR3400BL(ZF=2F:

3,600787T)
There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the FRGESEREE -
year.
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17 LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the Group is
a lessee.

(@

(b)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of

financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position shows
the following balances relating to the leases:

Right-of-use assets
Properties

Lease liabilities
Current
Non-current

EREEE
LS

HESE

3=
1L

FERE

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended
31 March 2023 amounted to approximately
HK$21,490,000 (2022: approximately HK$10,867,000).

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income
shows the following amounts relating to the leases:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets (Note 9)

Expenses relating to short-term
leases (Note 9)

Interest expense (Note 10)

17

Z

HE

AHERHAEEERFEEAAZEEES -

@ RESUBRARABIZEE

REMBRRARIIRUTEREEARZ

e

2023 2022

—EC-=HE —E—-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET
35,902 45,444
29,143 27,902
8,460 22,094
37,603 49,996

BE-_Z-_=F=F=+—HILEE"
NEFEREEELN21,490,0008T (=&
ZZH :#10,867,0008TT) °

b) RESEZARBRABRZEHE

REZEWSERIIRUTRESEARZ

T

2023
—EB-=F
HK$’000
FHET

EREEEZITERX (MEE9)

30,080

BEREHEE 2B (HEE9)

MBI (MEE10)

The total cash outflow for leases in the year ended 31
March 2023 amounted to approximately
HK$28,855,000 (2022: approximately HK$36,241,000).
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154
1,573

2022
e —

—_—=

HK$"000
FHET

30,651

4,983
2,351

BE-—ZE-_=F=ZHA=+—HLEEE"
HECZHERESREHA28,85500058 T
(ZBZZF 1 #936,241,00087T) °



17 LEASES (CONT'D) 17 #HE @)

(c) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are (0 FEEZHEEIZIBREAERESR
accounted for
The Group leases various properties including retail FEEEAZEYNE  ETERTES
shops, warehouse and office premises. The lease terms W EEREFEVE - BENF-—Z=
are between one to four years. MU o
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and HERENELER  YEERERR
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. ZAGRFR R AG A o L5 185 5 48E 4 B A A AT
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants it HWREBBAAFSEZHEEET 2
other than the security interests in the leased assets that HIRRERRBRID

are held by the lessor.

18 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18 KMEAR#ERE
The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 March UTAR-Z2-_=F=A=1+-HZXEWE
2023: NERE :
Place of
incorporation/  Particulars of issued Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary establishment  share capital Legal structure Equity interest held place of operation
HEAREH HB/RIEE BRORAFE EELR FERARR IERBRERLA
2023 2022
—E-=F CZE-CE

Accord Sky Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 ordinary shares  Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Retail sales of kitchen collections and
furniture through retail shops in
Hong Kong

Accord Sky Limited A 1,000,000 REER AREMRLT BREEENEAZEHERRRR
R

Asia Bon Company Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Property holding in Hong Kong

EA (N EEERERAT BE 100 REBR BREMRLT REBENERR

Asia Richly Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Property holding in Hong Kong

DHERERLT 3 1REER BREFAT REBENERR

Bonco Ironmongery Limited ~ Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares ~ Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Importing and sale of architectural
builders” hardware in Hong Kong

RELEEHERAT N 10,000 REER BREMRLT REBEORHFERERS

Cypress Design Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Consulting services for interior design
and fitting out works

MERTERAT Eh TREER AREMRLT ERRAREB IR ZEARK

D. LY. Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Handling of human resources planning
and development activities of the
Group

D. LY. Limited i 2REER BRELLA REAREANEFREREREE

E. Bon Building Materials Hong Kong 6,000 ordinary shares Company with limited liabilities 100% 100%  Importing and sale of architectural

Company Limited builders’ hardware and bathroom

collections in Hong Kong

BATRENHARAT B2 6,000 REER AREEAT REBENRHERERSREARE
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18

Name of subsidiary

WELARER

H20 (Pro) Limited
K2 RERAR
Kitchen (Pro) Limited
B2 RERAR

Massford (Hong Kong) Limited

Massford (Shanghai) Limited*

ZE(LB)TEBERAR

Oriental Forward Limited

RAKEERLT

Oriental Longway Limited
RARBERAH

Right Century Limited

BHERAT

Leader New Limited

HERRAR

Shanghai Tech Pro International
Trading Company Limitec*

LEEREBEZERAT

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

/R s

Hong Kong
&t
Hong Kong
&2

Hong Kong

i

PRC

el

Hong Kong

i

Hong Kong
&

Hong Kong

EE

Hong Kong

&2

PRC

TE
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (coNT'D)

Particulars of issued
share capital

BRITRAHE

2 ordinary shares
REER

1,000 ordinary shares
1,000 REER

10,000 ordinary shares

10,000 RE B

US$250,000

250,000 %%

1 ordinary share
1REER

1 ordinary share

1REER
1,000 ordinary shares

1,000 REBR

1 ordinary share

1 REBR

US$300,000

300,000 £

18 MIBLQEER @)

Legal structure

EERE

Company with limited liabilities

Company with limited liabilities
BRELLT

Company with limited liabilities

Wholly foreign owned enterprise

£\l 3

Company with limited liabilities

BREMRAA

Company with limited liabilities
AREELA

Company with limited liabilities

BREMRAH

Company with limited liabilities

BRERAHA

Wholly foreign owned enterprise

EXIN -l

Equity interest held

FEReER
2023 2022
—g-=f —EBEC-CE
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% N/A
FEf
100% 100%

Principal activities and
place of operation

TERBRERDE

Importing and sale of bathroom
collections in Hong Kong

REBENRHEEEAR

Importing, sale and installation of
kitchen collections in Hong Kong

REBER  #ERZEEERRE

Supply of architectural builders’
hardware and bathroom collections
for property development in
Hong Kong

REBHERELSREARETNE
BRER

Supplying architectural builders’
hardware and bathroom collections
for property development in Shanghai

REBHERERSRERRET
IES L

Property Holding in Hong Kong
REBENERE

Property Holding in Hong Kong
REBENERE

Retail sales of bathroom accessories and
decoration materials through retail
shops in Hong Kong

BRTEENEETEHEMARS
TR ERATR

Property Holding in Hong Kong
REBENEEE

Importing and sale of architectural
builders hardware and bathroom
collections in the PRC

RPEENRBEERETEREARE



18

Place of

incorporation/
Name of subsidiary establishment
WELARER /R

Shanghai Techpro Interior PRC
Decoration Company Limited*

LESREAZHERLR T

Sunny Building and Decoration  Hong Kong
Materials Company Limited

FHESHNESTIEERAR B8

Techpro Trading Limited Hong Kong

BREMHEAERAF &2
VIA (Shanghai) Limited* PRC

BR (L8 FEBEARLE PE

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (cONT'D)

Particulars of issued
share capital

BRAREKHE

RMB5,000,000

ARH5,000,0007C

6,000 ordinary shares

6,000 RE B

1,000 ordinary shares

1,000 REBR

US$$250,000

250,000 ¢

18 B ERER @)

Legal structure

EEER

Wholly foreign owned enterprise

2hEh%

Company with limited liabilities

Company with limited liabilities
BRERAAH
Wholly foreign owned enterprise

EX{-

The English names of certain subsidiaries referred herein represent
management’s best effort in translating the Chinese names of these
subsidiaries as no English names have been registered.

Equity interest held

FrisRARR
2023 2022
“E-zf ZEC-C
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activities and
place of operation

E2:3 3 ESub

Undertaking interior decoration and
project management for property
development in the PRC

RPBRBENEE AR ERRET
PES 3

Retail sales of architectural builders
hardware and bathroom collections
through retail shops in Hong Kong

PRTEENEETEHERETS
REARE

Importing and sale of architectural
builders hardware

ENR#ERERS

Importing and sale of bathroom, furniture
and kitchen collections in Shanghai

REBEDRHEEE  FAR
BERE

HALREFHBARLETTRERE 8
ERVEBHEEBRBI L EBENEF -
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Z

19 INVENTORIES 19 ®&
2023 2022
—EB-=F —EB-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FiBT
Finished goods B M 144,909 115,420
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in BRRBFAIAFTATHERS | 2FERANS
“cost of sales” amounted to approximately HK$243,030,000 243,030,00038 7T (ZF =245 1 £9294,322,000
(2022: approximately HK$294,322,000). BIT) e
As at 31 March 2023, finished goods with cost of R-ZBZ=ZF=ZA=+t—-H BHHRM
approximately HK$34,490,000 (2022: approximately ZHAR# 534,490,000 BT (ZE=_—_F : ¥
HK$31,643,000) were considered as obsolete. 31,643,000587T) °
The movement in the provision for inventory obsolescence is BREFERBEBNT
as follows:
2023 2022
—E-= S - =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FiET
Balance at beginning of the year FEER 31,643 32,436
Provision for/(reversal of provision for)  BEEFEE%E, (BEEE)
inventory obsolescence 3,265 (1,046)
Exchange difference ERLER (418) 253
Balance at end of the year FRER 34,490 31,643
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CONTRACT ASSETS

20 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20

Details of the trade, retention, other receivables and contract
assets as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 are listed below:

Trade receivables
Less: provision for impairment of trade
receivables

Retention receivables
Less: provision for impairment of
retention receivables

Contract assets
Less: provision for impairment of
contract assets

Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Less: non-current portion
Retention receivables
Deposits

Current portion

FE U BR K
W FEWERTRER A

FE WK% B 5K
B R B RORLE R R

BREE
B EHNEERERE

HitEW - BERBANRK

W FERNEIER
FEURAR B3R
7E

ENERER

All non-current receivables are due within five years from the

end of the respective reporting dates.

FE U BR X -
REEHNEE

BWRRER - HMEK

R-BZ=HK-F-__F=A=1+—-HZE
WERR - BBRE R HtBEWR R ENEE

HEWT -
2023 2022
—E-=E —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FExT
71,605 124,584
(1,118) (859)
70,487 123,725
1,435 2,645
(264) (288)
71,658 126,082
3,284 4,344
(15) (6)
74,927 130,420
27,384 28,570
102,311 158,990
(367) (272)
(4,377) (5,731)
97,567 152,987

FrA SRR 2 2 UGS N &S B A RE

BER
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20 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
CONTRACT ASSETS (coNT'D)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables at the reporting date

by invoice date is as follows:

1-90 days
91-365 days
Over 365 days

The majority of the Group’s sales are with credit terms of 30
to 90 days, while some customers are granted an extended
credit period of up to 120 days.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade and retention receivables and
contract assets. Information about the impairment of these
receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk is set out

in Note 3.1(c).
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EUWEER - ERARER - HiEW
AREHNEE @)

FEWERFAERE B 2Rk (B HFE) 247
LU

2023 2022
—E-= S - =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
31,311 60,766
25,270 28,157
15,024 35,661
71,605 124,584

FEBZHEFEMABIRI0E0XR M
BOEFNEEMRERERZ 120K

AEBEREBMEHREEAFEIFEES
EEHEERE  HAEREWRARERRE
MUREHNEEFREZBREREBRE -G
ZERURERERTESEEERBRMNERE
AHEE3. 1) °



20 TRADE, RETENTION, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20 FEWHERN  BEWREBEXN HittEW

CONTRACT ASSETS (CONT'D) MRENEE®
The movement in the provision of expected credit loss on FEWERR - BRREBRRANEEZHRBEER
trade, retention receivables and contract assets is as follows: BIEBHEEBNT ¢
2023 2022
—E=-= —EICF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FE&xT
Balance at beginning of the year FAEER 1,153 1,044
Loss allowance for the year FERERRE 2,431 94
Written-off b (2,169) -
Exchange difference ERER (18) 15
Balance at end of the year FREER 1,397 1,153
As at 31 March 2023, the carrying values of trade and other RZBZ=%=A=+—0 BRERAREM
receivables approximate their fair values (2022: same). EWFHRHEREEARERE (B 2F
=) °
Details of contract assets are as follows: BRNEEFBAOT ¢
2023 2022
—EBC-=F —EBE-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Contract assets related to contract work  BESHNIRBNENEE 3,284 4,344
Contract assets consist of unbilled amount resulting from BHEEERCHRIANZBBOEF B HRE
contract work when revenue recognised exceeds the amount NEBRRESNIRELENRBRESHE -

billed to the customer.
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21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME
DEPOSITS AT BANKS

Cash at bank and on hand
Time deposits at banks with maturity
over three months

RITERRFRRE

As at 31 March 2023, the Group'’s cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$1,497,000 (2022: approximately
HK$2,902,000) are deposited with banks in the PRC, where
the remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange control.

The deposits at banks carry interest at mark rates which range
from 0.20% to 4.95% (2022: 0.20%) per annum.

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

Trade payables FESBRRR
Accrued charges and other payables ST E AR H AR
Contract liabilities BHNEE
Other provision Hib 3

Less: non-current portion
Other provision

i FRENEER
Hip#

Current portion BRI o
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21 RERASEEMUARRITERF

e
FN

=18 B N EBIEIERITE BIF K

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
123,296 104,199
23,365 -
146,661 104,199

R-ZBE-=F=F=+—8 ' AEEzZRER
RITHERL1,497,0008 T (ZEBE=ZZF 1 &
2,902,000/& ) ETFEARBZRIT - ERF I
EEMRBIE S o

RITEFIRERNZE020%E495% (ZFE ==
& 10.20%) 5T

22 BNRIREGCENREEHNEE

2023 2022
=K =B

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
29,854 19,999
13,400 14,387
70,643 75,337
6,021 5,000
119,918 114,723
(6,021) (5,000)
113,897 109,723




22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT 22 ERfBRRRHEMESRRENEE

LIABILITIES (cONT'D) ()

The ageing analysis of the trade payables at the reporting date FENRRFNIRE B 2 BRilk (ABFERFE) 247

by invoice date is as follows: LU
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FiBxT
0-90 days 22,022 13,513
91-365 days 4,074 4,346
Over 365 days 3,758 2,140
29,854 19,999

REZBZ=5=ZA=+—-0  BIERIAKREM
ARz EHERAAERE (222

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying values of trade and other
payables approximate their fair values (2022: same).

A=) °

Details of contract liabilities are as follows: EHNEEHBOT :
2023 2022
—E-= —E-CF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHEx FET

Contract liabilities for unsatisfied REBHETEHNER

performance obligations 70,643 75,337

BHNEBERERERAZTFEBNEREMEN
EFNRE (HRIBMAESER) -

Contract liabilities consist of consideration received (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer for goals
that have not yet been transferred to the customers.

TRETHFESNEBEHEBENAREHEE
RN EEHE

The following table shows the amount of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period in relation to
carried-forward contract liabilities:

2023 2022
—EB-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$"000
TR FiERT
Revenue recognised that was included st AFEHNANEEEHNTETWES
in the contract liabilities balance at the
beginning of the year 71,024 36,148
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23 BORROWINGS

Current BnEg
Secured Bk

— Bank loans —RITEX
Unsecured fiigid

— Trust receipt loans — ERERIBER

Trust receipt loans are mainly denominated in HK$ or EUR.
All bank loans are denominated in HKS$.

At 31 March 2023, the Group’s borrowings were repayable
based on contractual repayment terms as follows:

Within one year —FR

In the second year BEZFR

In the third to fifth year E=ZFEERFN
Over fifth year BBERE

Bank borrowings of approximately HK$55,492,000 (2022:
approximately HK$40,962,000) are secured by leasehold
land and buildings of the Group of approximately
HK$200,200,000 (2022: approximately HK$160,600,000)
(Note 16).

The fair value of borrowings, which carry interest at floating
rates, equals their carrying amounts.
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Z

23 X

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
55,492 40,962
8,477 1,121
63,969 42,083

ERERBERCEEERTERBTREE -
FBERITERZEEER

B.'—’i—; 3%/%713 °
RZBZ=F=ZA=+—0 xEEERES
HEF %mﬁﬁz%%wT

2023 2022
—E-=E —E-_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
13,126 4,832
4,791 3,793
15,243 7,848
30,809 25,610
63,969 42,083

ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ%4%0%ﬁmﬂ—?::¢ #
40,962,000 T ) R L A K B A HE Y
200,200,000 wT( = & = =— F: &
160,600,00078 7t) 2 A E + #th REF /IR (K
16) °

MEZBREZERZ AN ESRAREE -



23 BORROWINGS (cONT'D) 23 BEFR @)

The Group had the following undrawn borrowing facilities: RAEBRUATRBAZRESHE
2023 2022
—E-=F B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TR
Floating rate: FERER
— Expiring within one year — —FERZFEA 193,736 186,730
The effective interest rate is 3.6% per annum (2022: 2.6% per BE-ZE-_ZF-A=+t-HLEFEZERF
annum) for the year ended 31 March 2023. MEH3.6% (ZEZZF : §F2.6%) °
The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its BE-_Z_-FR-ZF--FZA=+T-AL
borrowing facilities for the year ended 31 March 2023 and FE ARECETHRESEMBERE -
2022.
24 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24 FTHEERIA
2023 2022
—Eg-= —Fg-—
Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
aE & aE &fE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET TR TR
Not qualified for hedge THEHHETER
accounting
Foreign exchange forward SNERMEH - BHE
contract, at market value (B &E)
(Note) 223 - — (935)
Note: M5
The notional principal amounts of the outstanding foreign exchange forward REIBC=FR-ZB-_F=A=+—-RAERTEZH
contracts as at 31 March 2023 and 2022 are as follows: ERRaNEErESR0T ¢
2023 2022
—EZ=F —E-CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FERT
Sell HKD for EUR HHBTARE 21,415 43,745
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Z

25 DEFERRED TAXATION 25 EELEBIIR
2023 2022
—EB-=F —EB-—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FiBT
Deferred income tax assets EFFEREE 5,352 5,873
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFFERAas (17,201) (18,900)
(11,849) (13,027)
The movements in gross deferred income tax assets and REZBAMBHRHE AL RN IR HEERA -
liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration FEEZELERSHEEREBREEZH N
the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are T:
as follows:
Deferred income tax assets EEFEHEE
Decelerated tax
Tax losses depreciation Provision Total
HEksE BEBENE B At
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

—E-ZE CZE-C-F CZBC-=ZE ZE-C-F ZEC-ZE —F--F ZE-ZE Z—E-_-E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx Tax TEr TExn TEx Tax TEr

At 1 April RmA-H 2,503 4211 10,606 8,834 651 805 13,760 13,850
(Chargedy/credited to (@) /FHABR
profit or loss (1,134) (1,708) 1,947 1,772 (254) (187) 559 (123)
Exchange difference ERER - - - - @7 33 47 33
At 31 March R=A=+-H 1,369 2,503 12,553 10,606 350 651 14,272 13,760
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFERAE
Revaluation of properties  Accelerated tax depreciation Total
MEEM EBIETE st
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

—E-=HE —E-CF —E-=E —E-CFE —E-=E —E-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FTHET THER FTiEr THEx TAR

At1 April RMA—A 26,281 25,667 506 440 26,787 26,107
(Charged)/credited to (#8)/FAEMEEKE

other comprehensive

income (552) 614 - - (552) 614
(Charged)/credited to (n|@)/FABE

profit or loss (228) - 114 66 (114) 66
At 31 March R=B=+—H 25,501 26,281 620 506 26,121 26,787
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25 DEFERRED TAXATION (CONT'D) 25 RIEWIE &)
As at 31 March 2023, the Group has not recognised deferred RZZFZ=5=A=+—0 ' AEE{ARER
income tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of EBEEHEEIEN22,127,0008 T(=&
approximately HK$22,127,000 (2022: approximately ZIZH 1 924,713,0008 T) ZIELEFRBHE
HK$24,713,000) as it is not probable that future taxable B WIHEREEESERiEERNEHEE
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be BBME - AR KA REEUS FEFIE R F LUK $5
available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and entities. These BIREE - ZEREBFEZIBAMT ¢
tax losses utilisation will expire as follows:
2023 2022
—E-=F B
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx FiERT
In the first to fifth year inclusive F-FEFLFN(BEERRMSF) 22,127 24,713
Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately HK$415,000 REZZBZ=F=ZA=+—-R  LENBELF
as at 31 March 2023 (2022: approximately HK$658,000) AREE BB A 2 TR B % L o Bt T W SR AR S P
have not been recognised for the withholding tax and other BHEENM5000BT(ZT=F: §
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of 658,00087T) - M=FE=-=F=A=+—HQ"
subsidiaries. Unremitted earnings totalled approximately AEBMNEHANR83040008T(=ZF =
HK$8,304,000 at 31 March 2023 (2022: approximately 1 #913,166,000/8 7T) R AE B I EITHER
HK$13,166,000), and the Group does not intend to remit A RAGHRE AR A REREMME A R 2 REREF)
these unremitted earnings from the relevant subsidiaries to the
Company in the foreseeable future.
26 SHARE CAPITAL 26 IRA
2023 2022
—EC=F ZECCF
Number of Number of
shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000
RH#A TER RH#A iR
Authorised: FE
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each SRAGI BT EBR
At 1 April and 31 March ROA-BR=A=1+-H 1,000,000,000 100,000  1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTR2EXA
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each BREGIETZEER
At 1 April RUA-H 600,600,000 60,060 600,600,000 60,060
Issuance of ordinary shares upon ERMRBTEER (W)
rights issue (Note) 118,238,942 11,824 - -
At 31 March R=A=1-8 718,838,942 71,884 600,600,000 60,060
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26 SHARE CAPITAL (coNT'D)

Note:

On 21 October 2022, the Company proposed to implement a right issue to
its shareholders a right issue its shareholders to subscribe to a rights issue of
150,150,000 shares at an issue price of HK$0.192 per share on the basis of
one share for every four existing shares held. A total of 118,238,942 rights
shares were fully subscribed. Proceeds of approximately HK$22,702,000
were received and the related transaction costs of approximately
HK$1,300,000 were netted off with the proceeds. These shares rank pari
passu in all respect with the then existing shares in issue. The excess over the
par value of the shares were credited to the share premium account.

27 RESERVES

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are set out

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC rules and regulations,
certain subsidiaries of the Company are required to
apportionate certain percentage of their profits after tax to the
respective statutory reserves. Subject to certain restrictions as
set out in the relevant PRC regulations, this statutory reserve
may be used to reduce any losses incurred or for
capitalisation as paid-up capital of the PRC subsidiary.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares and share
premium account of the group companies acquired pursuant
to the group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) on 22
March 2000, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares

issued in exchange thereof.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represented contribution surplus made by
the then shareholders to certain subsidiaries of the Company

before the group reorganisation on 22 March 2000.
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R-ZBZZE+AZ+—0 RADTABRZBUBRITESR
BH0.192BTIREEENRRERMER —BRRHNWE
R REETAAR - LUREE 150,150,000 RIERIRD - &
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28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Finance income
Fair value loss on
investment properties
Impairment loss on leasehold
land and buildings

Provision for/(reversal of provision

for) inventory obsolescence
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Net impairment losses on
financial and contract assets
Loss on forward contracts
Loss on lease modification
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
COVID-19-related rent concessions

Operating profit before working
capital changes
Inventories

Trade, retention and other receivables

Contract assets

Trade and other payables and provision

Contract liabilities

Cash generated from operations

28 BHEREER

(@)

BR P 1S3 A&
BTHEEAE
MHER
BAH U A
REMEANEFE

ME L REFRERE
BRFERE(BERE)
HEME  BERRBER

ERMEENEEZRERE
FEE

ERENER

HEEREE

ME - BERRBITE

FRAREENE
2019 BARFESHEBESER

EEESREA 2 EEEF

rE

YRR - YR E R
HftFE Uk

BREE

P BRI R A R R B

BHEE

REEE RS

RETHELECZRERE
2023 2022
—EZ=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FiEx
16,669 15,582
3,492 3,737
(1,886) (1e1)
- 2,000
1,304 -
3,265 (1,046)
- 292
2,431 94
3,269 2,154
(94) -
19,103 16,763
30,080 30,651
3,670) (2,451)
73,963 67,615
(32,885) 28,143
51,973 (55,081)
906 74
9,179 (908)
(4,734) 33,089
98,402 72,932
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28 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CcONT'D)

(b)

(c)

28

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

Equipment

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds
from disposal of property, plant and equipment

comprise:

Net book amount (Note 16)
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (Note 7)

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

BREFE (Fizk16)
HEME MERREER
(FF&E7)

B % R kB o

Z

BEREER @
b HEVE BERSEZFERE

iﬂ'AIEéIJILEﬂEEW ’ 'd:"%%% N MFE

HENE - BERRBAERIEA

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financial

activities

At 1 April 2021
Cash flows
Non-cash movement

At 31 March 2022
Cash flows
Non-cash movement

At 31 March 2023
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RehE
FRLBH

—FmA—A

R-®-—#=B=+-H
}Eé;)lbi
FReB

R=-ZBZ=5=ZA=+-—H

kBB RBRIEESE
2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-=

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

- 329

- (292)

- 37

(0 ®METDEENEEYR

Liabilities from financing activities

MEEDZEE
Lease

Borrowings liabilities Total
B HEAE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FiBx FBx FBx
66,574 70,397 136,971
(26,842) (31,258) (58,100)
2,351 10,857 13,208
42,083 49,996 92,079
19,967 (28,701) (8,734)
1,919 16,308 18,227
63,969 37,603 101,572



29

30

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2023, performance bonds of approximately
HK$23,333,000 (2022: approximately HK$32,511,000) have
been issued by the Group to customers as security of
contracts.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, during
the year, the Group had the following transactions with
related parties:

29

30

ZAREE

R-ZBEZ=F=ZA=1+—8 ' A&EECQAEF
BHBAREL 23,333,000 T (=ZE==
#132,511,000787T) EBEHIER -
BEALRS

BRESMBRRANREZRS ERM  RAE
FER AEEZEBEEATETUTRS

(@ Related party relationship Nature of transaction 2023 2022
BEALHE RHMUEHE —B-=F —F-CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR
A company under common Lease payments paid to Negotiator
control of certain directors Consultants Limited (“NCL”)
of the Company (Note) {45 Negotiator Consultants Limited
—BEANEETESHEES 2 (TNCLD) 2 &K
2~ 7] () - 2,774
Note: FfEE -

NCL is a company in which Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. TSE Sun Wai,
Albert, Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, directors of
the Company, have beneficial interests. The lease payment was paid in
the normal course of business at terms mutually agreed between the
Group and NCL.

(b) Balances with related parties

NCLAARBESHIELEE  HMELE  HHEL
ERBEREEBEEERE2AT - HENRERR
EBBRPBRAEBENCLEMEEE 2RI -

(b) BEALZHEER

2023 2022
—EC=HF —ECF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FiERT
Other receivables from HRE LT AR EARE R
— NCL — NCL 357 286

Balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The carrying amounts approximate their fair
values (2022: same).

HEHRABIER REREAEBEREN -
REEEAANERES(ZTE2F 8
@) e
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31 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 31 XRARHMBERRREFHEES
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
2023 2022
=K —E-=
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FiEE FBxT FH&T
Assets BE
Non-current asset RBEE
Interest in a subsidiary M8 A Bl 90,918 90,918
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUN T B D B E0IE 45,322 29,166
Other receivables Hi R 30 30
Cash and cash equivalents BHeRESZEY 1,235 972
_________ 46,587 30,168
Total assets BERE 137,505 121,086
Equity i
Equity attributable to equity RATMBEREGEDS
holders of the Company
Share capital R 71,884 60,060
Reserves 1 (@) 63,253 58,840
Total equity R 135,137 118,900
Liabilities =V
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables HA AR 2,345 2,161
Current income tax liabilities AEFEHER 23 25
___________ 2368 2,186
Total equity and liabilities HREZRERE 137,505 121,086
The statement of financial position of the Company was ARAMBRARCEETER=_F=_=FX
approved by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2023 and A=T=Bi#tE  YATHEENREE -
were signed on its behalf.
TSE Sun Fat, Henry TSE Sun Po, Tony
A e
Director Director
EE EE
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31 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 31 ARAPBRRRRBERE @)
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONT'D)

Note: =T
(@  Reserve movement of the Company (@  EARRREEE
Share Retained
premium earnings Total
BHRE RERF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET
At 1 April 2021 R-E-—-FWNA—AH 1,201 62,900 64,101
Profit for the year FEHEA - 745 745
Dividends (Note 14(a)) B2 (FizE 14(a)) - (6,006) (6,006)
At 31 March 2022 R-EB=-=—F=H=+—A1H 1,201 57,639 58,840
At 1 April 2022 R-ZZBE-—FWNA—H 1,201 57,639 58,840
Profit for the year FEERN - 836 836
Dividends (Note 14(a)) BRE (M 14() - (6,006) (6,006)
Right issue g 9,583 - 9,583
At 31 March 2023 R-ZB-=%=ZH=+—H 10,784 52,469 63,253
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Five-Year Financial Summary

Results
Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Assets and liabilities
Total assets
Total liabilities

Shareholders” equity

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the five
years ended 31 March 2019, 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023 have

ES
RAREE
FE1L &R

BEREE
RMEE
meE

been prepared on a consolidated basis.
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LFUBRE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—Eo=F B B ZEBEZEFE ZEBE-h=E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET FET FERT FET
14,073 11,894 10,769 11,326 15,085
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-=HF ZZBZZC —E-—F ZEBZEE CZZE-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET FET FERT FHET
740,573 702,224 702,678 678,621 620,317
(243,858) (231,703) (241,446) (228,444) (157,441)
496,715 470,521 461,232 450,177 462,876
AEBBE-FT-NEF —F-BF -B--F

CECCER-E-_=H=ZA=+—ALFEEEE
BEZHEE BEEREEBENERGEEERH -
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